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Harvesting Fruitful
Opportunities for   

a Prosperous Tomorrow

Since its establishment over 40 years ago, the National Agricultural Development Company 
(nadec) has been a strategic partner in ensuring food security for the Kingdom and the wider 
region. With a legacy of consistent achievements, nadec has positioned itself at the fore-
front of the agriculture and food manufacturing sectors by offering high-quality and nutri-
tious products. This commitment has elevated the company  as one of the top organizations 
that impact consumers' daily lives. Its listing as the first agricultural company on the Saudi 
Stock Exchange (Tadawul) marked a transformative milestone that reinforced its leadership 
position and ushered in a new chapter of expansion and growth. By leveraging an innovative 
business strategy, nadec has solidified its presence in local and regional markets. Today, the 
company stands as a symbol of growth and innovation, opening new horizons for a fruitful 
future filled with promising opportunities. This vision integrates sustainability, develop-
ment, and market-driven expansion in alignment with the Kingdom’s food security strategy 
and Vision 2030.

Nadec is distinguished by its advanced operational environment, investing in state-of-the-
art technologies and infrastructure to deliver products that meet global standards. This en-
sures excellence and enables the company to explore new opportunities that pave the way 
for a more prosperous future. With this commitment, nadec has successfully adapted to the 
evolving needs of markets and consistently met customer expectations with professionalism 
and efficiency.

Nadec is steadily advancing towards a brighter future through a comprehensive five-year 
strategy aimed at enhancing its innovative capabilities, achieving growth and geographical 
expansion, and adopting clean energy as part of its commitment to sustainability. The strat-
egy also emphasizes investment in modern technologies and green infrastructure to achieve 
operational efficiency and sustainable quality. This reflects nadec’s vision of delivering prod-
ucts that become the preferred choice in local, regional, and global markets.
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Supporting Food Security in 
Line with Vision 2030

Food Security; the cornerstone for 
nadec’s strategy

Inspired by Saudi Arabia’s Vision 2030, nadec’s vision aligns with na-
tional food security goals. This vision aims to achieve sustainable 
self-sufficiency in food production while strengthening food security as 
a cornerstone of the national economy. It emphasizes on boosting local 
production, diversifying food sources, optimizing the sustainable use of 
resources, fostering innovation and scientific research, and enhancing 
regional and international partnerships.

In line with this approach, nadec has chosen this year’s report theme to 
be: “Harvesting Fruitful Opportunities for a Prosperous Tomorrow.” This 
reflects the company’s unwavering commitment to supporting the King-
dom’s ambitions and the directives of its visionary leadership. nadec 
is committed to implementing strategies that ensure self-sufficiency in 
essential products while focusing on enhancing food quality and safety 
in compliance with the highest local and international standards.

Nadec's Strategy to Enhance Food Security 
in Line with Vision 2030

1 
Boosting 
Local 
Production

2 
Diversifying 
Food 
Sources

3 
Sustainable 
Resource 
Utilization 

4 
Promoting 
Innovation 
and 
Scientific 
Research

5 
Supporting 
International 
and Regional 
Partnerships
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1.	 Boosting Local Production

Objectives:

�� Increase the market share of locally produced products, such as agricultural, dairy, and food products by 
enhancing product competitiveness and consumer trust.

�� Leverage advanced agricultural technologies, precision farming techniques and sustainable agricultural in 
both agricultural and product manufacturing to optimize resource efficiency and improve product quality.

Achievements:

�� Enhanced local agricultural production through modern technologies and sustainable agricultural practices:

0.6%
Long-life milk: 
increase in market share (2024).

1.5%

Processed Cheese: 
increase in market share (2024).

4.9%
Olive Oil: 
increase in market share (2024)

0.6%
Fresh cream: 
increase in market share (2024).
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2. Diversifying Food Sources

Objectives:

�� Reduce reliance on imports by developing robust 
local agricultural sectors.

�� Support agricultural investments both within 
and outside the Kingdom to ensure a steady food 
supply.

Achievements:

�� Ensuring a Sustainable Food Supply through 
Strategic Partnerships: Nadec signed a partner-
ship agreement with United Feed Company to 
establish a company specializing in the livestock 
sector for the production of red meat. This aligns 
with our expansion goals in meat production, 
with nadec investing SAR 90 million. This part-
nership supports efforts to enhance local food 
self-sufficiency by diversifying protein sources 
to meet the needs of the local market.

�� Strengthening Ties with Farmers: Nadec is 
strengthening ties with local farmers through 
contract farming, aligned with the Kingdom’s Vi-
sion 2030. Instead of limiting input to major sup-
pliers, small and medium-scale farmers actively 
continue to contribute to meeting the market’s 
food needs, ensuring inclusivity and sustainabili-
ty in the agricultural sector.

3. Sustainable Resource 
Utilization

Objectives:

�� Preserve natural resources from degradation, 
with a focus on more efficient water manage-
ment.

�� Expand desert agriculture and adopt hydroponic 
and vertical farming technologies.

Achievements:

�� Collaboration with Pure Harvest: Implemented 
innovative farming systems that significantly re-
duce water consumption per kilogram of produc-
tion.

�� Memorandum of Understanding with the Olive 
Producers Association: Established collaboration 
to promote the adoption of best practices, par-
ticularly in irrigation management.

�� Water Recycling Study: Completed a comprehen-
sive study on water reuse within nadec’s opera-
tions to maximize efficiency and sustainability.

�� Wastewater Treatment Project: This project aims 
to enhance water treatment capabilities for 
greater sustainability.

4. Promoting Innovation and 
Scientific Research

Objectives:

�� Support scientific research and development in 
agriculture and food sectors to enhance produc-
tivity.

�� Encourage the adoption of Artificial Intelligence 
(AI) and Internet of Things (IoT) technologies in 
agriculture.

Achievements:

�� Nadec’s Climate Change Mitigation Initiative: 
Launched multiple initiatives for programs and 
yielding positive results in addressing climate 
change, including a collaboration with Pure Har-
vest to develop a resource-efficient food system 
while reducing carbon emissions.

�� Efforts in Clean Energy Production: Announced 
ownership of one of the largest solar arrays in the 
Middle East, continuing to produce clean energy 
and contribute to environmental sustainability. 

�� Enhancing Eco-Friendly Cooling Technologies: 
Launched a fleet optimization program to reduce 
environmental impact. Additionally, nadec con-
tinues to implement innovative cooling technol-
ogies in its dairy farms, significantly lowering 
electricity consumption for cooling purposes.

�� Our alliance with the "Saudi AgriFood Tech Alli-
ance" (SAFTA) fosters collaboration to advance 
agricultural and food technology solutions, 
driving national-scale deployment of innovative 
AgriFood technologies.

5. Supporting International and 
Regional Partnerships

Objectives:

�� Establish partnerships with other countries to 
ensure stable food supplies.

�� Enhance agricultural investments abroad to guar-
antee diverse food sources.

Achievements:

Through continuous efforts, nadec has successfully 
developed new business sectors, including:

�� Establishing World-Class slaughterhouse for lo-
cal red meat production.

�� Building Key Partnerships across all segments of 
the food supply chain, particularly in agriculture 
and protein sectors.

�� Protein Sector Achievements، formed strategic 
partnerships with leading red meat producers in 
Brazil.

�� Designated Australia as one of the primary sup-
pliers of premium red meat to the Kingdom.
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Vision, Mission, and Values

Vision 
To deliver high-value nutritional products to consumers, striv-
ing to achieve the highest levels of satisfaction and aiming 
for regional and global leadership in the food and beverage 
industry. This vision reflects positively on the image of the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and its economic strength while 
contributing to the growth of the national GDP, in alignment 
with Kingdom's Vision 2030.

Mission
To commit to providing high-quality, and nutritionally benefi-
cial products that meet the needs and aspirations of custom-
ers and stakeholders.

Nadec’s Core Values 
Our values form the foundation of our operations, guides the 
principles that shape our corporate culture. They align with 
all our practices, strategies, and policies, enabling us to cre-
ate value for everyone associated with nadec.

Care
At nadec, we believe that corporate care is reflected in 
offering products of exceptional quality. Through our 
commitment to meeting our customers' needs, we ensure 
the delivery of outstanding food services that meet the 
highest standards expected in the market. We focus on 
providing exceptional care for the quality of our products, 
which reflects excellence in our production and opera-
tional capabilities, enabling us to fulfill our customers' 
ambitions and provide the best possible food experience.

Social Responsibility
Social responsibility is a cornerstone in our strategic plan. 
We believe success is not solely measured by product qual-
ity but also by our accountability to society and the environ-
ment. We are committed to offering premium-quality food 
products that meet customer expectations while actively 
working to improve our environmental impact. By adopting 
sustainable practices across our supply chain, from sourc-
ing to packaging, we uphold principles of social justice and 
community engagement. We also support local initiatives 
and create sustainable job opportunities, reflecting our role 
as a proactive contributor to society. For us, social respon-
sibility means balancing profitability with our societal and 
environmental influence.

Motivation
Motivation is a fundamental element of our strategy. 
We recognize that passion and commitment are essen-
tial drivers of success. A motivated and driven team is 
the backbone of any successful enterprise, so we strive 
to foster a culture of inspiration and provide an em-
powering environment that encourages teamwork and 
creativity.

We understand that a strong sense of motivation di-
rectly impacts the quality of our products and ser-
vices. Therefore, we continually invest in personal and 
professional development opportunities for our team 
members, promoting skill enhancement and innova-
tion. This commitment ensures consistent improve-
ment and evolution of our products, keeping nadec at 
the forefront of the industry.

Excellence
At nadec, we place excellence at the heart of our strat-
egy. We believe that achieving the highest levels of 
quality and innovation is the cornerstone of our suc-
cess. We continuously strive for excellence in every as-
pect of our operations, from selecting raw materials to 
distributing our products.

On our journey toward excellence, innovation and de-
velopment are integral to our identity. We invest in re-
search and development to deliver unique and innova-
tive products that meet customer expectations and stand 
out in the competitive food market. We take pride in our 
ongoing efforts to improve our processes and refine our 
production methods to achieve exceptional levels of ef-
ficiency and quality.

In a rapidly changing world, we fully understand the impor-
tance of excellence in meeting customer aspirations and 
maintaining a leading competitive position. Therefore, we 
prioritize innovation and distinctiveness in delivering value 
and achieving sustainable customer satisfaction as a primary 
goal in our pursuit of excellence.

Collaboration
Collaboration is one of the pillars of our strategic plan. At 
nadec, we recognize that teamwork is the key to effectively 
achieving strategic goals. We believe that strong collabora-
tion within our team and with our partners and customers 
contributes to building our sustainable success. In a world of 
rapid change, collaboration is the optimal path to achieving 
innovation and sustainability.

We promote a culture of mutual respect and encourage 
active participation to ensure that every individual real-
izes their full potential. We foster relationships built on 
trust and integrity with our suppliers and commercial 
partners. Through close collaboration, we aim to achieve 
integration across the supply chain and improve all as-
pects of our operations.

At nadec, collaboration means working together toward 
shared goals, contributing to strengthening our position as 
an innovative and responsible food company.
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Historical Background

NADEC was 
established by Royal 
Decree with an initial 
capital of SAR 400 
million.

1981

NADEC inaugurated the 
Al-Hazm model farm for 
cows, enhancing its 
position as an integrated 
agricultural system.

2015

NADEC's scope of activity 
expanded with the Sudan 
Agricultural Project, adding 
a new canvas to the map of 
agriculture and 
development.

2014

In pursuit of 
sustainability and 
local industry 
growth, NADEC 
established a plastic 
packaging factory.

2016

NADEC took another step into 
the future by signing a 
memorandum of understanding 
with Pure Harvest for smart 
farming. This partnership 
merged traditional agricultural 
expertise with modern 
technology to create an 
innovative and intelligent 
agricultural environment.

2020

2023

NADEC made advancements towards 
renewable energy by signing a 
strategic solar power purchase 
agreement with ENGIE Company. 
This initiative, aligned with the 
company’s sustainability vision, 
saved 124,000 barrels of fuel 
annually and established NADEC as 
a leader in sustainability.

2019

Commercial 
operations began for 
the solar energy 
project in 
collaboration with 
ENGIE Company in the 
Haradh industrial 
area.

2021

2022

2024

Began producing 
high-quality tomatoes 
using smart greenhouse 
technology.
Opened the olive oil 
factory in Al-Jouf.
Transitioned to full 
automation of all 
operational and 
marketing processes.

Launched NADEC’s new 2023 
- 2027 strategy.
Increased the company’s 
capital by SAR 2 billion 
through a rights issue.
Signed agreements with 
several partners, including 
SIRC, Elion Resources Group, 
Del Monte, and United Feed 
Company.

•      

•      

•      

•      

•      

•      

Signed a partnership agreement 
with United Feed Company to 
establish a livestock company 
specializing in red meat 
production.
NADEC expanded its protein 
footprint in the market of Saudi 
Arabia with SAR 180.3 Mn Revenue 
in its first year of operations.

•      

•      

NADEC became a 
publicly listed 
company, listing its 
shares on the Saudi 
Stock Exchange 
(Tadawul).

1993

The NADEC 
expanded its 
cheese factory and 
began producing 
fresh juices in the 
newly expanded 
facility.

2007

NADEC became the 
Kingdom’s main 
dairy supplier by 
opening its first 
fresh milk and 
dairy products 
factory.

1984

Wadi Al-Dawasir 
agricultural project 
was inaugurated, 
marking the start of a 
journey filled with 
challenges, 
successes, and 
opportunities in 
agricultural and food 
production.

1982

Hail agricultural 
project was 
launched, expanding 
the NADEC’s 
offerings in 
agricultural and food 
products.

1985
The company 
opened its second 
factory for fresh 
milk and dairy 
products.

1995

NADEC started 
packaging milk and 
dairy derivatives on 
its production lines.

1986

Al-Jouf agricultural 
project for olive 
production was 
inaugurated, adding 
momentum to the 
region's agricultural 
sector.

1987

NADEC initiated an 
intensive olive 
production project, 
furthering its 
continuous 
development.

2006

Years of Excellence
Forty-three Years of Leadership in the 
Food Industry

43
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UAE

Bahrain

Kuwait

IraqLebanon

Jordan

Yemen

KSALibya

Geographic Presence

Our Global Reach

Branches Within the Kingdom 
Nadec operates extensively across Saudi Arabia 
through a well-established network of branches 
and retail outlets, ensuring comprehensive market 
coverage.

Regional Branches
Nadec’s presence is not confined to Saudi Arabia; 
it spans across the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) 
countries, the Middle East, and North Africa regions. 
The company currently has two regional branches:

�� UAE

�� Bahrain

Distribution Outlets Outside 
the Kingdom
Nadec also markets and sells its products inter-
nationally. Which include Jordan, Libya, Lebanon, 
Yemen, Palestine, Iraq, Mauritania, Somalia, Mal-
dives, Seychelles, and the United States of America.

Revenue Breakdown (SAR)

Revenue Source
(SAR) Revenue % of Total Revenue

2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024

Saudi Arabia 2,399,685,681 2,829,356,972 2,915,753,249 89.1% 88.5% 90.5%

Other Countries 294,562,032 367,609,565 304,647,144 10.9% 11.5% 9.5%

Total 2,694,247,713 3,196,966,537 3,220,400,393 100% 100% 100%
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Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Sales  (SAR Billion):

3.22024

3.22023

2.72022

Assets  (SAR Billion):

5.72024

5.12023

3.82022

Cattle Herd  (Heads in Thousands):

1052024

942023

892022

Net Income  (SAR Million):

 774.62024

302.12023

95.52022

Daily Dairy and Juice Production  (Million Liters):

1.52024

1.52023

1.42022

Quality Tests Conducted  (in Thousands):

20.02024

19.92023

16.62022

43.9%
Fresh Dairy Products
and by-products

7.2%
Fresh Juice Products

11.6%
Cheese and Butter
Products

5.6%
Calves and protein
products

2.1%
Agricultural Products

3.6%
Olive Products

26.0%
Long-Life Dairy Products

Product
Categories

Nadec Revenue Breakdown by Major Product Categories (2024 vs. 2023)

Product Category
2024

(In Millions SAR)
2023

(In Millions SAR)
Change (%)

Fresh Dairy Products and by-products 1,413.7 1,506.1 (6.1)

Fresh Juice Products 231.4 234.9 (1.5)

Long-Life Dairy Products 836.3 833.2 0.4

Cheese and Butter Products 374.6 353.6 5.9

Olive Products 115.1 68.6 67.8

Agricultural Products 69.0 116.9 (41.0)

Calves and protein products 180.3 83.6 114.9

Total Revenue 3,220.4 3,196.9 0.7
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2024 At a Glance

1.	 A Fruitful Investment for Food Security
�� Nadec signed a partnership agreement with United 

Feed Company to establish a livestock company spe-
cializing in animal fattening for red meat production.

�� Nadec expands red meat production with an addi-
tional investment of SAR 90 million.

�� Nadec expanded its meat footprint in the market of 
Saudi Arabia with a revenue of SAR 180.3 million in 
2024 compared to SAR 83.6 million in 2023.

�� All the shareholders of Arabian Mills including 
nadec offered to sell 30% of their existing shares 
during IPO process. As a result, nadec gained SAR 
103.2 million on sales of 30% shares and also rec-
ognized fair value gain of SAR 253.3 million on 
remaining shares.

2. Fruitful Economic Indicators: Success in Numbers
�� Nadec’s profits surged to SAR 101.3 million in Q1 

of 2024, compared to SAR 37.7 million in Q1 of 
2023.

�� Nadec's profits rose by 107.4% to SAR 213.2 mil-
lion in the first half of 2024 compared to SAR mil-
lion 102.8 in the first half of 2023.

�� Nadec’s profits reached SAR 326.6 million for 
nine-month period ended 30 September 2024, 
marking an 83% increase compared to SAR 178.1 
million during the same period in 2023.

�� Nadec’s profits significantly increased to SAR 
774.6 million for FY 2024, marking a 156.4% in-
crease compared to SAR 302.1 million for FY 2023.

3. Sustainability Efforts: In Line with the Kingdom's Vision
�� Nadec sponsored the Environmental Commitment 

Forum, which was Organized by the National Center 
for Environmental Compliance, nadec took a leading 
role in supporting sustainability initiatives.

�� Nadec conducted a workshop with the Agricul-
tural Cooperative Association in Qaryat Al-Ulya to 
promote sustainable wheat farming practices.

�� Nadec participated in the Saudi Agriculture Ex-
hibition to Showcase innovative sustainability 
techniques in nadec’s agricultural projects

�� Greening Arabia: International Exhibition and Fo-
rum for Afforestation Technologies: nadec High-
lighted its expertise in soil revitalization, water 
recycling, and organic waste management during 
COP16 Riyadh.

�� nadec presented sustainable potato farming 
technologies in Hail, reinforcing its commitment 
to eco-friendly practices.

�� Nadec's dedicated pavilion in COP16 Riyadh fea-
tured its innovative agricultural soil restoration 
initiatives and sustainability projects.

Harvesting Success with Excellence

6. Marketing Our Products: Expanding to New Markets
�� Nadec participated as a platinum sponsor in the 

47th Baghdad International Fair, as part of Saudi 
Arabia's representation in the event.

�� Nadec Organized a workshop to promote organic farm-
ing practices at nadec’s farm in the Al-Jouf region.

�� Nadec showcased its products, projects, and ex-
pansion plans through an interactive pavilion at 
the Foodex Saudi exhibition in Riyadh.

�� Nadec launched the Strawberry Mojito, achieving 
significant success within the first five months of 
its launch.

�� Nadec released a new Ayran product flavored with 
cucumber and mint, which was well-received 
from customers.

4. Awards and Recognitions: Winning Trust and Building 
Community Confidence

�� Nadec was honored for receiving the Social Re-
sponsibility Emblem to acknowledge its achieve-
ments in this field.

�� Recognized as the leading national company 
for promoting sustainable agricultural innova-
tions during the COP16 Conference in Riyadh.

�� Awarded the Consumer Sustainability Certificate 
by the Consumer Protection Association, becom-
ing the first entity to receive this distinction.

�� Nadec’s 2023 annual report was recognized as the 
Best Printed Annual Report in its Category by the 
Middle East Investor Relations Association (MEIRA).

�� The digital version of nadec’s 2023 annual report 
received the Second Best Digital Annual Report 
Award in its category from MEIRA.

5. Developing Our Production Sectors: Advancing for Quality
�� Nadec celebrated conducting 20,000 quality 

tests daily on its food products, reflecting its 
commitment to excellence.

�� Nadec marked the milestone of planting over 5 
million olive trees in its project located in the Al-
Jouf region.
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Awards, Recognitions, 
and Certificates

Consumer Sustainability Award:
Nadec was honored with the Consumer Sustainability 
Certificate by the Consumer Protection Association, be-
coming the first national company to receive this recog-
nition.

Best Printed Annual Report Award 
(MEIRA): 
Nadec’s annual report won the Best Printed Annual Re-
port Award for its category from the Middle East Investor 
Relations Association (MEIRA) for the year 2023.

Second Best Digital Annual Report 
Award (MEIRA): 
Nadec’s digital annual report was recognized as the Sec-
ond Best Digital Annual Report for its category by MEIRA 
in 2023.

Awards and Recognitions 
In 2024, nadec received numerous prestigious awards in 
recognition of its excellence in product quality, social 
responsibility, and sustainability initiatives.

Best Cream Cheese in the GCC:
Nadec was awarded the title of “Best Cream Cheese” across the GCC 
countries, reaffirming the exceptional quality of its products, particular-
ly in the dairy sector..

Social Responsibility Emblem:
The Ministry of Human Resources and Social Development awarded 
nadec the Social Responsibility Emblem as part of the 2024 Social Re-
sponsibility Award, recognizing its impactful community programs and 
initiatives.

Innovation in Sustainability Award: 
Nadec received the Innovation in Sustainability Award from the Research, 
Development, and Innovation Authority, presented by the Minister of En-
vironment, Water, and Agriculture. This award highlights nadec’s efforts 
in advancing sustainable agricultural innovations in the food sector, pre-
sented during the COP16 Climate Conference in Riyadh.
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FSSC 22000 Food Safety System 
Certification
A globally recognized certification ensuring food 
safety management systems meet international 
standards - Company Operations.

Saudi GAP Al Jouf (Olive, Wheat, 
Potato, Onion, Dates)
Ensures compliance with Good Agricultural Prac-
tices (GAP) for key crops in Al Jouf - Product-Spe-
cific.

Saudi GAP Wadi Al Dawasir (Potato 
Date palm Onion)
Confirms adherence to Good Agricultural Practices 
in Wadi Al Dawasir  - Product-Specific.

Saudi GAP Al-Ahsa (Wheat, Dates)
Ensures wheat and date farming in Al-Ahsa follows 
Good Agricultural Practices - Product-Specific.

Saudi GAP Hail (Potato , Wheat , 
Onion)
Certification for implementing Good Agricultural 
Practices in Hail - Product-Specific.

Saudi Arabian Agriculture Law - 
Organic Agriculture  Executive by 
Law (OS KSA)
Compliance certification with Saudi organic ag-
riculture laws and regulations - Company Opera-
tions.

CERES Organic Standard (CE-OS)
International organic certification ensuring com-
pliance with organic farming standards - Prod-
uct-Specific.

Halal Certificate
Certification confirming compliance with Halal 
food production requirements - Product-Specific.

Saudi GAP Dairy
Ensures Good Agricultural Practices for dairy pro-
duction in Saudi Arabia - Product-Specific.

ISO 22000:2018 Food Safety 
Management System
International standard for food safety management 
ensuring safe food production - Company Operations.

ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management 
System
Global standard for quality management, ensuring 
efficiency and customer satisfaction - Company 
Operations.

SASO Quality Mark (Dairy)
Certification from the Saudi Standards Organiza-
tion ensuring dairy product compliance - Prod-
uct-Specific.

SASO Quality Mark (Juices)
Certification guaranteeing that juice products 
meet Saudi quality standards - Product-Specific.

SASO Quality Mark (Cheese 
Processed - Feta Cheese)
Ensures processed cheese products, including 
feta, meet quality standards - Product-Specific.

GLOBALG.A.P (Dates)
International certification ensuring Good Agricul-
tural Practices for date farming - Product-Specific.

ISO 37301:2021 - COMPLIANCE 
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
International standard for compliance manage-
ment ensuring regulatory adherence - Company 
Operations.

FIRM CERTIFICATE - TAWTHIQ 
- Comply with Saudi Organic 
Agriculture Law & By Law.
Certification ensuring compliance with Saudi or-
ganic agriculture regulations - Company Opera-
tions.

ISO 27001:2022 Information 
Security Management
International standard for information security 
management systems - Company Operations.

Certificates

Annual Report  | 2024

26 2726 27
At a Glance Strategic 

Review
Sustainability and 

CSR Review
Human 

Resources
Governance financial 

statements



Nadec’s Ownership in Other 
Companies

Achieving Success Through Integrated Performance

Issued/Paid-up Share Capital 

5,000,000
SAR 

100%
Nadec Ownership

Issued/Paid-up Share Capital 

500,000
SAR 

Headquarters: Riyadh
Main Activity: Livestock and
meat production

51%
Nadec Ownership

Arabian Mills for Food Products Company

(formerly: Second Milling Company)

Headquarters: Riyadh

Main Activity: Packaging and milling
of wheat, cracked wheat, semolina,
bulgur, and animal feed

10.41%
NADEC Ownership 

Issued/Paid-up Share Capital 

513,150,060
SAR 

National Seeds Production
Company (NSPC)

Headquarters: Riyadh

Main Activity: Agricultural production

100%
NADEC Ownership

Issued/Paid-up Share Capital 

5,000,000
SAR 

Al-Mutahida United Dairy
Farms Company
Headquarters: Riyadh
Main Activity: Veterinary medicine
warehouse

8.26%
NADEC Ownership

Issued/Paid-up Share Capital

7,250,000
SAR 

National Company for Seed
Production & Agriculture
Services Company (BUTHOR)

Headquarters: Riyadh

Main Activity: Seed production

13.99%
   NADEC Ownership 

Issued/Paid-up Share Capital

29,515,200
SAR 

Nadec Management Company
Headquarters: Riyadh
Main Activity: Management
and consultation services

National Livestock
Company (AlRaie)
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Stakeholder Engagement

Our Employees: The Heart of Our Operations

At nadec, our core values and principles create a safe and reliable environment for our employees. We 
are dedicated to providing clear and defined career paths while equipping our team with the necessary 
support to enhance their skills and knowledge. This is achieved through partnerships with leading train-
ing institutions that help qualify and empower our employees.

Our training efforts are aligned with our strategic transformation goals, focusing on enhancing the expertise 
of our young workforce by enabling them to earn professional certifications. These certifications help them 
stay updated on the latest industry trends and acquire the knowledge necessary to improve their performance.

The training plan is executed by analyzing training needs and selecting methods that align with the na-
ture of the program while balancing departmental requirements with employees' aspirations for future 
growth within the company. We also prioritize maintaining open communication with our employees, 
offering support, and engaging with them through digital platforms and other means.

Our Shareholders: Our Investment Vision

In line with the best governance practices, nadec is committed to facilitating shareholders’ full legal 
rights regarding their shares. We actively encourage shareholders to provide suggestions and feedback 
on the group’s performance and ensure their questions are addressed during general assembly meetings 
or through our Investor Relations department.

Suppliers: Partners in Success 

At nadec, we strive to collaborate closely with our suppliers to reduce costs, improve the quality of raw 
materials, and enhance cost efficiency. We deeply value our partnerships with suppliers and business 
partners, aiming to foster relationships built on trust and integrity. Through close collaboration, we work 
to achieve supply chain integration and optimize every aspect of our operations. Our strategy places 
suppliers at the center of our focus to ensure sustained quality and mutual growth .

Three key pillars to guarantee success with our suppliers:

�� Expanding our supplier base by prioritizing local raw materials and strengthening reliance on the 
domestic market.

�� Enhancing collaboration with suppliers by organizing regular meetings to explore partnership op-
portunities, ensure the availability of raw materials and products, and improve material efficiency.

�� Nadec continuously evaluates the suppliers’ performance by conducting regular laboratory and 
quality tests to maintain material standards, and by analyzing real-time responsiveness to ensure 
quality and reliability.
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Farmers: The Foundation of Our Prosperity

At nadec, we are committed to supporting our 
farmers as key partners in ensuring the quality 
of our agricultural produce, dairy, and red meat 
products. Our dedication to farmers reflects 
our broader mission of enhancing agricultural 
productivity and sustainability.

Nadec ensures the quality of its agricultur-
al products through the following steps:

�� Cultivation of crops in open fields and 
smart greenhouses to Produce high-quality 
vegetables and fruits for consumers.

�� Collaborate with global leaders in contract 
farming technologies to support fruit and 
vegetable farmers across the Kingdom.

�� Through nadec’s support to local farmers 
and continuous dedication to quality, nadec 
maintains leadership in producing premi um 
organic olive oil.

�� Supply top-tier seeds, such as wheat and 
potatoes, to farmers across the Kingdom.

Nadec actively promotes sustainable practic-
es within its supply chain by working closely 
with farmers, supporting local production, and 
encouraging using raw materials sourced from 
local suppliers. This approach highlights our 
commitment to the agricultural sector in Saudi 
Arabia, reflected in our continuous support for 
local farmers and the incorporation of locally 
sourced raw materials into our product manu-
facturing processes.

Recognizing the importance of self-sufficiency 
and its positive impact on the national econ-
omy, nadec has forged strategic partnerships 
with local farmers, providing them with re-
sources, expertise, and fair market opportuni-
ties. This initiative not only enables nadec to 
maintain the highest quality standards for its 
products but also contributes to the develop-
ment of a robust and resilient agricultural eco-
system for farmers within the Kingdom.

Consumers: To Meet Their Needs

The growing consumer demand for a sus-
tainable food system is evolving rapidly, re-
quiring proactive measures from companies. 
nadec is committed to continually fulfilling  
the dietary needs of local consumers while 
strengthening food security. To ensure the 
food security of its customers, nadec follows 
a structured approach:

�� Focusing on Production Strategies

�� Diversifying Product Portfolios

�� Enhancing Market Flexibility to adapt to 
volatile market conditions and consistently 
meet consumer demands.

�� Market-Driven Product Development

Nadec’s diverse product portfolio encompasses  
dairy products, juices, olive oil, red meat, and ag-
ricultural products. This aligns directly with the 
National Food Security Program and supports the 
company’s growth in these sectors. These efforts 
position nadec as a leader in large-scale food 
provision through its commitment to sustainable 
practices and its adaptability to global challenges 
such as climate change and population growth.

Furthermore, fostering sustainable innovation is a 
key factor in meeting the evolving expectations of 
consumers, maintaining the company’s competi-
tive edge, and ensuring continued success in this 
dynamic sector. nadec’s focus on innovation en-
sures it remains at the forefront of delivering value 
to its consumers while staying resilient in the face 
of emerging global challenges.

Our Community: Serving Our Nation

In alignment with its ethical values, nadec is committed to launching impactful initiatives as part of 
its on-going efforts to engage with its community and customers on various occasions that support 
them. The company ensures that these values are embedded in all its internal and external activities, 
driven by its belief in the importance of its societal role. nadec actively participates in and sponsors 
events and initiatives that promotes to societal well-being, reflecting its commitment to one of Sau-
di Vision 2030’s key objectives: "Enhancing Corporate Social Responsibility."
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Shareholder Information

Ownership Notification
The Saudi Agricultural and Livestock Investment Company (SALIC) is the 
largest shareholder in nadec, owning 116,579,257 shares, which rep-
resents 38.65% of the company’s capital. 

Nadec Stock Information
Date of Listing 1993

Stock Exchange Saudi Exchange (Tadawul)

Stock Code 6010

Number of Issued Shares 301,640,000 

Nadec Stock Price Performance
Stock Price as of 31/12/2024 24.68 SAR

Stock Price as of 31/12/2023 27.85 SAR

Stock Price 3 Years Ago 14.49 SAR

Highest Trading Price 36.05 SAR

Lowest Trading Price 23.54 SAR

Price Change Rate as of 2024 (11.38%)

As of 31/12/2024, the total number of nadec investors reached 44,581 
shareholders. Institutional investments accounted for 74.1% of the total 
shares owned by the company, while individual investments represent-
ed 25.9% of the total shares owned.

Nadec Investors by Ownership Type

As of December 31, 2024
Ownership Type Ownership Percentage (%) Number of Investors Number of Shares

Institutional Investments 74.1 346 223,525,196

Individual Investments 25.9 44,235 78,114,804

Total Investments 100 44,581 301,640,000

Nadec Investors by Nationality 

As of December 31, 2024
Nationality Ownership Percentage (%) Number of Investors Number of Shares

Saudi Investors 92.8  41,258  279,879,973

Foreign Investors 7.2 3,323 21,760,027

Total Investments 100 44,581 301,640,000

Major Shareholders in nadec (Ownership Above 5%)

Owner Current Ownership (%) Previous Ownership (%) Current Shares

The Saudi Agricultural 
and Livestock Invest-
ment Company (SALIC)

38.65 38.65 116,579,257

Nadec Stock Performance in 2024
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Chairman's Message

Promising the Future 
of Nutrition: Fruitful 
Opportunities for a 
Prosperous Tomorrow

Mr. Abdulaziz bin 
Saleh Al-Rebdi

For over forty years, nadec has played a pivotal role 
as a strategic partner in strengthening food securi-
ty in Saudi Arabia, establishing itself as one of the 
leading companies in the agricultural and food in-
dustries across the region. Our continued achieve-
ments have solidified nadec’s position at the 
forefront of companies that significantly impact 
consumers' daily lives by providing high-quality 
food products. A defining milestone in our journey 
was nadec’s listing as the first agricultural compa-
ny on the Saudi stock market, a transformative step 
that reinforced our leadership both locally and re-
gionally. For over four decades, we have witnessed 
successive chapters of expansion, growth, and 
success, driven by an innovative business strategy 
aligned with the aspirations of Vision 2030.

Today, nadec is at the forefront of innovation, 
growth, and expansion, driven by a vision for a fruit-
ful future of nutrition food future filled with "oppor-
tunities for a prosperous tomorrow." This progress 
is made possible by the grace of God and the un-
wavering support of Saudi Arabia’s wise leadership 
for the food sector. We continue to strengthen our 
position, which is guided by an ambitious strategy 
that integrates sustainability, development, and in-
telligent expansion based on thorough market anal-
ysis, we continue to strengthen our position. The 
year 2024 marked a defining chapter of progress 
and inspiring achievements, further solidifying our 
leadership in agriculture and food industries while 
advancing our strategic objectives.

Towards Sustainable Leadership in Agriculture

In 2024, nadec focused on innovation and invest-
ment in advanced agricultural technologies, ex-
panding the cultivation and production of diverse 
crops while integrating cutting-edge agricultural 
solutions such as smart greenhouses. This in-
vestment not only enhances the quality of food 
products but also supports local farmers and con-
tributes to achieving the Kingdom’s food self-suf-
ficiency goals. Additionally, we have forged 
partnerships with global leaders in agricultural 
technology, enabling us to improve productivity 
and ensure the sustainable management of nat-
ural resources.

Diversifying Investments and Strengthening 
Supply Chains

Our efforts extended beyond the agricultural sec-
tor to include the development of the protein 
sector and investments in expanding our dairy 
and juice product lines, introducing new offer-
ings that cater to evolving consumer demands. 
In parallel, nadec has invested in strengthening 
supply chains and leveraging the latest logistics 
technologies, enhancing operational efficiency, 
increasing production capacity, and boosting 
the company's competitiveness while improving 
profit margins.

Strategic Partnerships: The Key to Success and 
Innovation

Believing in the importance of integration with-
in the food value chain, nadec is committed to 
building strong partnerships with farmers, sup-
pliers, and technology companies to drive in-
novation and unlock new growth opportunities. 
These partnerships are more than just invest-
ments, they serve as catalysts for sustainable 
growth, strengthening food security, supporting 
the national economy, and creating added value 
for all stakeholders.

On behalf of myself, nadec, and all its employees, 
I extend my deepest gratitude to the Custodian 
of the Two Holy Mosques, King Salman bin Ab-
dulaziz Al Saud, and His Royal Highness Crown 
Prince Mohammed bin Salman bin Abdulaziz Al 
Saud, may God protect them, for their unwaver-
ing support in strengthening the Kingdom’s food 
security. I also express my sincere appreciation to 
my colleagues on the Board of Directors for their 
wise vision and dedicated efforts, and to the ex-
ecutive management, leadership teams, and em-
ployees across all nadec projects and operations. 
Their dedication and outstanding efforts through-
out 2024 have driven remarkable achievements, 
reinforcing our leadership in the food sector both 
locally and regionally. These accomplishments 
continue to propel us toward a prosperous future 
in line with Saudi Arabia’s ambitious transforma-
tion.
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CEO's Message

Nadec achieved an overall 

net profit of  775 
million SAR

Marking an increase of

156% 
compared to 2023

Nadec 2024: 
Comprehensive 
Expansion with 
Promising Opportunities 
for a Prosperous Future

Dr. Solaiman 
Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri

Another year has passed, bringing new milestones for 
the National Agricultural Development Company (na-
dec). Our mission extends beyond fulfilling consumer 
expectations; we are deeply committed to a national 
vision that prioritizes food security, advances sus-
tainability across Saudi Arabia, and aligns with the 
objectives of Vision 2030. Through strategic trans-
formations and ambitious initiatives, we continue to 
demonstrate our unwavering dedication to the King-
dom and its long-term development goals.

In this regard, we successfully established founda-
tional partnerships in 2024 within the livestock and 
protein sector, reinforcing national food security and 
creating new growth opportunities. Additionally, we 
signed long-term leasing agreements to expand our 
storage capacities, enabling us to meet the increas-
ing demand for our products.

Throughout the year, we pursued ambitious in-
vestments aimed at diversifying our resources and 
strengthening our financial efficiency to build a more 
prosperous future. Additionally, we remained commit-
ted to enhancing the production of other agricultural 
and food sectors within nadec, reinforcing our dedica-
tion to food self-sufficiency and national food security.

At nadec, our commitment to quality and excellence is 
not just a short-term goal but a benchmark for busi-
ness excellence. Built on a long history of dedication 
and continuous success, we have consistently deliv-
ered premium products across the juice, beverage, and 
dairy sectors for decades. This commitment also drives 
our strategic expansion into the protein and vegetable 
sectors, along with other future growth areas.

In 2024, our pursuit of excellence in sustainability did 
not waver. Instead, we seized promising opportunities 
to build a thriving future, embracing more sustainable 
initiatives that led to remarkable achievements across 
various food sectors. Among these was the success of 
our premium nadec olive oil, produced from our project 
in Al-Jouf. We were also honored with the "Innovation 
in Sustainability" award this year, alongside the accom-
plishments of our environmental sustainability pro-
grams, including afforestation, water recycling, organic 
waste management, and other key initiatives in this field.

In terms of operational excellence this year, Nadec 
overall achieved a net profit of SAR 775 million mark-
ing a 156.6%  increase compared to 2023.

In line with our expansion plans and ambitious growth 
strategy, we have made significant progress in develop-
ing and implementing a comprehensive strategy for red 
meat production, with full-scale production set to be 
phased for over five years. We have also signed several 
agreements and forged promising investment partner-
ships, collaborating closely with companies and insti-
tutions both within and beyond the Kingdom. These 
efforts focus on business development, sustainability, 
and advanced technologies across nadec’s food sec-
tors. Additionally, we have strengthened our agricultur-
al projects, partnered in establishing a company ded-
icated to livestock farming to reinforce our leadership 
in national food security, and signed a strategic memo-
randum of understanding with Panda Retail to enhance 
collaboration in the food sector. At the same time, we 
have expanded and developed our corporate social re-
sponsibility initiatives as part of nadec’s core strategy.

Implementing these projects and achievements that we 
shed light on, would not have been possible without 
our interest and keenness at nadec to create a stimulat-
ing work environment, develop national competencies 
and cadres, and attract young local talent. We are ful-
ly committed to the highest international safety stan-
dards in our various work sites and food and agricultur-
al projects, where many programs and procedures were 
implemented. This has contributed to strengthening 
our firm's commitment to security, health, and occupa-
tional safety, as per the highest international standards.

In conclusion, on behalf of myself and nadec, I extend 
my deepest gratitude to the Custodian of the Two Holy 
Mosques, King Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud, and His 
Royal Highness Crown Prince Mohammed bin Salman 
bin Abdulaziz Al Saud, may God protect them, for their 
continued support of the agricultural and food devel-
opment sector, a key pillar of Vision 2030. I also ex-
press my sincere appreciation to the esteemed Chair-
man and Members of the Board of Directors for their 
unwavering support of the executive management in 
our efforts to enhance services for consumers, clients, 
and stakeholders. Additionally, I extend my gratitude 
to the dedicated leaders and employees of nadec, 
who are the foundation of this great national institu-
tion. Their commitment and innovation have been the 
driving force behind our success in serving our valued 
customers and consumers, whose satisfaction remains 
our greatest source of inspiration and excellence.
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Our Strategy

“New Dawn” Strategy: Six Pillars of Strategic Excellence
In alignment with the “New Dawn” strategy, nadec focuses on the following pillars to achieve its strategic objectives:

Agricultural Expansion

This pillar is driven by cultivating and producing ag-
ricultural crops in open fields and smart greenhous-
es, with the goal of delivering high-quality vegeta-
bles and fruits to consumers. Nadec adopts the latest 
technologies and forms partnerships in the form of 
contract farming to support local farmers. Addition-
ally, the company remains committed to producing 
organic olive oil and leading the way in providing pre-
mium agricultural seeds, such as wheat and potatoes, 
to farmers in Saudi Arabia..

Production Expansion

Nadec aims to achieve this pillar by scaling up produc-
tion and distribution operations, as well as enhancing its 
existing product range (dairy and juices) to better serve 
both local and international consumers. Through innova-
tion, investment in supply chains, and expanding distri-
bution capabilities, the company seeks to reach a broad-
er audience. Dairy products and their derivatives serve 
as the backbone of nadec’s operations, accounting for 
92.3% of its revenues as of 2024. Moreover, nadec plans 
to expand its investments into the protein and vegetable 
sectors, in line with its five-year strategic plan.

Geographic Expansion

Nadec aims to expand the geographic reach of its 
branches and services by targeting new markets with-
in Saudi Arabia, the Middle East, North Africa, and 
untapped global markets. This initiative seeks to pro-
vide diverse opportunities for future growth.

Expansion in Distribution Channels

To achieve its aspirations for geographic and sectoral 
expansion, nadec plans to invest in the development 
and expansion of its distribution operations. This in-
cludes forming new alliances and partnerships to in-
crease the reach and efficiency of its supply chain.

Sectoral Expansion

The company seeks to achieve excellence and growth 
in targeted sectors by investing in the protein and 
vegetable sectors. These investments are designed to 
cater to the diverse preferences and needs of custom-
ers and consumers in various markets.

Expansion in Financing

Nadec aims to diversify its funding sources and utilize 
them to support geographic and sectoral expansion 
projects, as well as to enhance distribution channels. 
This strategic approach continued in 2024, with dedi-
cated capital allocations aligned with the company’s 
growth objectives.

Sectoral
Expansion

Production
ExpansionAgricultural

Expansion

Distribution
Scope

Expansion

Financial
Expansion

Geographic
Expansion

Pillars of The New Strategy
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Strategic Partnership to Establish 
a Livestock Company (March 2024)
Nadec signed a partnership agreement with the 
United Feed Company to establish a limited liability 
company specializing in intensive livestock farming 
(sheep and goats) and red meat production. This part-
nership aims to contribute to achieving self-sufficien-
cy in the protein sector and strengthening food secu-
rity in the Kingdom by adopting global best practices 
in livestock development.

Expansion in Storage and Cooling 
Facilities (July 2024)
Nadec entered into a long-term lease agreement with 
Riyadh Development Company to rent cold and frozen 
storage warehouses in Riyadh Development Market, 
covering an area of 27,000 square meters. This ini-
tiative reflects nadec’s commitment to enhancing its 
logistical infrastructure to support its growing opera-
tions in the food sector.

Fruitful Strategic Developments
Nadec's activities and investments in 2024 demonstrate its commitment to enhancing food security in the 
Kingdom. This includes expanding red meat production, developing logistical infrastructure, broadening col-
laboration with other companies in the food sector, and diversifying investments in this vital industry.

SAR 90 Million Investment in Red 
Meat Production (September 2024)
Nadec announced a significant expansion in red meat 
production with an investment of SAR 90 Million. This 
investment represents a major step toward achieving 
the company’s goals of boosting local red meat pro-
duction and contributing to the Kingdom’s food se-
curity.

Full-Scale Red Meat Production 
Within Five Years (September 2024)
Nadec’s CEO announced the company’s plans to 
achieve full-scale production in its red meat project 
gradually over the next five years. This announcement 
reflects nadec’s commitment to its strategic objec-
tives in the protein sector over the medium term.

Strategic Memorandum of 
Understanding with Panda 
(August 2024)
Nadec and Panda Retail signed a strategic Memoran-
dum of Understanding aimed at strengthening collab-
oration in the food products sector. This agreement is 
expected to expand the distribution of nadec prod-
ucts, reaching a wider segment of consumers.
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Market Overview

Overview of the Dairy Market and Its 
Derivatives 
In 2024, the Saudi dairy market and its derivatives witnessed im-
proved performance, marked by an increase in demand compared to 
2023. This growth aligns with findings from leading global economic 
research firms specializing in market analysis. Increased household 
spending, driven by rising employment rates, contributed to this posi-
tive trend. Additionally, the establishment of numerous regional com-
pany headquarters in Riyadh resulted in a higher number of expatri-
ates in the country, further boosting local consumption.

The market also benefited from the influx of tourists to Saudi Arabia, 
which positively impacted food service sales. The Kingdom actively 
seeks to attract more international visitors as part of its Vision 2030 
plan, which emphasizes economic and social reform. For instance, the 
Hajj season, held from June 14 to 19, 2024, brought approximately 1.8 
million pilgrims, significantly increasing demand for dairy products 
such as milk and yogurt.

Dominant Distribution Channels in the 
Saudi Market
Supermarkets and hypermarkets continue to dominate as the prima-
ry distribution channels for dairy products and alternatives in Saudi 
Arabia. These outlets attract consumers with their extensive product 
ranges and competitive promotional offers. Additionally, e-commerce 
is experiencing significant growth, driven by the convenience of shop-
ping through various apps and websites.

Discount retailers have also gained momentum by expanding their 
product portfolios, appealing especially to budget-conscious shop-
pers seeking affordable options and value for money. This shift reflects 
evolving consumer preferences toward convenient online shopping, 
competitive pricing, and diverse product options.

Dairy Market Projections Until 2029
The Saudi dairy market is projected to witness ac-
celerated growth over the next five years, extending 
through 2029. This growth is closely tied to demo-
graphic and social shifts in the Kingdom, including 
steady population growth and an increase in the 
participation of Saudi men and women in the work-
force. These factors are expected to boost demand 
for dairy products, increase household spending, 
and significantly expand the local market, further 
driving economic growth.

In terms of product development, future trends indi-
cate that consumers’ shift toward healthier dietary 
patterns will be a key driver for dairy companies to 
innovate and launch new products in the local mar-
ket. Projections also suggest increasing demand, 
particularly among younger consumers, for organic 
products, nutrient-fortified items, high-protein op-
tions, and lactose-free alternatives.
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Operating Review

Dairy Products
Nadec’s leading dairy sector delivered solid sales and revenue performance in 2024, benefiting from the 
strong economic recovery in our key markets. The sector recorded revenues of approximately SAR 2.6 billion, 
reflecting stable performance compared to approximately SAR 2.7 billion in 2023. This performance under-
scores the sector’s continued resilience and contribution throughout the year.

The expansion of sales and distribution outlets, which reached 4,700 points of sale, contributed to higher net 
profits and increased sales. Dairy products accounted for 81.5% of Nadec’s total annual revenue, driven by 
strong demand for newly introduced products. These included a variety of consumer-friendly packaging sizes 
and the addition of new offerings within the dairy category, meeting consumer expectations and preferences.

Expansion Of Dairy Products
In line with Nadec’s commitment to meeting customer expectations and delivering innovative products, 2024 
witnessed the expansion of a range of dairy products, the variety of choices available to consumers. This ex-
pansion reaffirms Nadec’s dedication to continuous innovation and the delivery of high-quality products that 
enhance the customer experience. The newly introduced products include: 

�� Ayran laban drink with cucumber and mint

�� Nadec high protein milk range

�� Expansion of greek yoghurt range

�� Low-fat cheese category

�� Lactose free full fat yogurt

�� Lactose free full fat long-life milk

Market Share of Dairy Products in 2024
In 2024, Nadec achieved growth in the market share of its full-fat fresh 
cream, made from pure cow’s milk, catering to consumers seeking quality 
and rich flavor. The market share increased by 0.6%, driven by the enhance-
ment of Nadec’s 30% fat fresh cream, which now offers an ideal creamy 
texture suitable for a wide range of recipes, including cooking, baking, and 
dessert preparation. Nadec Fresh Cream remains a perfect choice for adding 
a rich and indulgent touch to everyday dishes.

15.1%
Nadec Fresh Milk 

 Held a 15.1% market share, ranking second in the market.

13.4%
Nadec Fresh Cream

Recorded a 13.4% market share, ranking second in the market.

16.8%
Nadec Yogurt

 Achieved a 16.8% market share, ranking second in the market.
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Top-Selling Nadec Dairy Products
Long-Life Milk
Nadec’s 1-liter full-fat long-life milk is one of the company’s most in-demand products, accounting for 11% of 
total dairy sector sales. Known for its exceptional quality, this milk is made from 100% fresh cow’s milk and 
undergoes ultra-high temperature (UHT) processing, ensuring a longer shelf life without the need for preser-
vatives. Enriched with vitamins A and D3 to enhance its nutritional value, it contains a minimum fat content of 
3%, making it an ideal choice for families seeking a nutritious and delicious milk option. 

Nadec Dairy Revenue in 2024 vs. 2023

Long-Life Dairy Products
(SAR million)

836.32024

833.22023

Cheese & Butter Products
(SAR million)

374.62024

353.62023

Change (%)

+0.4%

Change (%)

+5.9%
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Juice Products
Nadec’s juice sector delivered outstanding performance in 2024, securing the second-largest market share 
locally and generating revenues of SAR 231.4 million. The company maintained its leadership in this position 
compared to 2023, demonstrating its ability to sustain growth in a competitive market while aiming for further 
expansion, reaching new consumer sectors, and strengthening its premium juice portfolio.

Innovation played a key role in maintaining Nadec’s competitive edge in the juice market. The company intro-
duced newly designed consumer-friendly packaging, which received positive feedback from customers. This 
enhancement further reinforced Nadec’s position in the juice category, offering unique and distinctive flavors.

The juice sector contributed 2.47% of Nadec’s total profits in 2024, driven by strong demand for newly intro-
duced products such as strawberry mojito juice and apricot mixed fruit juice, both of which gained signifi-
cant popularity among consumers. This success was further supported by the introduction of various consum-
er-friendly packaging sizes and the expansion of the juice portfolio with new product offerings, strengthening 
Nadec’s presence in this dynamic sector.

New Juice Products

As part of Nadec’s ongoing commitment to delivering innovative products that meet customer expectations, a 
new range of juices was introduced in 2024. These additions aim to enhance flavor variety and bring a refresh-
ing and distinctive touch to the consumer experience. The newly launched juice products include:

�� Strawberry Mojito Nectar Juice (180ml - 1.3L)

�� Seasonal Flavours Nectar Juice (180ml - 1.3L)

Top-Selling Nadec Juice Product - Mango Nectar

Nadec’s 1.3L Mango Nectar is one of the company’s most in-demand juice products, contributing 9% of total 
juice sector sales. This nectar is an ideal choice for mango lovers, offering a balanced blend of natural mango 
pulp and a mix of fruit concentrates, including apple, grape, and pear, delivering a unique and refreshing taste. 
With 80% fruit content, no added sugar, and fortified with Vitamin C and other natural ingredients, Nadec 
Mango Nectar stands out as a wholesome and flavorful option.

Market Share of Juice Products in 2024 

Nadec’s juice products held a  
19.5% 
market share, ranking second in the market.

Top-Selling Nadec Juice Product

Mango Nectar
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Olive Oil Products 
Nadec’s olive oil sector delivered outstanding performance in 2024, achieving the highest sales, revenue, and 
market share locally. The sector recorded revenues of SAR 115.1 million, with Nadec advancing to the top mar-
ket position, up from second place in 2023. This achievement reflects the exceptional quality of Nadec’s olive 
oil, which has earned numerous local and international awards over the years. Looking ahead, Nadec remains 
committed to sustaining its leadership and expanding its consumer base.

Nadec’s market share in the olive oil sector reached 14.7%, solidifying its position as one of the leaders in the 
olive oil sector locally. This success stems from the company’s strategic initiatives to strengthen its olive oil 
sector, including expanding distribution channels and investing in the increased production capacity of  olive 
trees. Additionally, Nadec implements rigorous and exceptional quality tests, conducted both seasonally and 
throughout the year, to ensure consistent productivity and superior quality in the olives it cultivates.

Furthermore, Nadec's organic extra virgin olive oil, our flagship product, leads the local market with a share of 
45.8%. Its exceptional quality, coupled with Nadec's dedication to organic farming throughout the production 
process, has solidified it as the top choice for consumers.

Top-Selling Olive Oil Product in Nadec 500 ml Olive Oil

Olive oil accounted for 3.6% of Nadec’s total revenue in 2024, underscoring its growing significance within the 
company’s portfolio. Additionally, the 500 ml olive oil is the top-selling product in nadec's olive oil category.

Nadec's organic olive oil contains a high percentage of oleic acid (a type of monounsaturated fatty acid), 
according to a report published by the World Health Organization (WHO) in 2020, which links it to a reduced 
risk of heart disease. Additionally, nadec's organic olive oil is distinguished by having 30% more antioxidants 
compared to traditional olive oils, which supports resistance to inflammation and early aging.

Nadec Olive Oil Revenue in 2024 vs. 2023

Olive Oil Products
(SAR million)

115.12024

68.62023

Change (%)

+67.8

Organic Extra Virgin Olive Oil Market 
Share for the year 2024 

The market share for nadec's organic 

extra virgin olive oil reached 

45.8% 
 Ranking 1st in the market

Top-Selling Olive Oil 
Product in Nadec

500 
ml Olive Oil
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Calves and Protein Products
Nadec’s Protein sector experienced significant growth in 2024, recording a notable increase in sales and reve-
nue. This growth was driven by the company's strategic expansions, including the establishment of dedicated 
local slaughterhouses, enhancement of distribution networks, and investment in increased capacity by sourc-
ing high-quality red meat from various countries.

As a result, sector revenue rose to SAR 180.3 million, up from SAR 83.6 million in 2023, reflecting an increase 
of approximately SAR 96.7 million or 114.9%. The protein sector accounted for 5.6% of Nadec’s total sales, un-
derscoring the positive impact of expansion initiatives. The company’s investments in, expansion of network 
distribution, and increased production capacity played a key role in achieving this remarkable growth in the 
protein sector.

Top-Selling Nadec Red Meat Product Holstein Veal

As part of Nadec’s commitment to meeting customer needs and delivering high-quality products, Holstein veal 
accounts for 27% of total red meat product demand. Known for its premium quality, Holstein veal provides 
versatile options for a variety of meat-based dishes, making it a preferred choice among many customers.

Nadec remains dedicated to offering the best food products, with a strong emphasis on quality and variety, 
ensuring it meets diverse tastes and dietary preferences.

New Products in 2024

As part of our commitment to meeting customer expectations and offering a diverse selection to suit their 
needs, Nadec continued to expand its portfolio of innovative products in 2024. We introduced a new range of 
products catering to various tastes, while also enhancing the sector with high-yield cattle breeds, supporting 
consumers’ healthy choices:

�� Holstein Veal

�� Angus Beef

�� Topside Beef

�� South African Lamb

�� Australian Lamb

�� Variety of Beef Cuts (Tenderloin, Striploin, Ribs)

Nadec Calves and Protein Revenue in 2024 vs.2023
(SAR million)

180.32024

83.92023

Change (%)

+114.9

Top-Selling Nadec Red Meat Product

Holstein Veal
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Premium Products

Nadec Organic Extra Virgin Olive Oil – Our 
Flagship Product (Ranked No.1 Locally)
Since the launch of Nadec’s Organic Extra Virgin Olive Oil, we have been 
committed to ensuring that our flagship product combines exceptional 
quality with the highest health and environmental standards. Our goal 
was to create a product that stands out locally with unique attributes, 
making it a strong competitor in the organic olive oil market.

This commitment has been clearly reflected in Nadec’s market 
leadership, as our product has rightfully secured the No.1 po-
sition in local market share for olive oil. This success has also 
extended beyond the local market, earning global consumer 
preference and receiving prestigious international awards, 
further reinforcing its superior quality and excellence.

From Our Certified Organic Farms
The exceptional quality of Nadec’s Organic Extra Virgin Olive Oil begins at the very 
first stage of cultivation. Our olive oil is produced from certified organic olive 
farms, where strict organic farming practices are applied. These practices prohibit 
the use of chemical pesticides and synthetic fertilizers, adhering to the standards 
of the International Federation of Organic Agriculture Movements (IFOAM).

This commitment to organic cultivation has had a significant impact on the qual-
ity of our olives, resulting in higher antioxidant content compared to convention-
ally grown olives.

Acidity Below 0.8%
In the next stage of production, Nadec’s Olive Oil stands out through its cold extraction 
process, carried out at temperatures not exceeding 27°C. This technique preserves 
natural compounds, including polyphenols and vitamin E, which are typically lost in 
high-temperature processing. According to the International Olive Council (IOC), cold-
pressed olive oils maintain an acidity level below 0.8%, a key indicator of extra virgin 
olive oil quality. By adhering to these rigorous standards, Nadec ensures superior purity, 
exceptional nutritional value, and a rich, authentic taste, making it a premium choice for 
health-conscious consumers.

Commitment to Quality and 
Production Standards
Nadec’s Organic Extra Virgin Olive Oil achieves high quality by 
adhering to strict standards, including cultivating olive trees 
in fertile soil and maintaining optimal climate conditions. As 
part of this commitment, Nadec has strategically planted its 
olive trees in Al-Jouf, Saudi Arabia, a region known for its ide-
al environment for olive farming. This approach aligns with 
recommendations from the International Olive Institute (IOI), 
which emphasizes that the distinct flavor of extra virgin olive 
oil serves as a key indicator of natural purity, free from chemical 
processing or improper storage.

Sustainability-Driven Olive Oil
Nadec’s olive oil production is guided by sustainable policies, 
ensuring its distinction in the market. The company has adopted 
renewable energy solutions in its manufacturing facilities and 
implemented agricultural waste recycling initiatives. As a result 
of this environmental impact, Nadec has been awarded the EU 
Organic Certification, reinforcing its commitment to reducing its 
carbon footprint in line with a report by the United Nations En-
vironment Programme (UNEP).
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Nadec Long-Life Milk–The 
Taste of Health  
Nadec’s Long-Life UHT Milk is one of the company’s flag-
ship products, offering a unique balance of premium 
quality and excellent nutritional value. Made from 100% 
fresh milk, without any added milk powder, it has right-
fully earned its title as "The Taste of Health" among our 
dairy products, setting it apart from competitors in the lo-
cal market. Processed using Ultra-High Temperature (UHT) 
technology, it ensures an extended shelf life without pre-
servatives, making it an ideal choice for families seeking 
safe, nutritious milk that retains its essential nutrients 
while allowing for long-term storage without refrigeration.

Long-Life Milk with a Variety of 
Choices
Nadec offers a diverse range of Long-Life Milk to cater to 
different consumer needs, including full-fat, low-fat, and 
skimmed milk. Additionally, the company provides a lac-
tose-free option for individuals with lactose intolerance, 
ensuring the same nutritional value and delicious taste. 
To further enhance consumer choices, Nadec has intro-
duced its Long-Life Milk in a variety of flavors, including 
banana, vanilla, chocolate, and strawberry, offering a de-
lightful selection to suit different preferences.

Easy Storage  
Nadec’s Long-Life Milk offers the convenience of 
room-temperature storage before opening the pack-
age, making it an ideal choice for families looking for a 
long-lasting milk option without refrigeration. Thanks 
to its UHT processing, it remains safe for consumption 
for up to 6–9 months without the need for cooling. 
This extended shelf life is made possible by its sterile, 
airtight Tetra Pak packaging, which effectively protects 
the milk from light and air, preserving its freshness 
and nutritional value.

Ultra-High Temperature 
Sterilization & Superior Quality
Nadec upholds the highest quality standards in the 
production of its Long-Life Milk, utilizing advanced 
processing technologies to ensure a safe and nutri-
tious product. Enriched with vitamins A and D3, Na-
dec’s UHT milk delivers enhanced nutritional value.

Manufactured using Ultra-High Temperature (UHT) Pro-
cessing, the milk is heated to 135–150°C for just 2–5 
seconds, effectively eliminating harmful microorgan-
isms without compromising its nutritional integrity. This 
method better preserves fat-soluble vitamins compared 
to traditional pasteurization, ensuring that Nadec’s UHT 
milk retains 90% of its full milk protein content, making 
it a nutrient-rich and high-quality choice for consumers.
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Digital Transformation 
and Investment

Since announcing its ambitious digital transformation strategy for the coming years, nadec has focused on key 
priorities to drive this initiative forward. The strategy focuses on developing food projects rooted in quality, 
sustainability, and operational excellence, localizing advanced technologies and modern methods in the food 
industry, and training and developing national talents and competencies to contribute to achieving self-suffi-
ciency in line with Vision 2030 and its goals for food security.

The digital transformation project at nadec aimed to create a unified source of information to assess various 
areas and enable the seamless integration of its business processes. This initiative allows for real-time data 
access related to transactions and inventory across multiple departments. The digital transformation projects 
included enterprise resource planning (ERP) systems and contributed to developing a precise and comprehen-
sive roadmap for business process improvements and strategies.

Nadec’s Digital Transformation Strategy in 2024: Chains of Success
During 2024, nadec successfully completed more than 120 digitization projects, including enhancements to 
the SAP S4HANA  system and the digital and technological services it offers. These advancements contributed 
to the success of new services and operations, including business processes such as finance, procurement, 
warehousing, production, quality control, sales, transportation, and factory maintenance.

Nadec's Digital Transformation Strategy

Expansion into new 
growth areas

Strong focus on 
strengthening core 

activities

Technology 
enhancements, with 

a focus on digitization

Sales Quality Control
Factory 

Maintenance

HR Protein 

Supply Chain Production

Agriculture
Governance, Risk, 
and Compliance

Finance

Sectors Benefiting from Digital Transformation within nadec
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Upgrading Supervisory Control Systems 
and Operations at nadec
In 2024, nadec enhanced its quality and control systems by integrating SAP S/4HANA modules to improve 
governance, automation, and operational efficiency. Key upgrades included Master Data Governance (MDG) 
for data accuracy and GRC modules for stronger risk management. nadec also upgraded its SCADA and OT infra-
structure for improved industrial control, automation, and real-time monitoring.

To bolster security, CCTV monitoring and access control systems were deployed across operational sites, while 
cybersecurity efforts focused on IT and OT security, including the implementation of a Security Operations 
Center (SOC).

Nadec ensured compliance with the Personal Data Protection Law (PDPL) and integrated necessary security 
controls. Additionally, Phase 2 of the electronic invoicing system streamlined financial workflows and ensured 
regulatory compliance. These efforts reinforce nadec’s commitment to operational excellence, security, and 
compliance.

Green Footprint
Project to Reduce

Paper Usage

120 Digital
Transformation

Projects:
SAP / SCADA / Automation

Development and
Implementation of

Smart Irrigation
Systems in the

Agricultural Sector

Supply Chain
Automation and

Automatic Replenishment
for 38 Distribution

Centers

Automation and Digital 
Transformation in Supply 
Chain and Agriculture Sectors
Nadec has continued to lead in digital transformation 
by leveraging the latest technologies to enhance sus-
tainability and operational efficiency. This progress 
has significantly impacted the supply chain and agri-
culture sectors through smart irrigation systems and 
supply chain automation, reducing manual interven-
tion and boosting overall performance.

Supply Chain Automation
Nadec implemented an automated inventory replen-
ishment system across 38 distribution centers, im-
proving product demand planning, supply accuracy, 
production, and distribution operations. This initia-
tive ensured the continuous availability of products 
to meet consumer needs effectively.

Smart Irrigation Technology 
Smart irrigation technologies in the agricultural sec-
tor introduced a significant shift in resource manage-
ment, reducing manual intervention, improving wa-
ter-use efficiency, and increasing crop productivity.
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Positive Outcomes of nadec’s Digital Investment Projects 

1
Digital Investment for Revenue Growth

Nadec’s digital transformation projects prioritized a 
key factor: their contribution to revenue growth by 
improving operational efficiency and supporting mar-
keting and sales strategies. By leveraging data analyt-
ics and predictive tools (SAP S/4HANA / SAP Analytics 
Cloud (SAC) / SAP Datasphere / SCADA), the company 
enhanced its ability to respond to customer needs 
and expand its consumer base.

2
Net Profit Margin

Another critical determinant for digital transforma-
tion projects was their ability to improve net profit 
margins. This was achieved by reducing operational 
costs and optimizing resource management through 
supply chain automation systems. These systems 
minimized human errors, accelerated processes, and 
resulted in significant time and cost savings, leading 
to sustainable profits.

3
B2B Application Launch

Nadec has launched a B2B application, which is de-
signed to facilitate commercial transactions between 
nadec and its distributors and wholesalers. This was 
made possible   with the development of a dedicated 
contact center to handle their inquiries and to drive 
efficient marketing implementations.

4
Sustainability Metrics

Digital transformation initiatives laid a strong foun-
dation for achieving sustainability goals at nadec. 
Smart irrigation technologies improved water and en-
ergy efficiency, while waste recycling initiatives were 
enhanced. Additionally, the company launched the 
"Green Footprint" project to reduce paper usage and 
transition toward paperless operations, streamlining 
document management processes.
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Increased Crop 
Productivity and Quality

Reduced Water Usage
Lowered Energy Consumption

Minimized Paper Usage

Nadec: Digital Transformation 
Strengthening Transparency
In 2024, nadec focused on enhancing its relation-
ships with both customers and suppliers through 
two major initiatives:

1. 	Enhancing Customer Support
B2B Application: nadec launched a dedicated Busi-
ness-to-Business (B2B) application to facilitate trans-
actions between the company and its clients, includ-
ing distributors and wholesalers. This application 
streamlines ordering, purchasing, and account man-
agement, providing a better customer experience. 
Additionally, a dedicated contact center was estab-
lished to address customer inquiries.

2.  Increasing Supplier Transparency
Ariba SLP System: nadec implemented the Ariba SLP 
system, specialized in enhancing supplier transpar-
ency and performance. This system strengthens na-
dec's market presence through increasing supplier 
transparency.

Sustainability Achievements at nadec Resulting 
from Digital Transformation 

Contract Farming: nadec’s 
Leading Investment  
Nadec has strengthened its commitment to con-
tract farming by integrating it into the SAP system, 
encompassing stages such as contract data registra-
tion, monitoring execution, managing payments to 
farmers, and tracking the quantities and quality of 
received crops. This approach has enhanced financial 
oversight of external sources and has led to.

�� Better Cost Monitoring

�� Improved Cash Flow Management

�� Increased Transparency and Accountability 
through tracking financial processes and ensur-
ing contract compliance.

Digital Transformation Excellence certification 
and awards  at nadec 2024

Award for "Best 
Achievement in Operational 
Management Program"
Received this award in collaboration with SAP 
Signavio at the BTOES Awards, recognizing our 
success in empowering business users and im-
proving operational excellence.

Issued Date: May, 2024

ISO9001:2015 Certification for Quality Systems in 
Technology and Digital Division  
Awarded for our Quality Management System (QMS) in the Digital & 
Technology department, emphasizing nadec’s high standards across in-
frastructure, applications, strategy, governance, and digitalization ser-
vices.

Issued Date: October, 2024.

ISO27001:2022 Certification for 
Information Security Management
Achieved for the Management of Information Security across food pro-
cessing and agricultural activities, covering dairy, long-life dairy, cheese 
and butter, fresh juice, olives, protein products, and more. This certifica-
tion highlights our rigorous commitment to information security.

Issued Date: April, 2024
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CFO's Message

Net profit rose by

156%
from

302 to 775
Million SAR

Debt-to-equity ratio is 
improved, standing at

0.05
Reflecting 
financial 
stability

NADEC 2024: 
Expanding Horizons 
for a Prosperous 
Future

Mr. Hassan Akrouq
Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to present to you the 
financial performance for the fiscal year 
2024. This year marked a significant mile-
stone as we successfully expanded into 
new market segments, driving revenue di-
versification and strengthening our com-
petitive position and have opened new 
avenues for growth, reinforcing our com-
mitment to long-term value creation.

Financial Performance Overview:

This year, nadec delivered strong finan-
cial results, reflecting our robust busi-
ness model and disciplined execution.

Total revenue increased by 0.7% from SAR 
3,197 Million to SAR 3,220 Million and our 
net profit rose by 156.6% from 302 Mil-
lion to 775 Million, supported by opera-
tional efficiencies and strategic cost man-
agement. 

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Deprecia-
tion, and Amortization (EBITDA) stood at 
SAR 650 Million, representing a margin of 
20%, demonstrating the strength of our 
core operations. 

Additionally, our free cash flow remained 
strong at SAR 1,365 Million, enabling us 
to invest in future growth while maintain-
ing a healthy balance sheet.

We also made significant progress in 
strengthening our financial position by 
reducing our total debt from SAR 376 Mil-
lion to SAR 208 Million. Our debt-to-eq-
uity ratio improved from 0.11 to 0.05, re-
flecting enhanced financial stability and 
more room for growth.

Looking Ahead

As we enter the next fiscal year, our focus 
remains on delivering sustainable growth, 
enhancing shareholder value, and capital-
izing on emerging opportunities. We will 
continue to invest in innovation, opera-
tional excellence, and strategic partner-
ships to drive long-term success.

Acknowledgments

I extend my sincere gratitude to our board 
of directors, shareholders, employees, 
and business partners for their unwaver-
ing support and trust. Together, we will 
continue building a financially strong and 
prosperous future for nadec.
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Financial Performance

Statement of Financial Position as of 31 December 2024

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 2023
Change 

%
2022 2021 2020

Non - Current Asset 2,818.9 2,694.9 4.6 2,706.8 2,744.5 2,775.0

Current Assets 2,885.0 2,357.5 22.4 1,114.7 1,145.2 1,100.6

Total Assets 5,703.9 5,052.5 12.9 3,821.5 3,889.7 3,875.6

Non-Current Liabilities 162.2 284.5 (43.0) 1,089.5 1,363.9 1,082.2

Current Liabilities 1,244.8 1,175.1 5.9 1,436.9 1,330.0 1,315.1

Total Liabilities 1,407.0 1,459.6 (3.6) 2,526.4 2,693.9 2,397.3

Shareholders’ Equity 4,296.9 3,592.8 19.6 1,295.1 1,195.8 1,478.3

Total Shareholders’ Equity and 
Liabilities

5,703.9 5,052.5 12.9 3,821.5 3,889.7 3,875.6

Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31 December 2024

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 2023
Change 

%
2022 2021 2020

Revenue 3,220.4 3,196.9 0.7 2,694.2 2,272.3 2,303.1 

Cost of Sales (2,028.1) (2,013.2) 0.7 (1,885.9) (1,641.5) (1,577.2)

Gross Profit 1,192.3 1,183.7 0.7 808.3 630.8 725.8 

Operating Profit / (Loss) 389.4 344.5 14.3 147.0 (213.3) 84.6

Profit/ (Loss) for the year 774.6 302.1 156.5 95.5 (285.0) 35.7

Total comprehensive income for 
the year

705.9 312.0 126.2 99.3 (282.4) 37.7

*Certain of the previous years amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year.

 Material Variances in Operational Results
Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 2023 Change Change Rate

Sales/ Revenue 3,220.4 3,197.0 23.4 0.73

Cost of revenue (2,028.1) (2,013.2)  (14.9) 0.74

Total profit 774.6  302.1  472.6 156.5

Other operational Revenues 472.0   25.6  446.3 1740.1

Other operational expenses  (86.7)   (64.2)  (22.5) 35.1

Operational Profit 389.4  340.6   48.8 14.3

movement of Cash Flows for the year ended on December 31 2024

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 2023
Change 

%
2022 2021 2020

Profit before Zakat 827.1 290.3 185.0 101.5 (245.3) 41.4

Cash flows from operating 
activities

705.3 699.3 0.9 477.1 324.6 426.9

Net cash flows from operating 
activities

670.0 654.7 2.3 451.8 255.6 443.3

Net cash flows used in investing 
activities

81.8 (756.5) (110.8) (243.0) (324.8) (216.9)

Net cash flows from (used in) 
financing activities

(221.1) 824.7 (126.8) (177.5) 82.4 (219.7)

Net change in cash and cash 
equivalent 

530.6 722.8 (26.6) 31.2 13.2 6.7

Cash and cash and cash equivalent 
at beginning of the year

834.7 112.8 640.2 81.9 68.7 62.0

Cash and cash and cash equivalent 
at end of the year

1,365.4 834.7 63.6 112.8 81.9 68.7
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Key Performance Indicators 
Indicators 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Return on revenue 24.1% 9.4% 3.5% (12.5%) 1.5%

Return on equity 18.0% 8.4% 7.4% (23.8%) 2.4%

Loan-to-equity ratio 4.8% 10.5% 117.8% 136.9% 100.8%

Revenue growth rate 0.7% 18.7% 18.6% (1.3%) 3.5%

The ratio of operating profit to revenue 12.1% 10.8% 5.5% (9.4%) 3.7%

Number of shares (million) 301.6 301.6 101.6 101.6 101.6 

Earnings (loss) per share (SِِِAR) 2.57 1.77 0.94 (2.81) 0.35 
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Operating expenses

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024
% on 
sales

2023
% on 
total

Change 
%

Cost of Sales 2,028.1 63.0 2,013.2 63.0 0.7

Selling and Marketing expenses 531.8 16.5 559.6 17.5 (5.0)

Impairment Losses on Trade and other 
Receivables

(2.9) (0.1) 48.9 1.5 (105.9)

General and administrative expenses 234.8 7.3 213.1 6.7 10.2

Other operating expenses (income). 32.0 1.0 (2.4) -0.1 (1411.0)

Write off/ impairment losses on property, plant 
and equipment

7.2 0.2 24.0 0.8 (70.0)

Total operating expenses 2,831.0 87.9 2,856.3 89.3 (0.9)

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024
% on 
sales

2023
% on 
total

Change 
%

Direct production costs 1,475.2 45.8 1,544.3 48.3 (4.5)

Employees costs 522.7 16.2 502.2 15.7 4.1

Marketing expenses 189.6 5.9 182.6 5.7 3.8

Operating and Administrative expenses 365.6 11.4 395.7 12.4 (7.6)

Depreciation of property and right-of-use assets 245.9 7.6 233.9 7.3 5.1

Other operating expenses (income) 32.0 1.0 (2.4) (0.1) (1411.0)

Total operating expenses 2,831.0 87.9 2,856.3 89.3 (0.9)
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Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 % on sales 2023 % on total Change %

Revenues 3,220.4 100.0 3,196.9 100.0 0.7

Operational costs  

Cost of Sales 2,028.1 63.0 2013.2 63.0 0.7

Selling and Marketing expenses 531.8 16.5 559.6 17.5 (5.0)

Impairment Losses on Trade and other Receivables (2.87) (0.1) 48.8 1.5 (105.9)

General and administrative expenses 234.8 7.3 213.1 6.7 10.2

Other operating expenses (income). 32.0 1.0 (2.4) (0.1) (1411.0)

Write off/ impairment losses on property, plant 
and equipment

7.2 0.2 24.0 0.8 (70.0)

Total operating expenses 2,831.0 87.9 2,856.3 89.3 (0.9)

Operating profit 389.4 12.1 340.6 10.7 14.3

Total operating expenses for this year decreased by 0. 9% compared to last year due to the decrease in the 
selling and marketing expenses compared to the last year by 5.0% mainly due to the decrease in repairs and 
maintenance cost and trade marketing. General and administrative expenses increased by 10.2% compared to 
last year due to increase in employee benefit expenses due to new projects. The Impairment losses decreased 
by 105.9% compared to last year mainly due to the provision of SAR 40.5 million made last year for the other 
receivables which are doubtful and no such provision in the current year. Other operating expenses increased 
due to the previous year company received SAR 19.5 million as one-time grant for the animal feed purchased in 
previous years but no such income in the current year.

Despite the decrease in the operating expenses by 0.9%, for this year compared to last year, the operating 
profit for the current year increased compared to last year by 14.3% because of the increase in revenues for 
this year by 0.7% and decrease in selling and marketing by 4.9% compared to last year and the decrease in 
provisions for prepayments and other receivables.

Working Capital Development 
Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Current Assets 2,885.0 2,414.8 1114.7 1145.2 1100.6 

Current liabilities 1,244.8 1,232.4 1,436.9 1,330.0 1,315.1

Working capital 1,640.2 1,182.4 (322.2) (184.8) (214.5)

The surplus in the working capital of the company during the year 2024 reached 1,640.2 million, because of the 
increase in cash and cash equivalents.

Details of loan movements from local banks with Murabaha 
contracts (deferred sale) and the balance as of 31 December 2024  

Figures 
are in 

(Millions) 
SAR

Opening balance 2024 Closing Balance 2024

Dura-
tion 

of the 
loanCredit 

limit

Prin-
cipal 
of the 
loan

Interests 
due

Opening 
balance

Addi-
tions 

during 
the 
year 
2023

Pay-
ments 
during 

the year 
2023

Prin-
cipal 
of the 
loan

Interests 
due

Clos-
ing 
bal-
ance

SNB 299.0 - - - 219.8 (219.8) (218.0) (1.8) - 

Al Rajhi 
Bank

350.0 10.0 0.13 10.13 100.8 (50.8) (50.0) (0.83) 60.1 
1-3 

months

Saudi 
British 
Bank 

394.1 323.7 5.4 329.2 623.7 (887.8) (868.7) (19.1) 65.1 
1-3 

months

Riyad 
Bank

300.0 33.0 0.47 33.47 134.1 (33.6) (33.0) (0.61) -

Banque 
Saudi 
Fransi

290.0 - - - 667.7 (587.6) (582.0) (5.6) 80.1 
1-3 

months

Bank 
AlJazira

100.0 - - - 185.9 (185.9) (185.0) (0.9) -

Total 
Balance 

1,733.1 1,798.2 (1,965.6) (1,936.7) (28.9) 205.3 

The above table represents all loans granted to the company by local banks in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
and in accordance with the term sale agreements concluded with the company and those banks, in accordance 
with Islamic law. And according to payment schedules that have been previously agreed upon with those banks 
and according to the loan term shown in the above table.
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Statement of outstanding loans from local banks 
and their maturity dates 

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 2023 Change %

less than one year 205.3 227.6 9.8

From one year to two years - 145.3 (100)

From two to five years - - -

more than five years - - -

Total balance 205.3 372.7 (44.9%)

Movement of Agricultural Development Fund loans  

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2024 2023 Change %

Opening Balance 3.5 97.7 96.4

Additions during the year - 54.8 (100.0)

Payments during the year 1.0 149.1 99.3

Total balance 2.5 3.5 28.6

During the current year, the Group was granted an additional short term loan from the Agricultural Develop-
ment Fund with a total value of SAR 100 million and this loan was fully repaid during the current year. The 
balance of these loans from Agricultural Development Fund on 31 December 2024 amounted to SAR 2.5 million 
(31 December 2023: SAR 3.5 million).

Government Payments in 2024 

A statement
Payment 

(Millions) SAR
Due Balance

(Million SAR)
Brief description Reasons

Visas, passports, 
labor office and 
municipal fees

45.1 -

Visas, employment 
office fees, 

residency renewal, 
and municipal fees

Value added tax 197.5 4.7
The value-added 

tax paid during the 
year 2024.

VAT in December 
2024, to be paid in 

January 2025

Zakat and with-
holding tax

13.9 87.2

Zakat paid for 
previous years and 

withholding tax 
during the year 

2023.

Zakat provision 
(note 32)

Social insurances 21.8 1.0
Amounts of insur-
ances paid during 

the year 2024.

December 2024 
Social insurance, 

to be paid in Janu-
ary 2025

customs fees 18.1 -
Customs duties 
paid during the 

year 2024.

Customs declara-
tion -2024

Total 296.4 92.9
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Risk Management Methodology

Sustain and enhance Risk Management Function
Nadec’s risk management methodology is built on four (4) fundamental pillars, activated through key enablers:

Aspirations 

Vision
To make nadec a risk-intelligent and resilient 

organization.

Mission
To nurture and foster risk culture and provide 
awareness, governance and mechanism need-

ed for effective risk management

Pillars
Risk 

Awareness 
Risk 

Governance 
Risk 

Monitoring 
Risk Reporting 
and Escalation

Key Enablers 
People

 Oversight committees, exec-
utive management, the risk 
management team, gover-

nance and risk partners, and 
risk management owners.

Processes
A systematic application of man-

agement policies, procedures 
and practices to the tasks of com-
munication, consultation, estab-
lishing the context, identifying, 
analyzing, evaluating, treating, 
monitoring and reviewing risk.

Technology
 Implementation of advanced 

tools and automated risk man-
agement systems.

Nadec: Risk Governance 
 Aligned with industry best practices and global standards, nadec’s risk governance model follows a struc-
tured three-tiered framework to promote a comprehensive and proactive approach to risk management.

Risk Management Methodology 
Nadec's risk management system is inspired by the ISO 31000 standard and the Enterprise Risk Management 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Build-
ing on these globally recognized frameworks, we have developed a specialized risk management system tai-
lored to nadec's needs.

The company adopts a dynamic approach to risk management, addressing risks across multiple levels, in-
cluding strategic, operational, and specialized levels. nadec aspires to become risk intelligent and resilient 
organization that employs an updated risk management methodology, ensuring that responsibilities for these 
risks are clearly defined.

By continuously enhancing risk awareness, governance structures, and digital risk management capabilities, 
nadec is committed to building resilience, improving decision-making, and driving sustainable growth in an 
evolving business environment.

First Line:
Executive management, empow-
ered risk owners, and governance, 
risk, and compliance (GRC) part-
ners collaborate to identify, as-
sess, and mitigate risks within 
their operational areas.

Second Line:
Led by the VP of GRC & Legal, this 
layer consists of specialized risk 
management teams that provide 
structured mechanisms, tools, and 
continuous oversight to enhance 
risk governance and strengthen 
first-line functions.

Third Line:
Nadec, through its independent 
internal audit function, provides 
enhanced oversight, independent 
risk assessments, and ensures 
compliance with governance stan-
dards, maintaining accountability 
and risk transparency across the 
organization.
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Risk Governance Framework

Third Line Second Line First Line 

Board Level

Executive Level

Management  Level

Risks  Reporting

Training & 
Awareness 

Risk
Information 

Internal Audit

NADEC Board

Board
Committees

VP - GRC
& Legal

Executive
Management

Risk Owners

GRC Partners

Operational Governance

Corporate Governance

Corporate Risk
Management

Fraud Management

Business Continuity
Management

Internal Compliance

Regulatory Affairs

Cybersecurity

Contract Management

Investigations

Litigation

   Risks  Esclation

  Risks  O
versight 

Risk Management Process

Establish Context 

• Risk Criteria  

• Risk Scoring System

• Risk Assessment Matrix

Risk Identification 

• Brainstorming

• Checklists
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Risk Analysis

• Impact & Likelihood

• Effectiveness of Controls

Risk Evaluation

• Risk Heat Map

• Risk Indices

Communcation &

Consultation  

• Risk-based Decision

   Making

Monitoring & Review

• Key Risk Indicators (KRI) 

• Risk Treatment Tracking

• Risk Register

Risk Treatment 

• Business Impact Analysis

• Multi-Criteria Analysis

Recording and Reporting

• Review

• Follow-up

Risk
Identification

Risk
Analysis

Risk
Evaluation

Risk
Assessment 

Establish
Context 

Risk
Treatment  

Recording
and

Reporting 
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Potential Risks 
At nadec, we continuously study this evolving landscape and business environment to enhance our 
readiness to better address potential challenges and opportunities that may arise in the future. Below 
are some of the challenges and risks faced by the company:

1- Geopolitical Instability and 
Supply Chain Disruptions
Ongoing regional and global conflicts continue to 
impact energy prices, feedstock availability, and 
raw material costs (key components in dairy and ag-
ricultural production). Adding to that, disruptions 
in global supply chains can lead to delays in procur-
ing essential inputs such as animal feed, packag-
ing materials, and specialized equipment, affecting 
production efficiency and cost management.

To mitigate these risks, nadec actively diversifies 
sourcing strategies, strengthens local supplier 
partnerships, and enhances inventory manage-
ment. The company also monitors geopolitical de-
velopments and collaborates with industry stake-
holders to ensure supply chain resilience and 
business continuity in the face of external disrup-
tions.

2- Climate Change and 
Environmental Risks
The increasing effects of climate change pose a signif-
icant risk to agricultural sustainability and food pro-
duction in Saudi Arabia. Rising temperatures, irregular 
rainfall patterns, and extreme weather events can neg-
atively impact forage crop yields, livestock health, and 
milk production efficiency. Additionally, water scarci-
ty and desertification present ongoing challenges to 
sustainable farming and dairy operations.

To address these risks, nadec is actively investing in 
climate-resilient technologies, including advanced 
irrigation systems. The company also focuses on 
sustainable livestock management, renewable en-
ergy integration, and eco-friendly farming practices 
to reduce its environmental footprint while ensuring 
long-term productivity and food security.

3- Food Security and Agricultural 
Productivity
With Saudi Arabia’s growing population and in-
creasing demand for locally produced food, en-
suring agricultural efficiency and sustainability 
is a strategic priority for nadec. The challenges of 
limited arable land, water scarcity, and reliance on 
imported feed and raw materials require innova-
tive solutions to maintain stable production and 
supply chain resilience.

To strengthen domestic food security, nadec con-
tinues to optimize land use, implement high-effi-
ciency production systems, and invest in sustain-
able agricultural technologies. This includes smart 
farming and advanced dairy farming techniques to 
maximize output while minimizing environmental 
impact.

Additionally, with the support of the government, 
nadec actively enters into agreements with local 
farmers to enhance local agricultural capabilities. 
These collaborations aim to promote sustainable 
farming practices, increase local food production, 
and support the economic empowerment of farm-
ers. By fostering strong partnerships and investing 
in local agriculture, nadec contributes to national 
food security and the development of a resilient 
and self-sufficient agricultural sector.

4- Harnessing the Transformative 
Power of Artificial Intelligence
Artificial Intelligence (AI) stands as a pivotal up-
side risk in today’s rapidly evolving technological 
landscape, presenting unprecedented opportuni-
ties for innovation and growth. The latest trends in 
AI, such as generative AI, edge computing, and ex-
plainable AI, are redefining industries by enhanc-
ing decision-making, optimizing operations, and 
creating new business models. 

For nadec, leveraging these advancements can rev-
olutionize agriculture, dairy, and food production 
through precision farming techniques, predictive 
maintenance of machinery, customer care, and 
supply chain optimization. By deploying AI-driven 
analytics to monitor crop health, optimize live-
stock management, demand forecasts, customer 
behaviour and enhance product quality control, 
nadec can achieve greater efficiency, sustainabili-
ty, and competitiveness in the global market.

5- Market Volatility and Changing 
Consumer Preferences
Consumer preferences are rapidly shifting towards 
healthier, sustainable, and ethically sourced prod-
ucts, while market volatility, fluctuating raw ma-
terial costs, and economic uncertainties continue 
to impact pricing and production strategies. Addi-
tionally, the growing demand for camel milk and 
alternative dairy products presents a potential 
shift in consumption patterns, challenging tradi-
tional dairy markets.

To sustain its competitive edge, nadec remains ag-
ile in product innovation, portfolio diversification, 
and market adaptability, ensuring it can respond 
effectively to evolving consumer demands while 
maintaining its leadership in the industry.

6- Regulatory, Reputational, and 
Ethical Risks
Frequent regulatory updates, evolving food safety 
standards, and compliance requirements pose op-
erational challenges, while ethical sourcing, labor 
practices, and environmental impact can affect 
brand reputation and consumer trust.

Nadec proactively monitors policy changes, 
strengthens compliance frameworks, and engages 
with authorities, while reinforcing its commitment 
to corporate social responsibility, transparency, 
and sustainable business practices to uphold its 
reputation and ensure long-term business sustain-
ability.
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7- Cybersecurity and Data 
Protection Risks
With the acceleration of digital transformation, 
cyber threats such as data breaches, ransomware 
attacks, and system disruptions pose increasing 
risks to nadec’s operations, financial stability, and 
sensitive information. 

To mitigate these threats, nadec enforces strict 
cybersecurity controls, continuously monitors 
digital risks, and strengthens partnerships with 
stakeholders to enhance cyber resilience and data 
protection.

8- Workforce Challenges and Labor 
Market Risks
The availability, retention, and skill development 
of the workforce remain critical to maintaining 
operational efficiency. Stricter labor regulations, 
talent shortages, and competition for skilled ag-
ricultural and dairy professionals pose risks to 
productivity and cost management. Additionally, 
shifts in employment laws, localization policies, 
and evolving worker expectations could impact 
workforce planning.

To address these risks, nadec enhances employee 
training programs, strengthens workforce plan-
ning, and invests in automation and digital tools 
to reduce dependency on manual labor while en-
suring long-term operational sustainability.

9- Animal Health and Biosecurity 
Risks
Nadec’s dairy operations are highly dependent on 
livestock health and biosecurity measures. Out-
breaks of diseases such as Foot-and-Mouth Dis-
ease (FMD), or other livestock-related infections 
could severely impact milk production, animal 
welfare, and supply chain reliability. Additionally, 
antibiotic resistance concerns and regulatory pres-
sures around veterinary medicine could challenge 
disease prevention efforts.

To mitigate these risks, nadec implements strin-
gent biosecurity protocols, invests in veterinary 
healthcare advancements, and collaborates with 
regulatory bodies to ensure early disease detec-
tion, containment, and sustainable herd manage-
ment practices.

10- Financial and Economic Risks
Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, inflation, 
and interest rates pose financial risks that can 
impact operational costs, profitability, and long-
term financial planning. Economic uncertainties, 
including global market instability and supply 
chain disruptions, may further pressure procure-
ment expenses, investment strategies, and overall 
financial resilience.

To mitigate these risks, nadec continuously mon-
itors economic trends, optimizes financial plan-
ning, and explores risk management strategies to 
ensure stability in a dynamic economic environ-
ment.
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Sustainability 
and CSR 
Review

3
Our Ambitions and Values Towards 
Sustainability

Sustainability Framework

Materiality Assessment of Sustainability	

Achievements in Sustainability and CSR
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Our Ambitions and Values 
Towards Sustainability

Our Ambition and Values Towards Sustainability
In the face of rapidly evolving global trends toward 
sustainability standards, Nadec has confidently po-
sitioned itself as a leading model in Environmental, 
Social, and Governance (ESG) practices within its 
2024 operational strategy. The company has worked 
diligently to develop a strategic framework that inte-
grates sustainability initiatives, strengthens its role 
as a key player in achieving food security, protects the 
environment, and fosters sustainable development.

Supported by senior leadership committed to sustain-
ability and active collaboration with all stakeholders, 
Nadec aims to achieve its aspiration of becoming "the 
most environmentally safe company in the Kingdom." 
The company focuses on enhancing operational effi-
ciency, minimizing environmental impact, fostering a 
culture of pride and belonging among its employees, 
and creating innovative solutions to address operation-
al and environmental challenges.

Nadec’s sustainability ambitions are embodied in 
its pursuit of building an integrated system ground-
ed in the values of responsibility, innovation, and 
transparency. By investing in national talents, ad-
vanced technology, and strategic partnerships, Na-
dec has solidified its role as a contributing force in 
sustainable development and as a leading company 
in the food and agriculture sectors.

Aligned with its "New Dawn" strategy launched in 
2023, Nadec’s sustainability direction sets a clear 
vision for growth beyond traditional standards. By 
identifying key trends and opportunities, the strate-
gy positions the company to lead in the food sector, 
fostering ambitions for growth, expansion, and en-
tering new markets.

Our Ambition
"To become the most 
environmentally 
safe company in the 
Kingdom."

Strategic Sustainability Values

Transparency Innovation Responsibility
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Through a comprehensive evaluation of nadec’s adherence to Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) 
standards, we conducted an in-depth analysis of our sustainability maturity and development trajectory. 
This was achieved through extensive engagement and discussions with key stakeholders. Over 15 individ-
ual meetings with senior team members and stakeholders were held to assess the current level of sustain-
ability maturity within the organization and identify future aspirations.

The results demonstrated nadec’s commitment to fostering integration and alignment across operational 
departments while striving to reach advanced levels of coordination and enhancement, keeping stakehold-
er interests at the core of sustainability.

Based on our internal assessment of ESG adoption stages, nadec’s sustainability framework and method-
ology were developed. This approach is centered around three key pillars, each with clearly defined social 
and environmental objectives aimed at driving progress:

Sustainability Framework

Regenerative Agriculture 
and Sustainable 

Resources 

Operational Excellence 
and Resource 
Optimization

Health, Wellbeing & 
Access to Nutrition

Social

Nurture resilient economies 
by partnering with suppli-

ers

Create a safe, inclusive, nur-
turing culture that inspires 

excellence and enables all to 
excel 

Empower healthy lifestyle 
choices in  by producing 

nourishing products people 
need

 Environmental

Grow agricultural productiv-
ity and food security in KSA 

through regenerative agricul-
ture 

Transform food production 
and distribution in KSA 

through resource optimiza-
tion

Achieve ecosystem health by 
operating within local and 

global environmental limits

Enablers Of Change

Governance for Sustainability - Partnerships and Capacity Building -

Sustainable Financing
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1. 	Regenerative Agriculture and Sustainable Resources
As a leader in the food and agriculture sector, nadec is dedicated to adopting a holistic and sustainable ap-
proach that enhances economic, social, and environmental values. By embracing regenerative agriculture and 
sustainable resources, the company reinforces its commitment to food security and sustainable practices as 
core components of its mission.

Social Goal: Nurture resilient economies by 
partnering with suppliers. 

At nadec, we believe in the importance of building ro-
bust partnerships with local and international suppli-
ers. These partnerships play a pivotal role in fostering 
resilient economies capable of adapting to econom-
ic challenges. Through collaboration, nadec aims to 
create sustainable economic opportunities, enhance 
supplier capabilities, and empower them to adopt re-
sponsible practices that contribute to achieving sus-
tainable development goals.

Environmental Goal: Grow agricultural pro-
ductivity and food security in KSA through re-
generative agriculture

Nadec is committed to enhancing agricultural pro-
ductivity through the adoption of regenerative farm-
ing techniques. These techniques prioritize improv-
ing soil health, minimizing the depletion of natural 
resources, and increasing water-use efficiency. By 
implementing such sustainable practices, nadec con-
tributes to ensuring food security across the Kingdom 
while maintaining a steadfast commitment to envi-
ronmental protection and resource sustainability for 
future generations.

2.	Operational Excellence and Resource Optimization 
At nadec, we strive to achieve operational excellence and resource management as a core component of our 
comprehensive sustainability and innovation strategy. By aligning our social and environmental objectives 
with Saudi Vision 2030, nadec is committed to enhancing its operations and fostering sustainability across all 
sectors. 

Social Objective: Create a safe, inclusive, nur-
turing culture that inspires excellence and en-
ables all to excel.

At nadec, we focus on creating a work environment 
that fosters excellence and supports the professional 
and personal development of employees. This objec-
tive is reflected in promoting safe work practices and 
ensuring inclusive policies that embrace diversity 
and innovation. We also strive to cultivate a positive 
environment that enables our employees to thrive 
and achieve success, which enhances employee loy-
alty and contributes to improved productivity and 
performance quality.

Environmental Objective: Developing Food 
Production and Distribution through Improved 
Resource Management

At nadec, we are committed to driving a transforma-
tive approach to food production and distribution 
within the Kingdom by implementing best environ-
mental practices. This includes optimizing resource 
utilization such as water and energy, minimizing 
operational waste, and adopting advanced technol-
ogies to enhance supply chain processes. Our ef-
forts aim to strengthen food security and ensure the 
sustainability of natural resources for future genera-
tions, aligning with our commitment to supporting 
Saudi Vision 2030.

3.	Health, Wellbeing & Access to Nutrition
The pillar of "Health, Wellbeing & Access to Nutrition" stands as a cornerstone of our methodology, ensuring 
supply chains that reinforce food security by integrating both social and environmental dimensions. Our ob-
jective is to provide high-quality food products that contribute to the health and well-being of individuals 
while safeguarding the environment and ecological systems.

Social Objective: Empower healthy lifestyle 
choices in  by producing nourishing products 
people need

Through our diverse and sustainable product lines at 
nadec, we cater to various age groups and specific 
dietary needs. We actively encourage our consumers 
to adopt healthy habits and make informed choices 
from our range of nutritional products, continuously 
improving and enhancing them with essential nutri-
ents to support their well-being.

Environmental Objective: Achieve ecosystem 
health by operating within local and global 
environmental limits

This objective ensures that food production and dis-
tribution processes are conducted sustainably, mini-
mizing harm to the environment and ecosystems. It 
encompasses measures to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, lower water and energy consumption, 
minimize waste and pollution from production ac-
tivities, and responsibly manage natural resources. 
These efforts include efficient water usage and main-

taining soil health to safeguard envi-
ronmental sustainability for future 

generations.
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Strategic Enablers for nadec's Sustainability Framework 
and Defined Pillars
Based on the methodology outlined by nadec, an actionable implementation plan has been established 
through initiatives that contribute to the comprehensive achievement of strategic goals. This approach reflects 
nadec's commitment to building a robust sustainability strategy anchored in key enablers of progress and 
transformation, such as operational development, technological innovation, and strengthened partnerships. 
These efforts aim to enhance the company's interests while supporting the objectives of the Kingdom. The 
strategy is structured around three main pillars: governance, partnerships and capacity building, and sustain-
able financing, which form the foundation of nadec’s sustainability commitment.

Sustainable
Finance

Partnerships and
Capacity Building

Governance for
Sustainability

3
Sustainable Financing

Through its initiatives, nadec ensures 
that all its financial projects align with 
environmental and social sustainabili-
ty standards. This includes pre-financ-
ing assessments to guarantee project 
sustainability. Additionally, nadec pri-
oritizes building employee capacities 
and raising awareness about the sig-
nificance of sustainable financing and 
its applications. These efforts aim to 
channel the company's investments 
toward projects that deliver tangible 
environmental and social benefits, 
enhancing its expertise in sustainable 
financing opportunities and enabling 
it to achieve impactful and enduring 
financial returns

Our Executive Initiatives

1-	 ESG due diligence for sustainable 
finance projects

How: Evaluate and monitor new/ex-
isting projects on ESG performance. 
The toolkit can either be delivered as 
a stand-alone due diligence toolkit or 
integrated into nadec’s existing due 
diligence processes.

2-	 Sustainable finance capacity 
building and awareness raising

How: Provide better awareness to our 
management and employees about the 
importance of sustainable financing and 
how to secure funding for sustainable 
projects within our company.

2
Partnerships and Capacity Building

Nadec strives to strengthen its part-
nerships and build internal capac-
ities as part of its commitment to 
sustainability, and to establish a 
comprehensive framework for so-
cial responsibility and providing ad-
vanced training programs for its em-
ployees, nadec aims to enhance the 
team's skills in sustainability. These 
initiatives effectively contribute to 
implementing the strategy, empow-
ering employees to adopt and apply 
best practices, which positively im-
pacts the company's performance 
and long-term sustainability.

Our Executive Initiatives

1-	 Training and capacity building

How: Capacity built through targeted 
training programs, covering essential 
aspects for the execution of the strat-
egy, compliance, best practices, and 
effective stakeholder engagemen.

2-	 CSR / Social Impact Framework

How: Capacity built through targeted 
training programs, covering essential 
aspects for the execution of the strat-
egy, compliance, best practices, and 
effective stakeholder engagemen.

1
Governance for Sustainability

Nadec has established a manage-
ment system to execute its sus-
tainability framework, ensuring 
operational sectors adhere to sus-
tainability principles. This includes 
clearly defining roles and responsi-
bilities, creating policies and pro-
cedures that enhance transparency 
and accountability, and ensuring 
decision-making supports environ-
mental, social, and economic sus-
tainability. This approach contrib-
utes to sustainable growth while 
mitigating risks associated with 
governance, environmental, and so-
cietal factors.

Our Executive Initiatives

1-	 Develop, publish and implement a 
governance framework

How: Through an established governance 
framework, with clear roles, responsibil-
ities, reporting lines including board and 
management level committee.

2-	 Develop and/or update policies 
for each priority material issue

How: Through an identified position for 
each material topic, which will improve 
ESG scores, gaining credit for transpar-
ency and management of risks

3-	 ESG Ratings Maximization

How: Adopting sustainable practices that 
include enhancing environmental and 
social governance, improving operation-
al efficiency, promoting transparency and 
performance disclosure, and developing 
comprehensive policies that address all 
aspects of sustainability.
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The materiality assessment process is a critical tool nadec employs to identify and prioritize sustainability-related 
topics within the Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) framework. These topics are of significant importance 
to both our operations and our stakeholders. This process helps nadec understand the potential impacts of these is-
sues on its strategies and operational processes, while also identifying the associated opportunities and risks.

Steps for Conducting the Materiality Assessment:

Materiality Assessment of 
Sustainability

1. 	Water and effluents
Managing water usage efficiently and treating waste-
water to prevent pollution and conserve water re-
sources.

2.	 Waste, Pollution, and Packaging
Reducing waste generation and pollution throughout 
the product lifecycle through effective waste manage-
ment practices and pollution control measures.

Using sustainable packaging solutions to minimize en-
vironmental impact while maintaining product safety 
and quality.

3.	 Climate Change
Reduction and management of greenhouse gas emis-
sions from operations, including farming, production, 
and transportation, to mitigate environmental impact 
and efficient use and sustainable sourcing of energy 
in all operations to reduce environmental footprint and 
costs.

4.	 Sustainable Sourcing and 
Regenerative Agriculture
Farming practices that allow  the environment to re-
generate, conserve resources, and support long-term 
agricultural productivity. In doing so preserving local 
biodiversity, soil health, water reserves, and maintain-
ing healthy ecosystems through responsible agricul-
tural practices and land management.

5.	 Food Security, Health, and access 
to nutrition
Ensuring a reliable supply of affordable and nutritious 
food products to meet the needs of the population. 
Promoting health and wellness by providing nutritious 
food products and supporting healthy lifestyles.

6.	 Human Capital
Investing in employee development, attracting top tal-
ent, and retaining skilled workers through continuous 
training and career growth opportunities.

While fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace 
where all employees have equal opportunities for 
growth and development.

Identifying 16 Key Sustainability Priorities at nadec
The first step in conducting a materiality assessment involves precisely identifying the core areas relevant to 
nadec, from which the prioritized sustainability topics and issues emerge. At nadec, we focus on 16 key areas 
to explore sustainability themes, which serve as the foundation for our sustainability approach:

7.	 Food Quality and Safety
Maintaining high standards of food quality and safety 
throughout the production process to protect consum-
er health.

8.	 Community / Social Impact
Contributing positively to local communities address-
ing societal needs, including access to healthy, nutri-
tious foods, skills building and development and fair 
employment opportunities.

9. Diversity, Inclusion, and Equal Op-
portunities
Fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace where all 
employees have equal opportunities for growth and 
development.

10.	 Occupational Health and Safety
Ensuring a safe and healthy work environment for all 
employees through robust health and safety practices.

11.	Governance and Business Ethics
Upholding high standards of governance and ethical 
behavior in all business activities to ensure integrity 
and accountability.

12.	Impact of products and services
Evaluating and minimizing the environmental and so-
cial impacts of products and services throughout their 
lifecycle. 

13. Nationalization 
Supporting national economic goals by prioritizing lo-
cal talent and resources in business operations.

14. Animal Health and Welfare
Ensuring the well-being of animals in farming opera-
tions through humane treatment and veterinary care.

15.	 Economic Inclusion
Supporting economic development and inclusion by 
providing fair employment opportunities and engag-
ing with local suppliers.

16.	 Human Rights
Upholding human rights in all operations and supply 
chains, ensuring fair treatment and ethical practices, 
in alignment with local legislation and best practice.
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Analysis of the Relative Importance 
of Sustainability Areas
After identifying the relevant issues, their potential impacts—both positive and negative—on nadec's opera-
tional processes and strategic objectives are assessed. The levels of relative importance are categorized into 
very high importance, high importance, and moderate importance. This evaluation identifies the most impact-
ful and significant issues that the company should prioritize.

Key Sustainability 
Areas

Relative 
Importance

Main Work Pillars

1 Water and effluents

•• Water withdrawal

•• Water management

•• Equitable access

•• Pollution

•• Nutrient loading

2
Waste, pollution 
and packaging

•• Circularity

•• Food loss and waste

•• Packaging

•• Resource efficiency

3 Climate Change
•• Emissions

•• Energy use

4

Sustainable 
sourcing and 
regenerative 
agriculture

•• Biodiversity

•• Climate resilience

•• Soil health

•• Water use

•• Land-use

•• Ecosystem health

•• Carbon sequestration

•• Pesticide and fertilizer use

•• Living wage

5
Food security, 
health and access to 
nutrition

•• Nutrition

•• Sustainable Agriculture

•• Climate change

6 Human Capital

•• Occupational health and safety

•• Skills and employability

•• Talent attraction

•• Retention

Key Sustainability 
Areas

Relative 
Importance

Main Work Pillars

7
Food Quality and 
Safety

•• Quality & Safety

•• Nutrition

•• Antibiotics

•• GMO

8
Community / Social 
Impact

•• Regenerative Agriculture

•• Health & nutrition

•• Economic empowerment

•• Skills development

9
Diversity, Inclusion, 
and Equal 
Opportunities

•• Female empowerment

•• Youth

10
Occupational Health 
and Safety

•• Employee health and wellbeing

11
Governance and 
business ethics

•• Transparency

12
Impact of products 
and services

•• Environmental footprint

•• Transportation

•• Marketing

•• Consumption

13 Saudization •• Nurturing local talent

14
Animal Health and 
Welfare

•• Antibiotic use

15 Economic Inclusion
•• SME empowerment

•• Local supply

16 Human Rights

•• Discrimination and exploitation

•• Employee rights

•• Compliance

•• Transparency

Very High High Medium 
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Achievements 
in Sustainability and CSR

1
Supporting Agricultural Investments

nadec has focused on two primary objectives: sup-
porting agricultural investments within and beyond 
the Kingdom to ensure a continuous food supply and 
to reduce reliance on imports by developing robust 
local agricultural sectors.

Achievements :

Strengthening Sustainable 
Partnerships
nadec signed a partnership agreement with United 
Feed Company for the purpose of establishing a com-
pany focused on the livestock sector to produce red 
meat. nadec announces that it will invest SAR 90 mil-
lion to that effect, in line with its expansion plans.  
In fact, this partnership targets enhancement of the 
local food self-sufficiency by diversifying protein 
sources that satisfy the needs of the local market.

Advancing Contract Farming 
Plans
nadec adopted a contract farming system in align-
ment with the Kingdom's Vision. This approach en-
sures that market dominance is not limited to major 
players, as small and medium-scale farmers continue 
to play a vital and impactful role in the agricultural 
sector.

2
Sustainable Resource Utilization

nadec's vision for resource sustainability focuses on preserv-
ing natural resources, with an emphasis on efficient water 
management, expanding desert farming, and utilizing ad-
vanced techniques such as hydroponics and vertical farming.

Achievements:

Research in Innovative 
Agricultural Systems

Pure Harvest in Partnership

A prime example of nadec’s strategic initiatives is its col-
laboration with Pure Harvest, which involves implement-
ing innovative farming systems that significantly reduce 
water consumption per kilogram of production.

Olive Producers Association

Nadec continued its focus on impactful partnerships by 
signing a Memorandum of Understanding with the Olive 
Producers Association. This partnership aims to provide 
advisory support to olive farmers and enhance quality 
standards through the adoption of best practices in pro-
duction and marketing. The cooperation covers various ar-
eas, including fertilization, irrigation, pruning, monitoring 
plant growth, grafting, and conducting field visits. 

Water Reuse Initiatives 

Nadec completed a study on water reuse within its opera-
tions to maximize efficiency and sustainability. In 2024, the 
company advanced the planning and implementation of its 
wastewater treatment project, further reinforcing its com-
mitment to sustainable resource management.

Nadec has accomplished several milestones aligned with its strategic goals, including diversifying food 
sources, sustainable resource utilization, and fostering innovation and scientific research to support its 
sustainability plan. It has also prioritized strengthening local and global partnerships to unify efforts, en-
hance its sustainability approach, and achieve its future aspirations.

3
Promoting Innovation and 
Scientific Research

Scientific research and development have been a 
key focus for nadec, aiming to improve productivity 
through the adoption of advanced technologies. This 
area has seen significant progress by encouraging 
the use of artificial intelligence (AI) and Internet of 
Things (IoT) technologies in agricultural operations.

Achievements:

Climate Change Mitigation 
Initiatives  
Nadec launched several initiatives focused on pro-
grams to deliver positive results in addressing climate 
change. These initiatives include a strategic collabo-
ration with Pure Harvest to develop a resource-effi-
cient food system that reduces carbon emissions.

Clean Energy Production Efforts 
Nadec operates one of the largest solar arrays in the 
Middle East, which continues to contribute to the 
production of clean energy.

Eco-Friendly Cooling 
Technologies 
The company has implemented a program to up-
grade its fleet, aiming to minimize its environmental 
impact. Additionally, nadec has introduced innova-
tive cooling technologies in its dairy farms to reduce 
electricity consumption for cooling purposes.

4
Supporting food awareness in the 
Education Sector

At nadec, we place great importance on supporting 
food awareness and encouraging students in the ed-
ucation sector to adopt a suitable lifestyle through 
collaboration with schools. In 2024, we successfully 
supported more than 40 schools, reflecting our com-
mitment to raising awareness about the importance 
of proper and healthy nutrition. We were also honored 
to sponsor "World Food Day" in collaboration with 
the Riyadh Education Directorate, where we aimed 
to raise awareness about the significance of healthy 
food and its positive impact on students' health.

5
Promoting Sports Participation 
and Quality of Life

Nadec is committed to empowering the communi-
ty and promoting an active lifestyle by supporting 
sports participation and improving quality of life. In 
this context, we sponsored the "Mahra Formula Team" 
as well as the Diriyah Season Cup in Qassim. nadec 
also organized the "nadec Open Paddle Champion-
ship." Additionally, we provided our support to the 
"R7 Running Team" during the Riyadh Marathon, re-
flecting our deep commitment to encouraging sports 
participation and contributing to the enhancement of 
physical activity within the community.
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Environmental 
Commitment Forum 
2024
In 2024, nadec continued its sus-
tainability efforts aligned with the 
Kingdom’s vision for enhancing 
environmental and agricultural 
sustainability. The company spon-
sored the "Environmental Commit-
ment Forum 2024," organized by 
the National Center for Environ-
mental Compliance, reflecting its 
dedication to promoting sustain-
able practices in the agricultural 
sector.

Nadec Hosts Workshop 
in Collaboration with 
the Central Agricultural 
Cooperative Society for 
Wheat Cultivation 
Nadec organized a workshop in 
collaboration with the Central Ag-
ricultural Cooperative Society in 
Qaryat Al-Ulya, focusing on "Wheat 
Cultivation." This workshop aimed 
to support local farmers by edu-
cating them on sustainable farm-
ing techniques to improve crop 
productivity and reduce environ-
mental impacts.

Showcasing 
Agricultural 
Sustainability 
Technologies 
At the Saudi Agricultural Exhibi-
tion, nadec showcased innovative 
sustainability technologies used 
in its agricultural projects. This 
effort highlighted the importance 
of innovation in environmental 
conservation and the advance-
ment of sustainable agricultural 
production.

Nadec's Sustainability Efforts: Advancing Alongside the 
Kingdom's Vision in 2024

Nadec at the 
International 
Exhibition and Forum 
for Afforestation 
Technologies
Nadec participated in the "Interna-
tional Exhibition and Forum for Af-
forestation Technologies" during the 
COP 16 Conference in Riyadh, where 
it highlighted its expertise in soil 
revitalization, water recycling, and 
organic waste management. This par-
ticipation underscores nadec's com-
mitment to addressing environmen-
tal challenges through advanced and 
sustainable technologies.

Nadec's COP 16 
Pavilion Showcases 
Soil Revitalization 
Initiatives 
At its pavilion during COP 16, na-
dec presented a range of innova-
tive initiatives aimed at revitaliz-
ing agricultural soil. These efforts 
are part of its ongoing commit-
ment to implementing effective 
sustainability solutions in the ag-
ricultural sector.

Nadec at the Potato 
Conference in Hail
Nadec participated in the Potato 
Conference in Hail, showcasing its 
sustainable potato farming tech-
niques. This presentation high-
lighted the company's innovative 
approaches to improving farming 
methods while preserving natural 
resources, in alignment with sus-
tainability goals.
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Award Highlights of 2024
�� Nadec was awarded the Social Responsibility 

Badge in recognition of its exceptional achieve-
ments in 2024.

�� Nadec was honored as the leading national com-
pany in promoting sustainable agricultural inno-
vations at the COP 16 Conference."

�� Nadec received the Consumer Sustainability Cer-
tification from the Consumer Protection Associ-
ation, to be the first entity to achieve this dis-
tinction.

Sustainable Development of 
Production Sectors
Nadec has consistently focused on developing its 
production sectors, placing quality at the forefront of 
its priorities to ensure the delivery of the finest food 
products. This commitment is reflected in the com-
pany conducting over 20,000 daily tests on its food 
products, ensuring the highest standards of quality 
and food safety.

Outstanding Agricultural 
Achievements
Nadec takes pride in its sustainable agricultural ini-
tiatives, including the planting of more than 5 mil-
lion olive trees in its flagship project in Al-Jouf. This 
achievement underscores the company's vision to 
strengthen food security and leverage local natural 
resources sustainably.

Establishment of the National 
Seed Production Company 
(NSPC)
One of our most notable achievements was the estab-
lishment of the National Seed Production Company 
(NSPC). The company’s primary goal is to study po-
tato varieties across the Kingdom. Founded this year, 
NSPC was launched alongside the production of over 
6 million kilograms of potatoes, underscoring its role 
in advancing agricultural innovation.

Throughout 2024 and prior, nadec reaffirmed its commitment to applying the latest technologies in greenhouse 
development to enhance agricultural production and increase efficiency. The company employs advanced cli-
mate-control systems in greenhouses to ensure optimal conditions for crop growth year-round, regardless of 
external climate fluctuations. These technologies enable precise control of temperature, humidity, and light 
levels, improving production quality and optimizing resource utilization.

Nadec has also focused on innovative water management technologies. By implementing smart and sustainable 
solutions such as drip irrigation systems and digital controls, the company minimizes water consumption while 
maximizing irrigation efficiency. These systems ensure optimal water usage tailored to the specific needs of crops.

These efforts aim to strengthen environmental sustainability, balancing the use and preservation of natural resourc-
es. This approach aligns with nadec’s vision to achieve food security through advanced agricultural methods.

Key Technologies Supporting Agricultural Sustainability

Greenhouse Technology
Advancement

Irrigation System
Development

Diverse Agricultural Production
In 2024, nadec achieved exceptional agricultural productivity, reaffirming its commitment to expanding ag-
ricultural production to meet local market demands and contribute to food security in the Kingdom. These 
accomplishments include:

Production of Over 

100,000
Tons of Wheat

Production of Over 

20,000
Tons of Wheat Seeds

Production of Over 

5 Million
Kilograms of Potatoes
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Human 
Resources4
Empowering National Talent in 
Operational Sectors

Human Resources Management

Developing Specialized Training Programs 
for Our Employees

Investing in Digital and Technical Skills
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Empowering National Talent in 
Operational Sectors

Our employees are the driving force behind nadec’s success, and we take pride in employing some of the most 
talented professionals in the Kingdom. Recognizing human capital as a top priority, we align our efforts with 
Saudi Vision 2030 by focusing on attracting, retaining, and developing national talent as a fundamental pillar of 
our long-term growth.

Nadec has established a comprehensive set of policies & procedures that guide all human resource activities, 
ensuring alignment with our values, strategy, and corporate objectives. These policies & procedures provide 
a framework for a professional work environment, efficient talent management, employee development, and 
overall business success, enabling us to attract and retain top talent.

Attracting and Developing Talent
Nadec is committed to recruiting highly skilled males 
and females with strong technical expertise and ac-
ademic qualifications. To expand our talent pool, we 
combine in-house recruitment efforts with partner-
ships through specialized hiring agencies, ensuring 
that every employee has the opportunity to build a 
rewarding and successful career. We continuously 
invest in the resources and tools needed to support 
their professional growth and development.

Empowering national talent remains a key priority in 
our operational sectors, driving nadec to adopt inno-
vative hiring and development strategies designed to 
attract and prepare both male and female profession-
als for leadership positions and specialized roles. We 
also cultivate an engaging and growth-focused work 
environment by offering specialized training pro-

grams and forging partnerships with leading educa-
tional and professional institutions to enhance skills 
and build future capabilities.

Nadec has launched initiatives to support Saudization 
and align with Saudi Vision 2030, aiming to increase 
the participation of national talent across various op-
erational sectors, from production and manufacturing 
to distribution and logistics. The company believes 
that empowering local professionals not only enhanc-
es its competitiveness but also contributes to the 
sustainable economic and social development of the 
Kingdom.

.

Addressing to Our 
Employees’ Suggestions
Nadec is committed to creating a fair and inclusive 
work environment where every employee can share 
ideas and insights on company decisions with full 
transparency. To support this, we have implement-
ed a structured policy for managing employee sug-
gestions, ensuring a clear and effective process for 
collecting and addressing feedback. Employees can 
submit their proposals through a dedicated email 
channel, ensuring their voices are heard and actively 
considered in the company’s ongoing improvement 
initiatives.

DAAM Committee 
(Support Committee)
The DAAM Committee is responsible for reviewing 
employee inquiries, suggestions, and concerns. Its 
scope includes evaluating employee grievances, its 
assessments, and workplace enhancements to ensure 
a fair and transparent work environment.

In addition to addressing direct employee submis-
sions, the committee also reviews matters referred 
by company management. Employees can submit 
their concerns through a dedicated committee email 
or by directly communicating with a committee 
member. Upon receiving a proposal or complaint, the 
committee conducts a thorough review, evaluates its 
feasibility, and informs the employee of the decision 
and outcome through email.

.
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Human Resources Management

Recruitment and Selection Strategy 
Over the past year, nadec has placed significant focus on managing its human resources by imple-
menting advanced recruitment and selection strategies to attract top talent. This builds on the key 
improvements made in the previous year, optimizing human resource management to support our 
operational sectors effectively:

Nadec’s HR strategy has been structured around the following priorities:

Expanding Talent
Reach Through

Digital Platforms

Ongoing Assessment
of Recruitment
Needs Across

Operational Sectors

Proactive
Workforce
Planning

Enhancing Saudization
by Improving the

Quality of Recruitment

Streamlining
International

Recruitment Through
Saudi-Based

Agencies

Showcasing Employee
Engagement to

Attract Top Talent

1-	 Proactive workforce planning.

2-	 Ongoing assessment of recruitment needs 
across operational sectors.

3-	 Expanding Talent Reach Through Digital Plat-
forms

4-	 Showcasing Employee Engagement to Attract Top 
Talent

5-	 Streamlining International Recruitment Through 
Saudi-Based Agencies

6-	 Enhancing Saudization by Improving the Quality 
of Recruitment. 

1.	 Proactive Workforce Planning
Our proactive workforce planning focuses on identi-
fying actual staffing needs, defining job types and re-
quired numbers based on nadec’s strategic plans. We 
have also restructured hiring priorities to direct efforts 
toward the most critical roles for business success. This 
approach prevents random hiring and ensures that re-
sources are allocated efficiently, optimizing workforce 
management for long-term sustainability.

2.	 Ongoing Assessment of Recruitment 
Needs across Operational Sectors
To ensure a dynamic and responsive hiring process, 
nadec holds weekly strategic meetings across depart-
ments to review workforce requirements, address re-
cruitment challenges, and align hiring priorities with 
business objectives. This structured approach enhanc-
es collaboration between HR and operational teams, 
streamlines decision-making, and accelerates the re-
cruitment cycle, ensuring that talent acquisition keeps 
pace with the company’s evolving needs.

3.	 Expanding Talent Reach Through 
Digital Platforms
Recognizing the power of digital recruitment, nadec 
has strategically enhanced its presence on digital 
platforms, to attract top talent. By leveraging this 
presence, we have significantly broadened our reach, 
connecting with highly skilled professionals and in-
creasing the volume and quality of job applications. 
This initiative aligns with our commitment to build-
ing a strong national workforce, ensuring fair access 
to opportunities, and maintaining transparency in our 
hiring processes across all business sectors.

4.	 Showcasing Employee Engagement 
to Attract Top Talent
Nadec actively leverages its employee engagement ini-
tiatives to highlight its positive workplace culture and 
dynamic environment. By regularly organizing interac-
tive activities and events, we create opportunities for 
employees to connect and collaborate. Sharing these 
moments on social media enhances our reputation as 
an employer of choice, positioning nadec as an attrac-
tive destination for top talent and encouraging skilled 
professionals to join our team.

5.	 Streamlining International Recruitment 
Through Saudi-Based Agencies 
To save time and enhance efficiency in attracting 
international talent, nadec has partnered with spe-
cialized recruitment agencies with a local presence 
in Saudi Arabia. These partnerships simplify and ac-
celerate the international hiring process by managing 
visa applications, travel arrangements, and residency 
procedures. This approach ensures a clear and struc-
tured recruitment framework, making it easier and 
faster to bring in top global talent.

6.	 Enhancing Saudization by 
Improving the Quality of Recruitment 
As part of nadec’s commitment to boosting Saudiza-
tion, we have strategically restructured our recruit-
ment approach to focus on quality hiring for key roles. 
To achieve this, certain high-turnover, lower-level 
positions have been outsourced to contracted com-
panies, allowing us to prioritize the recruitment of 
Saudi nationals in core and strategic roles. This initia-
tive not only strengthens our Saudization efforts but 
also enables our HR team to concentrate on hiring top 
talent for critical positions, ensuring long-term work-
force stability and excellence.
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Performance Management at Nadec
Nadec has implemented a comprehensive performance management system designed to enhance both indi-
vidual and team performance while aligning employee contributions with the company’s strategic objectives. 
This system is built on several key components that drive continuous improvement and organizational success.

Performance Management Structure
Employee performance is assessed, and personal goals are set through a structured performance management 
system comprising three key stages:

Stage 1: Goal Setting:

At the start of the evaluation period, typically con-
ducted annually, clear and measurable goals are es-
tablished for each employee in collaboration with 
their direct manager. These goals are designed to 
align with both departmental and company-wide ob-
jectives, ensuring a unified approach to performance 
and growth.

Mid-Year Review: A periodic performance review is 
conducted halfway through the evaluation cycle to 
assess progress toward goals, identify any challenges 
or obstacles, and provide the necessary support and 
guidance to employees.

Year-End Review: At the end of the evaluation pe-
riod, a comprehensive performance assessment is 
conducted to review goal achievement, provide fi-
nal performance ratings, identify strengths and ar-
eas for improvement, and establish future develop-
ment plans.

Stage 2: Linking Performance to HR Activities:

At nadec, performance evaluation results are directly 
connected to key HR activities, including training and 
development, promotions, and rewards. This integra-
tion allows us to identify opportunities for enhancing 
employee performance and ensures that evaluation 
outcomes are effectively utilized to support employ-
ee growth, motivation, and career progression.

Training and Development to Enhance Performance na-
dec offers specialized training programs designed to de-
velop the skills and knowledge needed to improve em-
ployee performance. These programs are tailored based 
on performance evaluation results and the individual 
and team development needs, ensuring continuous pro-
fessional growth and enhanced operational efficiency.

Enhancing the Performance Management System nadec 
has introduced key improvements to its performance 
management system, focusing on three core areas:

�� Refining Performance Indicators: Performance 
metrics have been enhanced to ensure greater 
accuracy, clarity, and measurability, providing a 
more precise reflection of each employee’s con-
tribution to the company’s objectives.

�� Aligning Indicators with Corporate Strategy: Per-
formance indicators are now directly linked to 
nadec’s strategic goals, ensuring that employee 
efforts are aligned with the company’s long-term 
vision and priorities.

�� Leadership Development Programs: Specialized 
training programs have been introduced to devel-
op leadership capabilities in performance manage-
ment, equipping company leaders with the skills to 
effectively manage their teams, drive performance, 
and inspire excellence.

Talent Management Strategy
Nadec has adopted a comprehensive strategy to attract and retain highly qualified talent across its operational 
sectors. This approach includes key initiatives such as:

Expanding the Succession Planning Program:

Nadec is currently expanding its succession planning 
program, which focuses on identifying and develop-
ing future leadership talent within the company. This 
initiative ensures a strong leadership pipeline, foster-
ing long-term organizational growth and stability.

Enhancing Workplace Quality and Employee 
Experience:

Nadec places great emphasis on employee well-be-
ing by fostering a supportive and engaging work en-
vironment that offers professional development op-
portunities and competitive benefits. The company 
is committed to effective performance management, 
utilizing a structured system that includes goal set-
ting, regular performance reviews, integration with HR 
activities, and tailored training programs. Additional-
ly, nadec prioritizes attracting and retaining top talent 
while investing in leadership development to ensure 
long-term organizational success.
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Developing Specialized Training 
Programs for Our Employees

Nadec’s training and development program provides employees at 
all levels with opportunities to enhance their skills and profession-
al growth. Our capacity-building initiatives are strategically aligned 
with nadec’s long-term objectives, fostering a dynamic culture of 
knowledge-sharing and innovation while developing a strong talent 
pipeline to meet both current and future business needs.

2024 Training and Development Achievements
At nadec, we place great emphasis on enhancing employee performance through com-
prehensive and diverse training programs. Our commitment to investing in workforce 
development ensures that employees continuously improve their skills, stay up to date 
with industry advancements, and enhance their capabilities. This approach directly con-
tributes to the company’s overall success and long-term strategic goals.

In 2024, we made significant investments in workforce training and development, delivering a total of 32,960 
training hours across our organization. Employees benefited from a diverse range of training and development 
programs, including:

�� Management Training: Focused on developing 
leadership skills, strategic thinking, and deci-
sion-making capabilities.

�� Technical Training: Role-specific training to en-
sure employees stay up to date with the latest 
industry practices and technologies.

�� Safety Training: Developing programs to train our 
employees on safety protocols, as part of our strat-
egy to implement procedures and practices that 
align with the highest global safety standards.

�� Online Learning and E-Learning: Providing a 
wide range of courses through e-learning plat-
forms such as LinkedIn, covering professional de-
velopment, technical skills, and soft skills.

�� Learning Management System (LMS): Offering 
flexible and continuous access to training mate-
rials for ongoing skill development.

�� Nadec Project Training Program: Hosting regular 
awareness sessions on key company projects, in-
cluding Haradh, Al-Jouf, and Hail.

�� Co-op Training Program: Bridging the gap be-
tween academic learning and practical industry 
experience.

�� English Language Academy: Delivering compre-
hensive English training programs, covering busi-
ness English, communication skills, and technical 
writing.
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Nadec’s Employee Development Strategy
Diverse Training Programs
In 2024, nadec delivered 820 specialized training pro-
grams, reflecting a wide range of topics and disciplines 
designed to support employee growth. This extensive 
selection allows employees to choose programs that 
align with their professional development needs, ensur-
ing they gain relevant skills that enhance their expertise 
and career progression.

Expanding Training Participation
In 2024, 2,271 employees participated in nadec’s train-
ing programs, reflecting a strong culture of learning and 
development across the company. This high level of en-
gagement underscores our employees’ commitment to 
enhancing their skills and professional growth. By fos-
tering continuous learning, we ensure that our workforce 
remains equipped with the expertise needed to drive na-
dec’s long-term success and operational excellence.

Investing in Training and 
Development
In 2024, nadec delivered a total of 32,960 training hours, 
reflecting the company’s commitment to investing in 
workforce development. This substantial investment 
underscores our dedication to enhancing employee ca-
pabilities by providing the necessary time, resources, 
and structured training programs to support continuous 
growth and professional excellence.

Participation in the Tamheer Program
Nadec, in collaboration with the Human Resources De-
velopment Fund (HRDF), announced its participation in 
the Tamheer on-the-job training program. The program, 
launched in Riyadh, provided 32 trainees with hands-on 
experience to enhance their skills and prepare them for 
the job market. nadec’s involvement in this initiative re-
flects its commitment to workforce localization and the 
development of national talent, reinforcing its role in 
supporting Saudi graduates as they transition into pro-
fessional careers.

Employment Through the Tamheer 
Program
As a result of the Tamheer program’s success, nadec of-
fered permanent employment opportunities to 13 train-
ees, transitioning them into full-time roles within the 
company. This achievement highlights the program’s 
effectiveness in bridging the gap between training and 
employment, enabling participants to become valuable 
contributors to nadec’s workforce.

Cooperative Training Programs
Nadec also provided cooperative training opportunities 
to 64 students, allowing them to gain hands-on experi-
ence and apply their academic knowledge in a real-world 
work environment. These programs play a crucial role in 
preparing students for the job market, equipping them 
with the skills and practical insights needed for a suc-
cessful transition into their careers.

Training Program Quality
Nadec’s training programs achieved a 92% satisfaction 
rate, reflecting their effectiveness, quality, and impact 
on employee development. This high rating highlights 
the strength of the training content, delivery methods, 
and alignment with organizational goals. It also under-
scores nadec’s commitment to providing comprehensive 
learning opportunities that cater to various profession-
al levels. Beyond internal development, nadec actively 
contributes to national workforce growth through initia-
tives such as the Tamheer program and cooperative train-
ing programs, reinforcing its role in preparing talent for 
the job market and supporting broader community de-
velopment.

Company-Wide Training 
Initiatives
As part of its commitment to knowledge sharing and 
professional development, nadec expanded its employ-
ee mentorship and learning programs by organizing over 
18 company-wide training events. These initiatives fo-
cused on transferring expertise from senior employees to 
new team members through workshops and interactive 
sessions. With an 80% participation rate, these events 
played a key role in enhancing collaboration, fostering 
knowledge exchange, and strengthening nadec’s culture 
of continuous learning and development.
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Investing in Digital and 
Technical Skills

Empowering Employees with Digital and Technical Capabilities
In 2024, nadec set a clear roadmap for digital transformation, expanding digital integration across its workforce. This 
initiative aims to position the company at the forefront of technological advancements in the food industry by accel-
erating continuous improvement, innovation, and automation across all key business sectors.

Nadec’s investment in digital and technical skills is focused on the following key objectives:

Nadec’s Digital Transformation in 2024: Enhancing Employee Services
In 2024, nadec successfully imple-
mented over 120 digital transforma-
tion projects aimed at optimizing 
operational efficiency and enhancing 
employee services. A key initiative was 
the enhancement of the SAP S/4HANA 
system, which introduced advanced 
digital tools and process improve-
ments across various business func-
tions. These upgrades streamlined 
operations in finance, procurement, 
warehousing, production, quality con-
trol, sales, transportation, and plant 
maintenance, driving greater efficien-
cy and ensuring seamless workflow 
integration across the organization.

Nadec’s digital transformation project 
aimed to establish a unified informa-
tion source to streamline business op-
erations and enable seamless process 
integration. This initiative provided 
real-time data access for transactions 
and inventory management across 
multiple departments, enhancing de-
cision-making and operational effi-
ciency. The transformation efforts also 
focused on enterprise resource plan-
ning (ERP) and the development of a 
comprehensive roadmap for continu-
ous improvements and strategic en-
hancements in business operations.

Nadec’s digital transformation includ-
ed the implementation of advanced 
process optimization solutions, such 
as Signavio Process Insights, SAP Sig-
navio Process Manager, and Signavio 
Process Collaboration Hub. These 
tools played a key role in streamlin-
ing business operations, enhancing 
collaboration, and improving process 
efficiency. Additionally, they contrib-
uted to the development of a com-
prehensive and precise roadmap for 
ongoing improvements and strategic 
enhancements across nadec’s busi-
ness operations. 

Streamlining Processes 
Enhancing and simplifying internal 
procedures to improve efficiency for 
nadec employees.

Integrating New Tech-
nologies 
Expanding the adoption of cut-
ting-edge technologies across vari-
ous business functions.

Advancing Automation 
Increasing reliance on automated 
systems to boost efficiency and min-
imize errors.

Strengthening Business 
Partnerships 
Building strong collaborations with 
business partners and fostering 
cross-functional engagement to en-
hance service delivery and opera-
tional support.

Aligning with nadec’s 
"New Dawn" 
Strategy In 2024, nadec’s technology 
and digital sector underwent significant 
expansion, driven by strategic growth 
initiatives, technological advancements, 
and digital transformation efforts aimed 
at enhancing operational efficiency. This 
expansion aligns with nadec’s "New 
Dawn" strategy, introduced in 2022, re-
inforcing our long-term commitment to 
innovation and progress.

Technologies Empowering Employees in Monitoring 
Compliance at nadec:

Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition System (SCADA)

Personal Data Protection 
System (PDPL)

Implementation of Phase 
Two of E-Invoicing

Development of 
Technological Infrastructure 
for Operations, Compliance, 
and Industrial Automation

To enhance regulatory compliance, nadec has adopted modern supervisory technologies to support employ-
ees in streamlining financial processes, minimizing inefficiencies, and improving overall efficiency. These 
advancements have simplified workflows across departments while integrating operations with government 
portals, ensuring adherence to international standards and regulatory compliance.

Cyber security 
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2024 Achievements 
in Workforce 
Investment and Digital 
Transformation at nadec

�� ISO 27001 Certification – Awarded in April 
2024 for information security management 
in food manufacturing activities.

�� ISO 9001 Certification (QMS) – Received 
for quality management systems in nadec’s 
technology and digital division, recogniz-
ing the company’s commitment to quality 
control, process management, and service 
excellence at the highest standards.

�� Best Achievement in Business Process Man-
agement – Awarded as part of the BTOES 
(The Business Transformation & Operation-
al Excellence Awards), recognizing nadec’s 
success in empowering business users and 
enhancing operational excellence.

Key Technologies 
Supporting Our Employees
In 2024, nadec focused on enhancing technol-
ogy adoption to support its employees while 
strengthening relationships with both custom-
ers and suppliers through two major initiatives:

Customer and Employee 
Communication Support 
Applications

1- B2B (Business-to-Business) Application 

Designed to facilitate commercial transactions 
between nadec and its distributors and whole-
salers, along with the establishment of a ded-
icated contact center to handle their inquiries.

2-  Ariba SLP (Supplier Lifecycle and 
Performance) System

Implemented to assist employees in managing 
supplier lifecycle and performance, enabling 
better assessment of supplier capabilities and 
compliance with standards.

These initiatives have contributed to support-
ing our employees by:

�� Enhancing cost monitoring for better finan-
cial oversight.

�� Improving cash flow management for 
greater efficiency.

�� Increasing transparency by enabling finan-
cial tracking and ensuring compliance with 
contract terms.
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Governance5
Organizational and Administrative Structure

Board of Directors and Senior Executives	

Investor Relations

Board of Directors

Committees and Their Main Responsibilities

Executive Management	

Remuneration

Transactions with Related Parties and 
Competing Businesses

Governance, Risks, and Compliance

Internal Audit
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Organizational and 
Administrative Structure

General Assembly

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Executive Committee

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Internal Audit
Department

Chief Executive Officer

Support Functions Core Functions

Governance, Risks,
Compliance and Legal

Finance

Procurement

Digital and Technology

Human Resource

Strategy

Supply Chain and Logistics Contract Farming

Dairy

Agriculture

Manufacturing

Protein

Sales and Distribution

Marketing and Development

Board of Directors and 
Senior Executives

The Board of Directors consists of seven (7) members elected by the Ordinary General Assembly of Sharehold-
ers through a cumulative voting process. The roles and responsibilities of the Board are clearly defined in the 
company’s Bylaws and Internal Governance Regulations. Each director, including the Chairman, serves for a 
maximum term of four (4) years, with the possibility of re-election, subject to the provisions of the company’s 
bylaws. The current term of the Board of Directors commenced on April 11, 2024.

The executive management team has the necessary expertise and skills and operates under the supervision of 
the Board of Directors. The CEO is responsible for overseeing day-to-day operations, ensuring alignment with the 
vision, directives and policies set by the Board to facilitate the achievement of company’s strategic objectives.

Evaluation of Board Performance

The evaluation of the Board of Directors and its committees is conducted in accordance with estab-
lished governance standards. This process serves to monitor and enhance the effectiveness of the Board 
and its committees in performing their duties in an optimal manner and in compliance with the Compa-
nies Law, the Company’s Bylaws, and relevant laws and regulations, while adhering to sound corporate 
governance principles and practices. 

Term of Board Membership

In 2024, the fourteenth term of the Board of Directors ended on April 10, 2024. The Board was composed 
of the following members: Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi - Mr. Abdullatif Bin Abdullah Al Rajhi  - Mr. 
Bader Bin Abdulrahman Al Sayari - Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal  - Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Mohammad Alru-
gaib - Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini  - Mr. Ibrahim Bin Muhammad Al-Amer.

Appointment of Board Members

In 2024, the Ordinary General Assembly, held on March 20, 2024, elected the Board of Directors for the 
current term, which commenced on April 11, 2024, and will conclude on April 10, 2028, for a period of 
four years. The Board consists of the following members: Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Alrebdi - Mr. Ahmed 
Bin Saud Shahini - Mr. Alaa Bin Abdullah Alhashem - Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Alrowais - Mr. Issa Bin Saleh 
Al-Huraimis - Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid Almeshary - Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal.
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Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Membership 
Type:

•• Chairman of the Board of Directors (Non-Executive Member)

Date of 
Appointment 
(Current Term):

•• Commencement of current term: 11 April 2024.

•• Date of Appointment: 11 April 2024.

Committee 
Membership:

•• Chairman of the Executive Committee

Professional 
Experience and 
Qualifications 
(Current):

•• Founder and Chairman of the Board - ESR Financial Consultancy Office.

•• Chairman of the Board - Arrangement Event Company for Exhibitions.

•• Board Member, Chairman of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee and Mem-
ber of the Audit Committee - The Family Office International Investment Company.

•• Board Member and Member of the Investment Committee - Al-Obeikan Glass Company.

•• Vice Chairman of the Board - Minerva Foods Company.

•• Board Member and Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee - 
Seera Holding Group.

Professional 
Experience and 
Qualifications 
(Previous):

•• Managing Director - National Agricultural Development Company (nadec).

•• General Director - Lazurde Industrial Investment Group.

•• Project Manager - Saudi Industrial Development Fund.

•• Project Analyst - Saudi Industrial Development Fund.

•• Board Member and Member of the Audit Committee - Al Hammadi Development 
and Investment Company.

•• Board Member - Walaa Cooperative Insurance Company.

•• Board Member - Takween Advanced Industries Company. 

•• Board Member - Abdullah Al-Othaim Markets.

•• Board Member - Abdulmohsen Al-Hokair Group for Tourism and Development Company.

•• Board Member - Saudi Agricultural and Livestock Investment Company (SALIC).

•• Board Member - Al-Obeikan Industrial Group.

•• Board Member - Saline Water Conversion Corporation.

•• Board Member - Social Development Bank.

•• Board Member and Executive Committee Member - Saudi Investment Recycling 
Company (SIRC).

•• Chairman of the Board - Naseej for Communications and Information Technology.
Educational 
Qualifications:

•• Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Management from King Fahd University of Petro-
leum and Minerals.

Memberships of the board outside of nadec:

Current Board  
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Al-Obeikan 
Glass Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

Al Hammadi 
Development and 

Investment Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

The Family Of-
fice Internation-

al Investment 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Joint- Stock 

Company

Walaa Cooperative 
Insurance Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

Minerva Foods 
Company

Outside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock (Brazil)

Takween Advanced 
Industries Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

Seera Holding 
Group.

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

Abdullah Al-Othaim 
Markets

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

- - -

Abdulmohsen Al-
Hokair Group for 

Tourism and Devel-
opment Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

- - -

Abdulmohsen 
Al-Hokair Group 
for Tourism and 
Development 

Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company

- - -
Saudi Agricultural and 
Livestock Investment 

Company (SALIC)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted

- - -
Al-Obeikan 

Industrial Group
Inside the 
Kingdom

Saudi Govern-
mental Organiza-

tion

- - -
Social Development 

Bank
Inside the 
Kingdom

Financial Institu-
tion

- - -
Saudi Investment 

Recycling Company 
(SIRC)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted

- - -

Naseej for 
Communication 
and Information 

Technology Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint- 
Stock Company
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Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini
Deputy Chairman of the Board

Membership 
Type:

•• Deputy Chairman of the Board (Non-Executive)

Date of 
Appointment 
(Current Term):

•• Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2024

•• Date of Appointment: 11 April 2024

Committee 
Membership:

•• Member of the Executive Committee and Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.

Professional 
Experience and 
Qualifications 
(Current):

•• CEO of Local Investments - Saudi Agricultural and Livestock Investment Company 
(SALIC)

•• Board Member and Chairman of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee 
- Khair Inorganic Chemical Industries (InoChem)

•• Board Member - National Aquaculture Group NAQUA

•• Board Member - National Grain Supplies Company (SABL)

Professional 
Experience and 
Qualifications 
(Previous):

•• Board Member - Naba Al Saha Medical Services Company

•• Board Member - BlomInvest Company

•• Advisor to the CEO - Saudi Agricultural and Livestock Investment Company 
(SALIC)

•• Executive Director of Business Development - Shahini Holding Group.

•• Supply Chain Management - Procter & Gamble

•• General Manager - Shahini Distribution Company

•• Board Member – Saudi Boxing Federation.

•• Board Member - Shahini Holding Group

Educational 
Qualifications:

•• Master’s Degree in Business Administration from IMD Business School, 
Switzerland, and Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Management from King Fahd 
University of Petroleum and Minerals, Dhahran.

Memberships of the board outside of nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships:

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous 
Board 

Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

National 
Aquaculture 

Group 
NAQUA

Inside the 
Kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Naba Al Saha 
Medical 
Services 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Khair 
Inorganic 
Chemical 
Industries 
(InoChem)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

BlomInvest 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

SABL
Inside the 
kingdom

Limited 
Liability 
Company

Saudi Boxing 
Federation

Inside the 
Kingdom

Other

- - -
Shahini 
Holding 
Group

Inside the 
Kingdom

Limited 
Liability 
Company
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Mr. Alaa Bin Abdullah Al-Hashem
Board Member

Membership 
Type:

•• Non-Executive Member

Appointment 
Date (Current 
Term):

•• Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2024

•• Date of Appointment :11 April 2024

Committee 
Memberships:

•• Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Professional 
Experience 
& Skills 
(Current): 

•• Vice Chairman of the Board - Arabian Mills for Food Products

•• Board Member - Governance Center (Under the Public Investment Fund)

•• Board Member - National Poultry Company

•• Board Member - Egyptian National Poultry Company

•• Board Member - National Industrial Company

•• Board Member - Sulaiman Al Rajhi Real Estate Investment Company

Professional 
Experience 
& Skills 
(Previous):

•• Board Member - Sulaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al Rajhi Holding Company

•• Chief Executive Officer - Sulaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al Rajhi Holding Company

•• Managing Director - Governance Center (Under the Public Investment Fund)

•• Managing Director - Al Malaz Financial

•• Head of Business Development in Saudi Arabia - Deloitte Middle East

•• Chief Executive Officer - Gulf Investment and Development Company

Academic 
Qualifications:

•• Master’s Degree in Business Administration, Lancaster University, United Kingdom 

•• Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting, King Fahd University of Petroleum and Minerals 

•• Professional Diploma and Fellowship in Corporate Leadership, Institute of 
Directors, United Kingdom 

Board and Committee Memberships Outside nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside / 
Outside Saudi 

Arabia
Legal Entity

Previous 
Board 

Memberships

Inside / 
Outside Saudi 

Arabia
Legal Entity

Governance 
Center

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Limited 
Liability 
Company

Sulaiman Al 
Rajhi Holding 

Company

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Limited 
Liability 
Company

Al Balad 
Development 

Company

(Audit 
Committee)

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -

Arabian Mills 
for Food 
Products

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Listed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

National 
Poultry 

Company

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Egyptian 
National 
Poultry 

Company

Outside Saudi 
Arabia

Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -

National 
Industrial 
Company

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Sulaiman 
Al Rajhi 

Real Estate 
Investment 
Company

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -
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Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Al-Ruwais
Board Member
Membership 
Type:

•• Independent member*

Appointment 
Date (Current 
Term):

•• Start of the current board term: 11 April 2024

•• Date of Appointment :11 April 2024

Committee 
Memberships:

•• Chairman of the Audit Committee

Professional 
Experience & 
Skills (Current):

•• Board Member, Audit Committee Member, and Risk Committee Member – 
Hassana Investment Company

•• Board Member, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Risk Committee Member, and 
Governance Committee Member – The Saudi Investment Bank

•• Board Member and Member of the Nomination Committee – Saudi Mining 
Services Company (ESNAD)

•• Board Member - Aluminium Bahrain Company (Alba)

•• Member of the Audit Committee – The Industrialization Energy Services 
Company (TAQA)

•• Member of the Audit Committee – The Arabian Geophysical and Surveying 
Company (ARGAS)

•• Board Member, Chairman of the Audit Committee, and Vice Chairman of the Risk 
and Compliance Committee – Saudi Electricity Company

Professional 
Experience 
& Skills 
(Previous):

•• Board Member and Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee – 
SABIC Agri-Nutrients Company

•• Banking Supervision Department - Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA)

•• Finance Manager - Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (SABIC)

•• Treasury Manager - Saudi Arabian Mining Company (Ma’aden)

•• Executive Director & Vice President of Strategy and Planning - Saudi Arabian 
Mining Company (Ma’aden)

•• Vice President of Finance & Chief Financial Officer - Saudi Arabian Mining Company 
(Ma’aden)

•• Senior Vice President of Phosphates - Saudi Arabian Mining Company (Ma’aden)

•• Senior Executive Advisor - Saudi Arabian Mining Company (Ma’aden)

•• Member of the Audit Committee – National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem)
Academic 
Qualifications:

•• Bachelor's degree in Accounting, May 1984, King Saud University

•• Certified as an AICPA in 1990 – American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

*The membership status has been updated due to the end of the independence conflict. 

Board Memberships Outside nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside / 
Outside 

Saudi Arabia
Legal Entity

Previous 
Board 

Memberships

Inside / 
Outside 

Saudi Arabia
Legal Entity

Saudi 
Electricity 
Company

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Listed 
Joint-Stock 
company

SABIC Agri-
Nutrients

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Listed 
Joint-Stock 
company

Hassana 
Investment 
Company

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Middle 
East Paper 
Company 
(MEPCO)

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Listed 
Joint-Stock 
company

The Saudi 
Investment 

Bank

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Listed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Aljazira 
Capital

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Saudi Mining 
Services 
Company 
(ESNAD)

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Aluminium 
Bahrain 

Company 
(Alba) 

Outside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -
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Mr. Issa Bin Saleh Al-Huraimis
Board Member

Membership 
Type:

•• Independent Member

Appointment 
Date (Current 
Term):

•• Start of the current board term: 11 April 2024

•• Date of Appointment : 11 April 2024

Committee 
Memberships:

•• Member of the Audit Committee.

Professional 
Experience 
& Skills 
(Current):

•• Executive Vice President - Head of Retail Banking Risks - The National 
Commercial Bank (NCB)

•• Board Member - SIMAH Credit Rating Agency

•• Board Member - Social Development Bank

Professional 
Experience 
& Skills 
(Previous):

•• Head of Strategy Execution - Al Rajhi Bank

•• Head of Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) Banking in the Kingdom - Al 
Rajhi Bank

•• Head of Retail Banking Risks - Credit & Risk Group - Al Rajhi Bank

•• Head of Large Corporate Banking Group in the Kingdom – Al Rajhi Bank

•• Head of Corporate Banking in the Central Region – Al Rajhi Bank

•• Team Leader - Corporate Banking in the Central Region - Al Rajhi Bank

•• Senior Corporate Relations Manager - Corporate Banking - Arab National Bank

•• Corporate Credit Officer - Zahid Tractor & Heavy Equipment Co.

Board Memberships Outside nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside / 
Outside 

Saudi Arabia
Legal Entity

Previous 
Board 

Memberships

Inside / 
Outside 

Saudi Arabia
Legal Entity

SIMAH 
Credit Rating 

Agency

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -

Social 
Development 

Bank

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Government 
Bank

- - -

Academic 
Qualifications:

•• Master’s degree in Business Administration with a focus on International 
Finance from Al Yamamah University in Riyadh, May 30, 2017.

•• Master’s degree in International Business Administration from INSEEC Business 
School in Paris, France, September 29, 2017.

•• Advanced Diploma in International Financial Management from Washington 
State University, USA, June 25, 2017.

•• Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with a focus on Economics from 
the Arab Open University in Riyadh, August 2, 2013.

•• Diploma in Business Administration from the Riyadh Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, Saudi Arabia, June 1, 1999.

•• Completed an Executive Leadership Program focusing on Organizational 
Leadership and Innovation from Bain & Company Academy in London, UK, 
January 12, 2017.

•• Diploma in Organizational Leadership from London Business School, London, 
UK, 2019.

•• Completed the Master Class Program in Change Leadership and Strategy 
Execution from INSEAD Business School, April 16, 2017.
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Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid AlMeshary
Board Member

Membership 
Type:

•• Independent Member

Appointment 
Date (Current 
Term):

•• Start of the current board term: 11 April 2024

•• Date of Appointment : 11 April 2024

Committee 
Memberships:

•• Member of the Executive Committee

Professional 
Experience 
& Skills 
(Current):

•• Board Member - Madar Logistics Platforms

•• Vice President of Strategic Partnerships and Alliances - Elm Company

Professional 
Experience 
& Skills 
(Previous):

•• Vice President of Business Sectors - Elm Company

•• Vice President, Training Solutions - Elm Company

•• Consultant, Privacy and Security Officer - Elm Company

•• Executive Advisor to the Chief Information Officer (CIO) / Chief Information 
Security Officer (CISO), Deputy Minister for Information and Technology – 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Riyadh. 

•• Project Manager C4I / Advisory Team Leader, Al Diriyah Project, Ministry 
of Defense and Aviation, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia – Sysorex Arabia United 
Company.

•• Assistant Professor in Computer Networks / Information Security, Public 
Administration Institute, Riyadh

•• Network Officer / Information Security Officer, F.I.T University, Melbourne, 
Florida, USA

•• Network Officer and Lecturer, Public Administration Institute, Riyadh, Saudi 
Arabia

•• Teaching Assistant, King Saud University, College of Computer and Information 
Science, Computer Engineering, Riyadh, Saudi Arabia

•• Data Operator, Schlumberger, Alexandria, Egypt

Board Memberships Outside nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside / 
Outside 

Saudi Arabia
Legal Entity

Previous 
Board 

Memberships

Inside / 
Outside 

Saudi Arabia
Legal Entity

Madar 
Logistics 
Platforms

Inside Saudi 
Arabia

Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -

Academic 
Qualifications:

•• Completed an Executive Training Program in Leadership from the Oxford 
Advanced Management and Leadership Program, June 26, 2011

•• Earned a Ph.D. with Honors in Information Security Engineering from Florida 
Institute of Technology, July 12, 2004.

•• Master’s Degree with Honors in Computer Network Engineering, King Saud 
University, 1993-1996

•• Bachelor’s Degree with Honors in Computer Engineering, King Saud University, 
1984-1989
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Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal
Board Member
Membership Type: •• Independent Member
Date of 
Appointment 
(Current Term):

•• Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2024

•• Appointment Date: 11 April 2024

Committee 
Memberships:

•• Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Member of the 
Executive Committee

Professional 
Experience and 
Qualifications 
(Current):

•• Chief Executive Officer - Namara Investment Company and all its subsidiary 
companies - Dr. Sulaiman Al Habib Investment Company

••  Board Chairman, Chairman of Executive Committee, and Member of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee Nice One Beauty Digital Marketing Company

•• Board Member, Saudi Morgan Stanely Company
•• Board Member, Member of the Investment Committee and Member of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Marafiq Electricity and Water Company in Jubail and Yanbu (Marafiq)
•• Board Member, Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Member of the Executive Committee, Saudi Investment Recycling Company (SIRC)
•• Board Member, Hamad M. Al Rugaib and Sons Trading Company
•• Board Member, International Healthcare Company (Whites and Kunooz Pharmacies)
•• Board Member and Chairman of the Investment Committee - Saudi Egyptian Industrial 

Investment Company
•• Board Member - October Pharma Company
•• Board Member - Merak Capital Company

Professional 
Experiences and 
Qualifications 
(Previous):

•• Head of Private and Investment Banking - Jadwa Investment Company
•• Deputy Head of Investment Banking - Saudi French Capital
•• Chief of Registration and Listing Unit, Industry and Services Sector in the Capital 

Market Authority; he assumed several other positions
•• Credit Officer, Corporate Banking Services Management - Samba Financial Group
•• Board Member and Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee – Fund 

of Funds Company (Jada)
•• Investment Committee Member – Saudi Agricultural and Livestock Investment 

Company (SALIC)
•• Vice Chairman of the Board – Ban Holding Group (formerly Abdulmohsen Alhokair 

Group for Tourism and Development)
•• Board Member – Venture Capital and Private Equity Association, a Saudi association 

established pursuant to a decision of the Council of Ministers

Educational 
Qualifications:

•• Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Rice University in Houston, USA, and 
Bachelor’s Degree in Management Information Systems from King Fahd University of 
Petroleum and Minerals

Memberships of the board outside of nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships:

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Nice One Beauty 
Digital Marketing 

Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Joint-Stock 
company

- - -

Power and Water 
Utility Company for 

Jubail and Yanbu 
(MARAFIQ)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Company
Saudi Agricultural and 
Livestock Investment 

Company (SALIC)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Saudi Investment 
Recycling Company 

(SIRC)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint- 
Stock Company

JADA Fund of Funds 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
joint stock 
company

Saudi Egyptian 
Industrial 

Investments 
Company

Outside the 
kingdom

Unlisted Foreign 
Joint-Stock 
company

Ban Holding Group 
(formerly Abdulmohsen 

Alhokair Group for Tourism 
and Development)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Company

October Pharma 
Company

Outside the 
kingdom

Listed Foreign 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Venture Capital 
and Private Equity 

Association, a 
Saudi association 

established pursuant 
to a decision of the 
Council of Ministers

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Joint-Stock 
company

Saudi Morgan 
Stanley Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint-
Stock  company

- - -

The International 
Healthcare 

Company (Whites 
and Kunooz 
Pharmacies)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted joint 
stock company

- - -

Hamat Holding 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint- 
Stock Company

- - -

Hamad M. Al 
Rugaib and Sons 
Trading Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint-
Stock company

- - -

Merak Capital 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint-
Stock company

- - -
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Mr. Abdullatif Bin Abdullah Al Rajhi 
Deputy Chairman of the Board

Membership 
Type:

•• Deputy Chairman of the Board (Non-Executive)

Date of 
Appointment 
(Previous 
Term):

•• Commencement of Previous Term: 11 April 2021.

•• Date of Appointment: 11 April 2021.

•• End of Membership: 10 April 2024.

Committee 
Membership:

•• Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Educational 
Qualifications:

•• Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the American University - 
Beirut.

Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Mohammad Alrugaib
Board Member

Membership 
Type:

•• Independent Board Member

Date of 
Appointment 
(Previous Term):

•• Commencement of Previous Term: 11 April 2021.

•• Date of Appointment: 5 April 2022.

•• End of Membership: 10 April 2024.

Committee 
Membership:

•• Member of the Executive Committee.

Educational 
Qualifications:

•• Master’s Degree in Chemical Engineering from Cornell University, USA, and 
Bachelor’s Degree in Petroleum Engineering from the University of Kansas, USA. 

Mr. Bader Bin Abdulrahman Al Sayari
Board Member

Membership 
Type:

•• Non-Executive Board Member

Date of 
Appointment 
(Previous 
Term):

•• Commencement of Previous Term: 11 April 2021.

•• Date of Appointment: 11 April 2021.

•• End of Membership: 10 April 2024.

Committee 
Membership:

•• Member of the Executive Committee.

Educational 
Qualifications:

•• Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from King Saud University.

Mr. Ibrahim Bin Muhammad Al-Amer
Board Member

Membership 
Type:

•• Independent Board Member

Date of 
Appointment 
(Previous Term):

•• Commencement of Previous Term: 11 April 2021.

•• Date of Appointment: 5 October 2022.

•• End of Membership: 10 April 2024.

Committee 
Membership:

•• Member of the Audit Committee

•• Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Educational 
Qualifications:

•• Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull, United King-
dom; and Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from Imam Muhammad ibn Saud Univer-
sity; and completed an Executive Program at London Business School.
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Investor Relations

Company Announcements on Tadawul
Nadec announced a number of strategic events and activities carried out throughout the year, which have been 
listed on the official website of the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul). Below is a brief overview of each of these 
events and activities, categorized by announcement date, type, and subject:

Announcement 
Date

Announcement 
Type 

Explanation

1 07/01/2024 Notice to 
Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces 
receiving a notification regarding the adjustment of fuel prices from Aramco 

2 14/01/2024 Notice to 
Shareholders

Ref Addendum Announcement from National Agricultural Development 
Company (nadec) in regard to receiving a notification regarding the 

adjustment of fuel prices from Aramco 
3 18/02/2024 Annual Financial 

Results for the 
Year 2023

The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces its 
annual financial results for the year ended 31 December 2023

4 27/02/2024 Invitation of the 
Ordinary General 

Assembly 
Meeting

The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces 
inviting the Company’s shareholders to attend the 38th Ordinary General 

Meeting (First Meeting) via modern technology means

5 13/03/2024 Notice to 
Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces the 
start of electronic voting on the agenda of the 38th General Assembly 

meeting (First Meeting)
6 17/03/2024 Signing of a 

Memorandum of 
Understanding

National Agricultural Development Co. Announces an update on The 
National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces recent 

developments on signing of a memorandum of understanding with 
United Feeds Company to explore cooperation in establishing a livestock 

project specializing in (Sheep and Goats). 
7 20/03/2024 Results of the 

Ordinary General 
Assembly

The National Agricultural Development Co. Announces the Results of the 
Ordinary General Assembly Meeting, ( First Meeting )

8 14/04/2024 Notice to 
Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Co. (nadec) Announces the 
appointment of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, 
the formation of the Board Committees, the appointment of the Company’s 

representatives, and the appointment of the Board Secretary.
9 14/04/2024 Notice to 

Shareholders
The National Agricultural Development Co. (nadec) Announces the 

Formation of Audit Committee

10 05/05/2024 Financial Results The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces its 
Interim Financial results for the Period Ending on 2024-03-31 (Three Months)

Announcement 
Date

Announcement 
Type 

Explanation

11 23/05/2024 Phone Interview The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces that 
it has conducted an Earnings Conference Call to discuss the financial 

results for the first quarter of 2024 with Investors and Financial Analysts
12 25/06/2024 Notice to 

Shareholders
The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) Announces 

Approval by the Capital Market Authority for the Offering of 30% of the 
Shares of Arabian Mills for Food Products Company "a Company Invested 
In" for Initial Public Offering (IPO) on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul)

13 21/07/2024 Financial Results The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces its 
Interim Financial results for the Period Ending on 30-06-2024 (Six Months)

14 22/09/2024 Results of the 
Ordinary General 

Assembly 
Meeting

Addendum Announcement from the National Agricultural Development 
Company (nadec) Regarding the Company's Announcement of the 

Results of the 38th Ordinary General Assembly Meeting (First Meeting)

15 09/10/2024 Notice to 
Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces an update 
on CMA Approval by the Capital Market Authority for the Offering of 30% of the 
Shares of Arabian Mills for Food Products Company "a company invested in" for 

Initial Public Offering (IPO) on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul)
16 20/10/2024 Financial Results The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces its 

Interim Financial results for the Period Ending on 30-09-2024 (Nine Months)

17 20/10/2024 Corrective 
Announcement 

Regarding 
the Initial 

Financial Results 
Announcement

Correction announcement from The National Agricultural Development 
Company (nadec) in regards to the interim financial results for the 

period ending on 30-09-2024 (Nine Months)

18 03/11/2024 Conference Call The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces that it 
has conducted an Earnings Conference Call to discuss the financial results 

for the third quarter of 2024 with Investors and Financial Analysts
19 22/12/2024 Notice to 

Shareholders
The National Agricultural Development Company (nadec) announces the 

publication of its Sustainability and ESG Report

Annual Report  | 2024

144 145144 145
At a Glance Strategic 

Review
Sustainability and 

CSR Review
Human 

Resources
Governance financial 

statements



Investor Relations Management
Nadec is committed to implementing disclosure policies and procedures in accordance with relevant laws, 
regulations, and guidelines. The company strives to enhance communication channels with both local and 
foreign investors. Throughout 2024, nadec actively participated in local and international conferences and 
regular meetings through its Investor Relations Department, reflecting its commitment to the principles of 
transparency and fairness in providing timely information.

 This aims to assist investors in making informed investment decisions based on accurate information provided 
by the company, including comprehensive details about the company's performance and activities through its 
annual Board of Directors report. Additionally, nadec ensures continuous updates on any significant develop-
ments that may impact the company’s financial position and operations, without compromising its competi-
tive standing.

Shareholder Rights
In its commitment to strengthening relationships with its shareholders, investors, and stakeholders, and in 
safeguarding their rights, nadec firmly believes in the importance of corporate governance. This approach aims 
to protect shareholders' rights and enhance internal controls by activating the role of the Board of Directors 
and its sub-committees, while adhering to the principles of disclosure and transparency. Throughout 2024, 
nadec maintained its commitment to the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Au-
thority, as well as other relevant regulations.

Accordingly, in addition to disclosing its performance and financial results in this report, nadec provides infor-
mation relevant to its shareholders, the investor community, and stakeholders, in compliance with applicable 
regulations and international best practices. This reflects nadec’s dedication to governance and transparency 
as outlined below:

First: Shareholders’ Rights and 
Communication Mechanism:
In line with its unwavering commitment to upholding 
shareholders’ rights and in compliance with applica-
ble regulations, nadec has incorporated shareholder 
rights into its Bylaws and Corporate Governance Reg-
ulations, both of which are available on the compa-
ny’s official website.

Second: Enhancing 
Shareholders’ and Investors’ 
Access to Information
Nadec ensures that shareholders and investors have 
access to information by publishing financial reports, 
announcements, and material decisions on the Sau-
di Stock Exchange (Tadawul) website and in daily 
newspapers. Additionally, the company publishes 
the annual Board of Directors report. nadec also has 
a dedicated department responsible for managing 
shareholder affairs and responding to their inquiries.

Third: Procedures for Informing 
Board Members of Shareholders’ 
suggestions and Feedback 
on the Company and Its 
Performance
The company ensures that Board members are in-
formed of shareholders’ suggestions and feedback 
regarding the company and its performance through 
the following procedures:

1-	 Shareholders’ suggestions and feedback (if any) are 
regularly presented to Board members during the 
upcoming Board meeting or through any other com-
munication channels that facilitate this process.

2-	 The company holds regular meetings with investors 
(earnings calls), and the Board is informed of any sig-
nificant suggestions submitted during these sessions.

3-	 Board members attend shareholders’ general meet-
ings, where shareholders can present their sugges-
tions and feedback directly to the Board. The Board 
responds to these suggestions during the meeting. 
Additionally, the Chairman of the Board may dis-
cuss certain shareholder-related topics and sug-
gestions concerning the company’s performance in 
closed sessions without the presence of executive 
members, if necessary.
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Fourth: Shareholder Register Requests
In 2024, the company’s shareholder register was requested eight (8) times through the Securities Depository 
Center (Edaa), and the following is a statement of the request dates and reasons:

Request date Reasons for request 

1 02/01/2024 Company procedures

2 21/01/2024 Company procedures

3 05/03/2024 Company procedures

4 11/03/2024 Company procedures

5 17/03/2024 Company procedures

6 19/03/2024 General Assembly

7 21/07/2024 Company procedures

8 03/12/2024 Company procedures

Fifth: Dividend Distribution Policy
The Board of Directors’ recommendations regarding dividend distribution are presented to the company’s 
shareholders at the General Assembly meeting (held annually) for review and approval in accordance with 
the following provisions:

1-	 The resolution specifies the entitlement and dis-
tribution dates. Dividends are entitled to share-
holders registered in the shareholders' registry at 
the end of the specified entitlement date.

2-	 The Ordinary General Assembly, based on the Board’s 
recommendation, may allocate a certain percentage 
of net profits to form a statutory reserve designated 
for purposes determined by the Assembly.

3-	 The Ordinary General Assembly may approve the for-
mation of other reserves as needed to serve the com-
pany’s interests or to ensure the distribution of stable 
dividends to shareholders. Additionally, the Assembly 
may allocate a portion of the net profits to establish a 
social organization for the company’s employees.

4-	 The remaining profits, after the aforementioned 
allocations, will be distributed to shareholders 
as a dividend representing 5% of the company’s 
paid-up capital, in accordance with the compa-
ny’s ByLaws, the Companies Law, and relevant 
regulations. The General Assembly may also allo-
cate a specific percentage of the remaining net 
profits as remuneration for Board members, pro-
vided that the entitlement is proportionate to the 
number of meetings attended by each member.

5-	 If no dividends are distributed for any fiscal year, 
dividends for subsequent years cannot be distrib-
uted until the specified percentage is paid to pre-
ferred shareholders (if any) for that year, in line 
with applicable regulations.

If the company’s General Assembly authorizes the Board to distribute interim dividends, the Board—if it 
deems appropriate—shall distribute dividends periodically during that year after fulfilling the requirements 
stipulated in regulations issued by relevant authorities and the company’s ByLaws. These include:

1-	 The Ordinary General Assembly must annually re-
new the resolution authorizing the Board to dis-
tribute interim dividends.

2-	 The company should demonstrate consistent 
profitability.

3-	 The company must maintain reasonable liquidity 
and have a reliable forecast of its profit levels.

4-	 The company must have distributable profits, as 
per the latest audited financial statements, suf-
ficient to cover the proposed dividends after de-
ducting any previously distributed profits since 
the date of those financial statements.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors held nine (9) meetings in 2024, including five (5) in-person meetings and four (4) meet-
ings conducted by circulation, as detailed in the table below. No Board member delegated another member to 
attend on their behalf during 2024.

The Board dedicated sufficient time to fulfilling its responsibilities towards the company, including preparing 
for Board and committee meetings and ensuring active participation.

The following table sets forth the attendance record of each member of the Board of Directors at these meetings:

Attendance Record for Members of the Board of Directors 
for the year 2024

Attendance Record for Members of the Board of Directors for the year 2024

Member 
Name

Previous Term Current Term

1st 
Meeting 

(By cir-
culation)

2nd 
meet-

ing

3rd 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

4th 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

5th 
meeting 

6th 
meeting 

7th 
meeting

8th 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

9th 
meeting 

10th 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

20 Feb 27 Feb 14 Mar 18 Mar 13 Apr 19 May 05 Aug 21 Nov 28 Nov 30 Dec

1

Mr. Abdulaziz 
Bin Saleh 
Alrebdi - 
Chairman

ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

2
Mr. Ahmed 
Bin Saud 
Shahini 

ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

3
Mr. Amr Bin 
Abdulaziz 
Aljallal 

ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

4
Mr. Abdullatif  
Bin Abdullah 
Al Rajhi

ü ü ü ü
Mem-

bership 
Ended

Member-
ship Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

5
Mr. Bader Bin 
Abdulrahman 
Al Sayari

ü ü ü ü
Mem-

bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Attendance Record for Members of the Board of Directors for the year 2024

Member 
Name

Previous Term Current Term

1st 
Meeting 

(By cir-
culation)

2nd 
meet-

ing

3rd 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

4th 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

5th 
meeting 

6th 
meeting 

7th 
meeting

8th 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

9th 
meeting 

10th 
meeting 
(By cir-

culation)

20 Feb 27 Feb 14 Mar 18 Mar 13 Apr 19 May 05 Aug 21 Nov 28 Nov 30 Dec

6

Mr. 
Abdulaziz Bin 
Muhammad 
Alrugaib

ü ü ü ü
Mem-

bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

7

Mr. 
Ibrahim Bin 
Muhammad 
Al-Amer

ü ü ü ü
Mem-

bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

8
Mr. Khalid 
Bin Salem 
Al-Ruwais

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

ü ü ü ü ü ü

9
 Mr. Alaa Bin 
Abduallh Al 
Hashem

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

ü ü ü ü ü ü

10
Mr. Issa Bin 
Saleh 
Al-Huraimis

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

ü ü ü ü ü ü

11
Dr. Nasser 
Bin Zaid 
AlMeshary

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

ü ü ü ü ü ü
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Measures Taken by the Board of Directors to Keep Members, 
Particularly Non-Executives, Informed About Shareholder 
Suggestions and Feedback on the Company and Its 
Performance:
The Chairman of the Board of Directors informs its members, particularly non-executives, about any suggestions 
and feedback received from shareholders regarding the company and its performance at the first Board meeting 
of the year. The Board of Directors has delegated the company to take the necessary measures to facilitate the 
shareholders in submitting their suggestions and feedback through the available communication channels of 
the Investor Relations Department, which are as follows:

Main Phone: 0112027777

Email: IR@nadec.COM.SA

Annual General Assembly Meeting:
In accordance with the Board of Directors’ regulations, which stipulate the obligation of Board members to 
attend General Assembly meetings, the company convened a single Annual General Assembly meeting on 
March 19, 2024. This underscores the Board’s commitment to interacting with shareholders, receiving their 
suggestions, and gathering feedback on the company and its performance. 

Member name General Assembly Meeting

1 Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi ü

2 Mr. Abdullatif Bin Abdullah AlRajhi ü

3 Mr. Bader Bin Abdulrahman Al Sayari û

4 Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal ü

5 Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Mohammed Alrugaib ü

6 Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini ü

7 Mr. Ibrahim Bin Muhammad Al-Amer ü

The new members were elected during the Ordinary General Assembly meeting held on 19/03/2024, with 
the term commencing on 11/04/2024.
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Committees and Their Main 
Responsibilities

Board Committees
The company’s Board of Directors has established several committees 
based on the company's needs, circumstances, and conditions, enabling 
them to perform their duties effectively and meet relevant regulatory re-
quirements. These committees include the Audit Committee, the Nomi-
nation and Remuneration Committee, and the Executive Committee. Be-
low is a summary of each committee’s structure, responsibilities, and 
members:

Audit Committee
A. Composition of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of four (4) members appointed by a resolu-
tion of the Board of Directors, in accordance with the Corporate Governance 
Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority (CMA) and the compa-
ny’s Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee Charter, approved by the 
General Assembly, defines the committee’s roles, operating procedures, and 
the remuneration of its members to ensure effective oversight of the compa-
ny’s financial reporting, internal controls, and audit processes. Below is the 
list of the Audit Committee members:

Current Members (Appointed by the Board of Directors on 13 April 2024):

1.	 Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Al-Ruwais – Chairman and Independent Member

2.	 Mr. Issa Bin Saleh Al-Huraimis – Independent Member

3.	 Mr. Khalid Bin Mohammed Alsolai – Non-Board Member

4.	 Eng. Saeed Bin Abdallah Al-Moeather – Non-Board Member 

B. Audit Committee Meetings for the Year 2024

Audit Committee Members Attendance Record for 2024

Member Name
Membership 

Status

Previous Term Current Term

1st 
Meeting 

2nd 
Meeting 

3rd 
Meeting 

4th 
Meeting 

5th 
Meeting 

 (2 Jan)  (14 Feb)  (1 May)  (17 Jul)  (16 Oct)

1
Mr. Ahmed Bin 
Saud Shahini(1)

Former Chair of 
the Committee 

– Non-
Executive

ü ü
Mem-

bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

2
Mr. Ibrahim Bin 
Mohammed 
Al Amer

Member – 
Independent ü ü

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

3
Mr. Khalid Bin 
Salem 
Al-Ruwais(2)

Current Chair of 
the Committee 
– Independent

ü ü ü ü ü

4
Mr. Issa Bin 
Saleh 
Al-Huraimis

Member – 
Independent

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

ü ü ü

5
Mr. Khalid Bin 
Mohammed 
Alsolai

Independent 
Member – 
External

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

ü ü ü

6
Eng. Saeed 
Bin Abdallah 
Al-Moeather

Independent 
Member – 
External

Member-
ship Not 
Started

Member-
ship Not 
Started

ü ü ü

1.  His membership as the Chairman of the Committee ended with the conclusion of the previous term.

2.  He was appointed as the Chairman of the Committee for the current term.
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1. External Auditors:

�� Providing recommendations to the Board to 
nominate external auditors, dismiss them, de-
termine their Remuneration, and assess their 
performance after verifying their independence 
and reviewing the scope of their work and the 
terms of their contracts.

�� Verifying the independence of the external au-
ditors, its objectivity, fairness, and effective-
ness of the audit activities, taking into account 
the relevant rules and standards.

�� Reviewing the plan of the Company's external 
auditor and its activities ensuring that they do 
not provide any technical or administrative ser-
vices that fall outside the scope of audit work, 
and providing its observations and recommen-
dations regarding this.

�� Responding to queries of the Company's exter-
nal auditor.

�� Reviewing the external auditor's reports and its 
comments on the financial statements and fol-
lowing up the procedures taken in connection 
therewith. 

�� Reviewing the auditor's proposed audit scope 
and approach, including coordination of Audit 
efforts with internal audit department. 

�� The Committee shall meet periodically in inde-
pendent sessions with the External auditor to 
discuss any issues that the Committee or the 
External Auditor may deem necessary to be dis-
cussed in private meetings as needed.

�� The Committee has the right, at the request of 
its members, to meet with the External Auditor 
without the presence of the Vice President of Fi-
nance.

2. Financial Reports:

�� Review the Company's interim and annual fi-
nancial statements before presenting them to 
the Board and providing its opinion and recom-
mendations thereon to ensure their integrity, 
fairness and transparency.

�� Providing its technical opinion, at the request of 
the Board, regarding whether the Board’s report 
and the Company's financial statements are fair, 
balanced, understandable, and contain informa-
tion that allows shareholders and investors to 
assess the Company's financial position, per-
formance, business model, and strategy. Review 
any important or non-familiar issues contained 
in the financial reports. Accurately investigating 
any issues raised by the Company's Vice Pres-
ident of Finance or any person assuming their 
duties or the department responsible for com-
pliance or external auditor. 

�� Examining the financial and accounting poli-
cies followed by the Company and providing 
its opinion and recommendations to the Board 
thereon.

�� Examining accounting estimates for material is-
sues contained in the financial reports, includ-
ing the review of accounting issues, preparing 
significant reports, complex or unusual transac-
tions and discretionary issues, as well as recent 
professional and regulatory issues and noting 
their impact on the financial statements.

�� Reviewing the results of the audit work with 
management and External Auditor, including 
any difficulties encountered. 

�� Reviewing the other parts of the annual report 
and any relevant publications before publica-
tion and take into consideration the accuracy 
and completeness of the information contained 
therein.

C. Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
The responsibilities and duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

3. Internal Control:

�� Examining and reviewing the effectiveness of Com-
pany's internal and financial control systems and 
risk management system, which includes informa-
tion technology control and security systems. 

�� Understanding the scope of work of External and 
Internal Auditors in the internal control review of fi-
nancial reports and obtaining reports of significant 
observations and recommendations with respons-
es from management. 

�� Providing oversight on the development of systems 
and internal policies, including:

-- Ensuring the integrity of the financial and ac-
counting systems, including financial reporting 
systems.

-- Ensuring that appropriate control systems are 
in place to measure and manage risks, by devel-
oping a general perception of the risks that the 
Company may face, creating an environment fa-
miliar with the culture of risk management at the 
Company level, and presenting it transparently 
with stakeholders and related parties.

�� Preparing a report for the Board that includes its 
opinion on the effectiveness and efficiency of 
these systems, its recommendations to address the 
significant issues, and any other recommendations 
for developing these systems, and the other work 
it has done that fall within the scope of its com-
petence.

�� Providing advice and expressing opinion on issues 
related to the control aspects before being ap-
proved by the Board.

�� Examining the issues referred by the Board and ad-
vising the Board in light of the role of the supervi-
sory committee.

4. Internal Audit:

�� Examining and reviewing the Company's internal and fi-
nancial control systems and risk management system.

�� Monitoring and overseeing the performance and activi-
ties of the internal auditor and internal audit department 
of the Company, if any, to ensure the availability of the 
necessary resources and their effectiveness in performing 
the assigned activities and duties.

�� Analyzing the internal audit reports and following up the 
implementation of the corrective measures in respect of 
the remarks made in such reports.

�� Approving the internal audit policies and procedures, and 
a comprehensive internal audit plan.

�� Nominating the Chief Audit Executive (CAE), and recom-
mending to the Board regarding their entitlements and 
any decisions regarding their appointment, replacement, 
or dismissal of CAE.

�� Reviewing and approving the budget of the internal audit 
department, the resource plan, activities, and the organiza-
tional structure of the internal audit activity.

�� Evaluating CAE performance at least once per year, and 
approve theirannual remuneration and salary adjust-
ment.

�� Evaluate and ensure the independence of the internal au-
ditors periodically.

�� Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit activity, 
including compliance with the International Profession-
al Practices Framework, internal audit mission and core 
principles issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

�� The Committee shall periodically meet individually with 
the CAE to discuss any matters that the Committee or the 
CAE may think should be discussed in particular.

�� Supervising cases of internal financial investigations such as 
fraud, etc., if deemed necessary provided that the Commit-
tee submits a report on these cases to the Board.
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5. Compliance Assurance:

�� Reviewing the findings of the reports of regulatory au-
thorities and verify that the Company has taken neces-
sary measures in this regard.

�� Ensuring the Company's compliance with the relevant 
laws, regulations, policies, and instructions.

�� Reporting to the Board any issues in connection with 
what it deems necessary to take action on and providing 
recommendations as to the steps that should be taken.

�� Reviewing the effectiveness of the compliance manage-
ment system and the results of any investigation carried 
out by the administration and follow up on disciplinary 
action in case of non-compliance.

�� Reviewing the process of communicating the Code of 
Conduct to Company employees and monitoring com-
pliance and implementation thereof.

�� Obtaining regular updates from the Company's man-
agement and the legal advisor regarding compliance 
matters.

�� Reviewing the contracts and transactions proposed to 
be conducted by the Company with related parties,and 
provide recommendations in this regard to the Board.

6. Reporting:

�� Periodically reporting to the Board on the activities of 
the Committee and related observations and recom-
mendations.

�� Advising the Board on development of necessary poli-
cies or procedures followed by stakeholders to submit 
complaints or report the violations.

�� Providing open channels of communication between In-
ternal Audit, External Auditor and the Board.

�� Prepare an annual report for the Board members and the 
shareholders showing the adequacy of the Company’s 
internal control system and the other work it has car-
ried out within the scope of its competence. The Board 
shall file sufficient copies of this report at the Compa-
ny’s head office at the time of inviting the General As-
sembly, to provide each of the shareholders who wish 
with a copy of it. Such report shall be discussed at the 
General Assembly, provided that the Committee reports 
are kept at the Company’s head office for a period of no 
less than ten (10) years.

�� Reviewing any reports issued by the Company related to 
the responsibilities of the Committee.

7. Other Responsibilities:

�� The Committee shall review the establishment of a mechanism that allows employees of the Company to sub-
mit their feedback anonymously regarding any abuse in financial or other reports. The Committee shall verify 
the application of this mechanism by conducting an independent investigation commensurate with the extent 
of the error or transgression, and it shall adopt appropriate follow-up actions.

�� Carrying out any other activities related to this Charter at the request of the Board. 

�� Conducting and supervising any special investigations as needed.

�� Reviewing and evaluating the adequacy of the Committee’s Charter annually, requesting the approval of the 
Board for any proposed changes, and ensuring appropriate disclosure in accordance with laws and regulations. 

�� Ensure that all responsibilities described herein are carried out on an annual basis.

�� Evaluate the performance of the Committee and its members on an annual basis.
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Nominations and Remuneration Committee

A. Composition of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee consist of three (3) members appointed by a resolution of 

the Board of Directors on April 13 2024. Below is the list of the Committee members:

1- Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal (Independent Member) – Chairman of the Committee.

2- Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini (Non-Executive Member).

3- Mr. Alaa Bin Abduallah Al-Hashem (Non-Executive – Member).

B. Meetings of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee in 2024

Nominations and Remuneration Committee Members Attendance Record for 2024

Member Name
Member-

ship Status

Previous Term Current Term

1st 
Meeting 

2nd 
Meet-

ing  (by 
circula-

tion) 

3rd 
Meet-
ing (by 
circula-

tion)

4th 
Meeting 

5th 
Meeting 

6th 
Meeting 

7th 
Meeting 

 (28 
Jan)

 (18 Feb)  (11 Mar) (26 Mar)
 (16 

May)
 (26 
Aug)

 (25 
Dec)

1
Mr. Amr bin 
Abdulaziz Aljallal

Chairman – 
Independent ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

2
Mr. Abdullatif 
Bin Abdullah 
AlRajhi

Member – 
non-execu-

tive
ü ü ü ü

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

3
Mr. Ibrahim Bin 
Muhammad 
Al-Amer

Member 
– Indepen-

dent
ü ü ü ü

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

4
Mr. Ahmed Bin 
Saud Shahini

Member – 
non-execu-

tive

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

ü ü ü

5
Mr. Alaa Bin 
Abduallah 
Al-Hashem

Member – 
non-execu-

tive

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

ü ü ü

C. Responsibilities of the Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee
The responsibilities and duties of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee include the following:

1.Remuneration:

�� Preparing a clear policy for the Remuneration of 
the Board members, its committees and the Exec-
utive Management, and submitting it to the Board 
for consideration in preparation for its approval 
by the General Assembly, provided that such pol-
icy shall be based on key performance indicators 
and provide a mechanism for disclosure and its 
implementation.

�� Reviewing the relationship between the rewards 
granted and the applicable rewards policy and 
highlighting any material deviation from such 
policy.

�� Reviewing the remuneration policy periodical-
ly to ensure its alignment with the changes that 
may occur in the relevant laws and regulations, 
the Company’s strategic goals and the skills nec-
essary to achieve them, and assessing its effec-
tiveness in achieving the desired objectives, and 
recommending to the Board regarding the pro-
posed changes to this policy.

�� Advising to the Board regarding the remuneration 
of its members and its committees in accordance 
with the policy approved by the Company's Gen-
eral Assembly.

�� Recommending to the Board the remuneration of 
the executive management of the Company in ac-
cordance with the policy approved by the Board.

�� Approving the bonuses payment of the Compa-
ny’s employees in accordance with the Company’s 
internal policies.

�� Reviewing the CEO's recommendations regarding 
the general guidelines and standards for financial 
rewards and other benefits for the executive man-
agement and their approval, which the CEO im-
plements in accordance with the approved policy. 

�� Preparing annual report on the remuneration 
granted to members of the Board, its committees, 
and the executive management.

�� Preparing criteria for evaluating the performance 
of the Board, its members and its committees, 
and submitting such criteria to the Board for ap-
proval. The committee is responsible for conduct-
ing the evaluation or overseeing it if performed 
by a third party. Additionally, the committee is 
tasked with proposing mechanisms to enhance 
the functioning of the board and its committees.
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2. Nominations:

�� Recommend to the Board appropriate policies and crite-
ria for membership in the Board and the Executive Man-
agement to determine the required capabilities and skills 
and review them periodically to ensure their alignment 
with the changes that may occur in the Company’s strate-
gic objectives and the skills and qualifications necessary 
to achieve them, taking into account not to nominate any 
person previously convicted of a crime of dishonesty.

�� Review the Board membership policy periodically to 
ensure its alignment with the changes that may occur 
in relevant legislation and regulations, the Company's 
strategic goals and the skills and qualifications nec-
essary to achieve it and recommend to the board of 
directors regarding proposed changes to this policy.

�� Recommend nominees for Board membership to the 
Board in accordance with the approved membership 
policy.

�� Prepare the job description of the capabilities and 
qualifications required for membership of the Board 
and its Board Committees as well as occupying exec-
utive management positions.

�� Reviewing the organizational structure of the Com-
pany and making recommendations regarding chang-
es that can be made.

�� Develop job descriptions for executive, non-execu-
tive and independent members.

�� Determine the time that the member should dedi-
cate for the work of the Board.

�� Review and recommend conflicts of interest cases for 
those wishing to run for membership in the Board.

�� Establish procedures to fill the vacancy of a position 
in the Board or its committees. And provide recom-
mendation.

�� Verify the independence of the independent members, 
and the absence of any conflicts of interest if the mem-
ber is a member of the Board of another company.

�� Review the nature of the conflict and advise to the 
board, if a member of the Board or its committees 
wishes to engage in business competing with the 
Company’s business or activities upon receiving the 
notification from/about such member in accordance 
with the following process:

-- Reviewing the notification of the Board member 
of the competing work that the member wishes to 
practice from a technical point of view.

-- Reviewing the market(s) in which the competing 
business exists or any of the products related to 
it.

-- Reviewing the relationship of the competing 
business with the Company's strategy and future 
directions.

�� Reviewing the nature of the Board member’s competition 
with the Company’s business (approved by the General As-
sembly) on an annual basis and obtain the information nec-
essary to conduct the aforementioned review.

�� Recommending to the Board, re-nomination or dis-
missal of a member of the Board or its committees.

�� Determining the weaknesses and strengths in the 
Board and proposing solutions in line with the Com-
pany’s interest.

�� Carrying out the tasks assigned to it by the Board re-
lated to its work.

�� Providing an appropriate level of training and orien-
tation to the new Board members about the Compa-
ny’s tasks and achievements so that they can perform 
their work efficiently.

�� Reviewing and studying the succession plans for the 
Company in general, for the Board, the CEO and the 
executive management, in particular.

The Executive Committee
A. Composition of the Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of five (5) members appointed by a resolution of the Board of Directors on 
13 April, 2024 , Below is the list of the Executive Committee members:

1- Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi (Non-Executive Member) - Chairman of the Committee.

2- Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini (Non-Executive– Member)

3- Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal (Independent – Member)

4- Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid AlMeshary (Independent Member).

5- Dr. Solaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri (Executive– Member).

B. Executive Committee Meetings for the year 2024:

Executive Committee Members Attendance Record for 2024

Member Name
Mem-

bership 
Status

1st 
Meet-

ing 

2nd 
Meet-

ing 

3rd 
Meet-

ing 

4th 
Meet-

ing 

5th 
Meet-

ing 

6th 
meet-

ing

7th 
meet-

ing

 (29 
Apr)

 (15 
July)

 (21 
Aug)

 (12 
Sep)

 (14 
Oct)

(20 
Nov)

(17 
Dec)

1
Mr. Abdulaziz 
Bin Saleh 
Al-Rebdi

Non-Ex-
ecutive 

- Chairman 
of the 

Committee

ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

2
Mr. Ahmed Bin 
Saud Shahini

Non-Ex-
ecutive - 
Member.

ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

3
Mr. Amr Bin 
Abdulaziz 
Aljallal

Indepen-
dent - 

Member
ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

4
Dr. Nasser Bin 
Zaid AlMeshary

Indepen-
dent - 

Member
ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

5
Dr. Solaiman 
Bin Abdulaziz 
Al-Twaijri

Executive - 
Member ü ü ü ü ü ü ü
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C. Responsibilities of the Executive Committee
The responsibilities of the Executive Committee include the following:

1 - Executive Duties

�� Recommending the amendment of any provision 
in the Company’s bylaws.

�� Recommending the vision and objectives of the 
Company's strategy.

�� Reviewing the system, regulations, policies and 
programs and making the necessary amendments 
or additions thereto.

�� Reviewing the annual budget objectives before 
submitting them to the Board for approval as well 
as monitoring its execution.

�� Recommending to the Board regarding the profits 
allocation.

�� Overseeing the development of economic and ad-
visory studies.

�� Following up the implementation of the Compa-
ny's integrated information systems programs.

�� Supervising the review of the financing position 
and managing the Company’s financial needs.

�� Recommending to the Board regarding loan and 
mortgage operations.

�� Recommending to the Board regarding strategic 
plans, long, medium and short-term goals, up-
dating and reviewing them from time to time and 
submitting them to the Board for approval.

�� Supervising the review of plans related to the 
Company's current activities and its financial and 
competitive position, and following up and eval-
uating these plans. 

�� Supervising the review of all business and topics 
that could affect the Company's image and repu-
tation.

�� Supervising the review of new projects and in-
vestments and making recommendations thereon 
to the Board.

�� Following up the implementation of the deci-
sions issued by the Board and the Executive Com-
mittee.

�� Following up the Company's financial situation 
and its operational and marketing policy.

�� Presenting reports to the Board about the work 
accomplished by the Committee and the ap-
proved decisions and recommendations.

�� Executing any tasks or responsibilities assigned 
by the Board.

�� Reviewing the social responsibility policy and 
media plan, reviewing social work initiatives, and 
submitting what the committee deems necessary 
to the Board. 

�� Representing the Board in General Assemblies of 
the Company and its Subsidiaries.

2 - Investment Duties:

�� Reviewing and approving the Company's gener-
al investment policy, which includes (the invest-
ment concept and strategy etc.).

�� Reviewing investment offers and opportunities 
and ranking them in order of priority according 
to specific investment evaluation criteria and ap-
proving new investments to be made, with a max-
imum value of (50) Fifty Million Saudi Riyals. As 
for any investments greater than this value, the 
committee shall submit its recommendations to 
the Company’s Board.

�� Reviewing and approving acquisitions and invest-
ment offers in accordance with the Company's 
general strategy.

�� Monitoring of financial results and the integra-
tion of the Company's investments, in addition to 
all investment transactions such as acquisitions, 
joint ventures, and liquidation works.

�� Reviewing and recommending any strategic alli-
ances the Company may make.

�� Reviewing and approving the Company's invest-
ment plan.

�� Reviewing the Company's financial derivatives 
policy, as well as all hedging transactions, to pro-
vide a framework for the Company's use of deriva-
tive and hedging transactions, as well as to moni-
tor these transactions and the investment risks to 
which the Company may be exposed.

�� Submit periodic reports to the Board on the In-
vestment Committee's activities, as well as relat-
ed issues and recommendations.

�� Direct supervision of the Company's investments 
internally and externally and submitting periodic 
reports to the Board.

�� Making recommendations to the Board about ex-
iting or liquidating an existing investment.

�� Adopting the corporate governance framework 
and management mechanisms for subsidiaries 
and affiliated Companies.

�� Adopting policies for nominating Board members 
and representative for subsidiaries and affiliated 
Companies, including the mechanisms for select-
ing Board members and representatives for such 
companies.

�� Submitting the necessary recommendations to 
appoint members of the Board and representa-
tives for subsidiaries and affiliated Companies to 
the Board for approval.

�� Ensuring the soundness of investment procedures 
and setting the controls to guarantee the inter-
ests of the Company and supervising the stages 
of merger or acquisition for any investment op-
portunity.

�� Reviewing the performance evaluation and work 
progress periodically in accordance with the 
plans approved by the boards of subsidiaries and 
affiliated companies and submit recommenda-
tions to the board.
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Executive Management

Name
Current 
Position

Previous 
Position

Qualifications
Years of 

Experience

1
Dr. Solaiman 
Abdulaziz Al- 

Twaijri

Chief Executive

Officer

CEO of Saudi

Arabian 
Amiantit

Company

•• Ph.D. in Accounting - Case 
Western Reserve University, 
Cleveland, Ohio, USA.

•• Master’s in Accounting - Illinois 
State University, USA.

•• Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial 
Management King Fahd Univer-
sity of Petroleum and Minerals.

•• Winner of the Prince Mohammed 
bin Fahd Award for Scientific 
Excellence in 1989.

•• Holds many positions and mem-
berships in prestigious interna-
tional and local companies.

•• Expert in finance and account-
ing.

More than 
27 years

2

Mr. Abdullah 
Bin

Ibrahim Al- 
Dehimi

Vice President 
of Governance, 
Risk, Compli-

ance and Legal

Executive 
Director of 
Corporate 

Communica-
tions & Board 

Secretary

•• Diploma in Management.

•• Bachelor’s Degree in Busi-
ness Administration.

More than 
17 years

3

Mr. Saad Bin

S. Alhowaimel
Vice President 

of Digital & 
Technology

Vice President 
of information 

Technology 

•• Master’s Degree in Computer 
Science.

•• Bachelor's Degree in Com-
puter Engineering

More than 
20 years

4
Mr. Hassan Bin

Khalil Aqrouq

Vice President

- Finance

Chief Financial 

Officer

•• MSc in Finance.

•• Bachelor’s Degree in Science 
in Finance and Accounting

More than 
20 years

Name
Current 
Position

Previous 
Position

Qualifications
Years of 

Experience

5
Mr. Marcelo 

Joseph 
Wegman

Vice President 
-Strategy

General 
Manager

(Strategy and

Supply Chains),

Tyson Foods

Europe B.V.

•• Master’s Degree in Business 
Administration

•• Bachelor’s Degree of Science 
in Economics.

More than 
21 years

6
Mr. 

Mohammed 
Bin Ali Al-Rajhi 

Vice President 
-Supply Chain 

CEO of 
Mubarrad 
Company

•• Bachelor's in Computer 
Science 

••  Master’s in information 
systems 

More than 
24 years 

7 Mr. Ian Michell 
Vice President 
- Agriculture 

Group Techni-
cal, Procure-

ment, and ESG 
Director for 
Flamingo

•• Higher Diploma in Agricul-
ture

•• Master's in Business Admin-
istration (MBA) 

More than 
28 years 

8
Mr. Terrence 
Allan Denton

Vice President 
-Operations 

Head of the 
Manufacturing 

Department

•• Higher Diploma in Manufac-
turing Management

•• Diploma in Dairy Technology

More than 
37 years

9
Mr. Zach Abou 

Zahr

Vice President 
-Sales & Distri-

bution 

Vice President 
of Sales and 
Marketing at 

Berain Company

•• Bachelor’s in Finance

•• Master's in Information 
Systems

More than 
24 years

10
Mr. Marwan 

Yasin

Vice President 
-Marketing & 
Development 

Marketing 
Director of 

Unilever 
Arabia

•• Bachelor of Science in Com-
merce.

More than 
18 years

11
Mr. Talal Bin 
Faraj Arkook

Vice Presi-
dent - Human 

Resources

Head Manager 
of the Manufac-
turing Depart-

ment at Almarai 
Company

•• Bachelor’s Degree in Busi-
ness Administration.

More than 
22 years
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Remuneration

Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration Policy applies to the Board of Di-
rectors, its subcommittees, and the executive man-
agement of the company. The Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee is responsible for working 
with the executive management to ensure the smooth 
implementation of the policy and to verify the ade-
quacy of the procedures implemented. Any deviations 
encountered during implementation are meticulous-
ly evaluated and reported to the Board for guidance. 
The essence of the policy therefore consists of the 
following:

�� Incentivizing the Board of Directors, its subcom-
mittees, and the executive management through 
the provision of Remuneration to promote the 
long-term success and growth of the company.

�� This policy must be consistent with the risks 
associated with the company’s operations. The 
company’s internal laws and regulations must be 
consistent with this policy.

�� The policy shall observe industry practices in de-
termining remuneration, while prudently avoid-
ing unjustified increases in Remuneration and 
benefits.

�� The primary objective of this policy is to attract, 
retain, and motivate professional competence 
while exercising prudence.

�� All new appointments should be made with due 
regard to the rules and regulations, in coopera-
tion with the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee.

�� Suspension and reimbursement of remuneration 
should be considered in cases where individuals 
have provided inaccurate information to prevent the 
exploitation of job positions for unwarranted gain.

Board Members 
Remuneration

�� The company's bylaws show the mechanism for 
disbursing the remuneration of the members of 
the Board of Directors. This remuneration may 
be a specific amount, an allowance for attending 
meetings, in-kind benefits, or a certain percent-
age of the net profits.

�� The Nominations and Remuneration Committee 
annually, when studying the proposed remuner-
ation for the Board and its committees, verifies 
the annual plans drawn up for the company, the 
objectives achieved and the efforts made by the 
members of the Board and its committees during 
the year.

During the recommendation of the Remuneration, 
the Nominations & Remuneration Committee stud-
ied the relation between Remuneration granted 
and applicable remuneration policy that was ap-
proved by the General Assembly on 05/11/2023, 
and the committee did not discover any material 
deviations from the remuneration policy.

Number of Meetings of Board Members and its Subcommittees
Record of Board and committee meetings

Member Names
Membership

Status

Number of Board 
of Directors ses-

sions 

Number 
of Audit 

Com-
mittee 

Sessions

Number of Re-
muneration and 

Nominations Com-
mittee sessions

Number 
of Ex-

ecutive 
Com-

mittee 
Sessions

Total

Present By cir-
culation Present By circu-

lation

1 Mr. Abdulaziz Bin 
Saleh Al- Rebdi Non-executive 5 5 0 0 0 7 17

2 Mr. Ahmed Bin 
Saud Shahini Non-executive 5 5 2 3 0 7 22

3 Mr. Amr Bin  
Abdulaziz Aljallal Independent 5 5 0 5 2 7 24

4 Mr. Abdullatif Bin 
Abdullah Al Rajhi(1) Non-executive 1 3 0 2 2 0 8

5
Mr. Bader Bin 
Abdul Rahman 
Al Sayari(1)

Non-executive 1 3 0 0 0 0 4

6
Mr. Abdulaziz 
Bin Mohammad 
Alrugaib(1)

Independent 1 3 0 0 0 0 4

7
Mr. Ibrahim Bin 
Muhammad 
Al-Amer (1)

Independent
Member 1 3 2 2 2 0 10

8 Mr. Khalid Bin 
Salem Al-Ruwais Independent 4 2 5 0 0 0 11

9
Mr. Alaa Bin 
Abdullah 
Al-Hashem

Non-executive 4 2 0 3 0 0 9

10 Mr. Issa Bin Saleh 
Al-Huraimis Independent 4 2 3 0 0 0 9

11 Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid 
AlMeshary Independent 4 2 0 0 0 7 13

12 Mr. Khalid Bin 
Muhammad Alsolai

Indepen-
dent(Non-Board 

Member) 
0 0 3 0 0 0 3

13
Mr. Saeed 
Bin Abdullah 
Almoethar

Indepen-
dent(Non-Board 

Member)
0 0 3 0 0 0 3

14 Dr. Solaiman Bin 
Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri Executive 0 0 0 0 0 7 7

(1)  His membership ended at the end of the previous tenure i.e. April 10, 2024.
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Remuneration of the Board of Directors
Fixed Remuneration Variable Remuneration

Member Name
Certain

Amount

Attendance

Allowance

Total 
Allowance 

for 
Attending 
Committee 
Sessions

Benefits in 
kind

Remuner 
ations for 
Technical, 
Adminis 

trative, and 
Consulting 

work

Remuneration 
of the 

Chairman, 
Managing 

Director, or 
Secretary if he 
is a Member

Total
Percent-
age from 
Profits

Periodic

Remuner-
ation

Short 
Term

Incentive

Plans

Long-
Term

Incentive

Plans

Granted 
Shares

Total
End of

Service 
Award

Total

Summa-
tion

Expense 
Allowance

First: Independent members

Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz 
Aljallal

250,000 20,000 48,000 52,525 0 0 370,525 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 370,525 3,500

Mr. Abdulaziz Bin 
Mohammad Alrugaib(1) 69,178 4,000 0 0 0 0 73,178 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 73,178 0

Mr. Ibrahim Bin 
Muhammad Al-Amer(1) 69,178 4,000 16,000 0 0 0 89,178 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89,178 0

Mr. Issa Bin Saleh 
Al-Huraimis

180,822 16,000 12,000 0 0 0 208,822 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 208,822 3500

Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid 
AlMeshary

180,822 16,000 28,000 0 0 0 224,822 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 224,822 3500

Second: Non-Executive members

Mr. Abdulaziz Bin

Saleh Al-Rebdi
300,000 20,000 28,000 23,000 0 0 371,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 371,000 3500

Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud 
Shahini

250,000 20,000 48,000 0 0 0 318,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 318,000 3500

Mr. Abdullatif Bin

Abdullah Al Rajhi(1) 69,178 4,000 8,000 0 0 0 81,178 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 81,178 0

Mr. Bader Bin Abdul 
Rahman Al Sayari(1)

69,178 4,000 0 0 0 0 73,178 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 73,178 0

Mr. Khalid Bin Salim 
Al-Ruwais

180,822 16,000 20,000 0 0 0 216,822 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 216,822 3500

Mr. Alaa Bin Abdullah 
Al-Hashem

180,822 16,000 12,000 0 0 0 208,822 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 208,822 3500

Total 1,800,000 140,000 220,000 75,525 0 0 2,235,525 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,235,525 24,500

(1) His membership ended at the end of the previous tenure i.e. April 10, 2024.
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Pursuant to Article 58(2) and Article 90(3) of the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Mar-
ket Authority (CMA), the Company hereby discloses that, during the financial year 2024, certain members of 
the Board of Directors were granted additional rewards that deviate from the approved Reward Policy. These 
rewards were recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, endorsed by the Board of Direc-
tors, and are subject to final approval by the General Assembly at its upcoming meeting, following which these 
will be disbursed.

Additional Remunerations Due to Board Members for the 
Fiscal Year 2024

Name Amount 

1 Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi 750,000

2 Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini 350,000

3 Mr. Alaa Bin Abdullah Al-Hashem 150,000

4 Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal 350,000

5 Mr. Issa Bin Saleh Al-Huraimis 150,000

6 Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Al-Ruwais 150,000

7 Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid AlMeshary 150,000

Total 2,050,000

Statement of Total Remuneration Received by Each Member of the Board and Committees Membership:

Statement
Executive

Members

Non-
Executive

Members

Independent

Members

Committee

Members
Total

Attendance 
Allowance

0 64,000 76,000 0 140,000

Board 
Remuneration

0 869,178 930,822 0 1,800,000

Committee

Remuneration
150,000 555,342 686,164 216,986 1,608,492

Allowance for 
Attendance of 
Committee Meeting

28,000 96,000 124,000 24,000 272,000

Total 178,000 1,584,520 1,816,986 240,986 3,820,493 
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Executive Management Remuneration
�� In determining remuneration for the executive 

management, due consideration must be given 
to the internal policies of the company to en-
sure alignment with the intended objectives.

�� The allocation of specific remuneration to indi-
vidual members of the executive management 
may vary depending on the results achieved 
during the performance period.

�� The maximum limit for executive management remu-
neration is reviewed annually and any proposed revi-
sions are submitted to the Board of Directors for review 
and subsequently to the General Assembly for approval.

�� These policies are tightly woven into the fabric 
of the company’s strategy and objectives, with 
due regard to the existing executive manage-
ment evaluation policy. It is imperative to em-
phasize that should any discrepancies arise in 
the stated Remuneration of the executive man-
agement as a result of inaccurate information 
or erroneous results, regardless of the underly-
ing reasons, such matters will be escalated to 
the Board for prudent decision making, while 
ensuring compliance with relevant regulations 
to safeguard the rights of the company’s share-
holders.

The entitlements and remuneration of top five members of the company’s executive management, including in 
particular the CEO and CFO, who received the highest remuneration for the fiscal year 2024, are set out below.

Interest Description Total

Fixed Benefits

Salaries 5,980,184

Allowances 3,474,646

In-kind benefits 0

Total 9,454,830

Variable benefits

Periodic Remuneration 0

Profits 0

Short-term incentive plans 6,104,000

Long-term incentive plans 0

Offered Shares (value to be added) 0

Total 6,104,000

Total Remuneration

End of Service Award 0

Total Executive Remuneration if any 0

Total 15,558,830

Clarification: The company has committed itself to disclose the details of executive management remuneration 
in total, in line with the statutory requirements contained in subparagraph (b) of paragraph (4) of Article (90) 
stipulated in the Corporate Governance Regulations, to protect the interest of the company, its shareholders, 
and its employees to avoid any harm to the company that may result in a competitive result of human capital.

Members of Board of Directors Committees

TotalTotal Expense 
Allowance

Total
Attendance 
Allowance

Fixed 
Remuneration

Fixed Remunerations

Audit Committee

49,5070800041,507Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini1

49,5070800041,507Mr. Ibrahim Bin Muhammad Al-Amer(1)2

170,000020,000150,000Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Al-Ruwais3

120,493012,000108,493Mr. Issa Bin Saleh Al-Huraimis4

120,493012,000108,493Mr.Khalid Bin Mohammad Alsolai5

120,493012,000108,493Mr. Saeed Bin Abdullah Moather6

Nominations & Remuneration Committee

120,000020,000100,000Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal1

35,67108,00027,671Mr. Abdullatif Bin Abdullah AlRajhi(1)2

35,67108,00027,671Mr. Ibrahim Bin Muhammed Al-Amer3

84,329012,00072,329Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini4

84,329012,00072,329Mr. Alaa Bin Abdullah Al-Hashem5

Executive Committee

178,000028,000150,000Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi1

178,000028,000150,000Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini2

136,493028,000108,493Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal3

136,493028,000108,493Dr. Naseer Bin Zaid AlMeshary4

178,000028,000150,000Dr. Solaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri5

41,5070041,507Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Mohammed Alrugaib(1)6

41,5070041,507Mr. Bader Bin Abdulrahman Al Sayari(1)7

(1) His membership ended at the end of the previous tenure i.e. April 10, 2024.
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Pursuant to Article 58(2) and Article 90(3) of the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital 
Market Authority (CMA), the Company hereby discloses that, during the financial year 2024, certain Commit-
tee members were granted additional rewards that deviate from the approved Reward Policy. These rewards 
were recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, endorsed by the Board of Directors, and 
are subject to final approval by the General Assembly at its upcoming meeting, following which these will be 
disbursed.

Additional Remunerations Due to Committee Members for 
the Fiscal Year 2024

Name Amount 

1 Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi 250,000

2 Mr. Ahmed Bin Saud Shahini 200,000

3 Mr. Alaa Bin Abdullah Al-Hashem 100,000

4 Mr. Amr Bin Abdulaziz Aljallal 200,000

5 Mr. Issa Bin Saleh Al-Huraimis 50,000

6 Mr. Khalid Bin Muhammad Al-Solai 50,000

7 Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Al-Ruwais 50,000

8 Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid AlMeshary 100,000

9 Mr. Saeed Bin Abdullah Al-Moeather 50,000

10 Dr. Solaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri 100,000

Total 1,150,000

Relationship between the Remuneration granted and the 
applicable Remuneration policy
When recommending remuneration, the Nominations & Remuneration Committee reviews the relationship 
between the remuneration granted and the Remuneration Policy adopted by the General Assembly of the com-
pany’s shareholders on 05/11/2023. The Committee has not identified any significant deviations from the Re-
muneration Policy. Except for as disclose in this section.

Ownership of Members of the Board of Directors and 
Executive Management

Name of the person with the 
interest

Start of year End of year

Net 
change

Percentage 
changeNumber 

of Shares

Debt 
instru-
ments

Number 
of

Shares

Debt 
instru-
ments

Dr. Nasser Bin Zaid AlMeshary 24 - 24 - - -

Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Al-Ruwais - - 10 - - -

Mr. Issa Bin Saleh Al-Huraimis - - 1000 - - -

Mr. Abdullatif Bin Abdullah AlRajhi (1) 264676 - 264676 - - -

(1) His membership ended at the end of the previous tenure i.e. April 10, 2024.

Executive Management Interest, Spouses And Minor Children In The 
Company's Shares, And Any Changes In Ownership During 2024G

Name of the person with the 
interest

Start of year End of year

Net 
change

Per-
cent-
age 

change

Num-
ber of 
Shares

Debt 
instru-
ments

Num-
ber of

Shares

Debt 
instru-
ments

None - - - - - -
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Transactions with Related Parties 
and Competing Businesses

First: Transactions with Related Parties
Nadec is committed to reviewing potential conflicts of interest within its Board of Directors and executive 
management. Conducting transactions with related parties, the company strictly adheres to approved policies, 
regulations, and applicable laws. Contracts involving a member of the Board of Directors, executive manage-
ment, or their affiliates, as well as transactions with other related parties, are as follows.

Company
Nature of relationship and name 

of relevant member

Nature of 
transaction/ 

contract

Trans-
action/ 
contract 
amount

Duration 
of the 
deal/ 

contract

Terms 
of deal/
contract

Minerva Foods

Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi 
– Chairman of the Board – Holds 
the position of Vice Chairman of 

the Board at Minerva Foods

Purchase of 
red meat

34,050,249
Year

In accordance 
with generally 
accepted con-

tract terms

Arabian Mills 
for Food 
Products 
company 
(formerly 
Second Mills 
Company)

Mr. Bader Bin Abdulrahman Al 
Sayari (Former Board Member 

- Term ended on April 10, 
2024) - Holds the position of 
Board Member at Suleiman 

bin Abdulaziz Al-Rajhi Holding 
Company.

Purchase of 
raw mate-

rials
24,191,050 Year

In 
accordance 

with 
generally 
accepted 
contract 

terms

Mr. Alaa Bin Abduallh Al-Hashem 
(Board Member since April 11, 
2024) - Holds the position of 
Vice Chairman of the Board at 

Arabian Mills for Food Products.

Dr. Solaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al-
Twaijri (CEO) Holds the position 

of Board Member at Arabian 
Mills for Food Products.

Company
Nature of relationship and name 

of relevant member

Nature of 
transaction/ 

contract

Trans-
action/ 
contract 
amount

Duration 
of the 
deal/ 

contract

Terms 
of deal/
contract

SABIC Agri-Nu-
trients

Mr. Khalid Bin Salem Al-Ruwais (1)

Holds the position of Board 
Member at SABIC Agri-Nutrients.

Purchase of 
agricultural 
raw mate-

rials

1,783,149 Year

In accordance 
with generally 
accepted con-

tract terms

Al-Rai National 
Livestock Compa-
ny - A joint ven-
ture established 
with Al-Muhaidib 
Group for live-
stock breeding 
(sheep and 
goats) in 2024

Dr. Solaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri 
(CEO) Holds the position of Chairman 

of the Board of Directors at Al-Rai 
National Livestock Company.

Reimbursed 
expenses 

paid on be-
half of joint 

venture 
sharehold-

ers

6,172,209 Year

In accor-
dance with 
generally 
accepted 
contract 

terms

Mr. Hassan Khalil Aqrouq (CFO) 
Holds the position of Board 
Member at Al-Rai National 

Livestock Company.

(1) The membership status has been updated due to tue end of the independence conflict

Second: the competing business:
Certain members of the Board of Directors are engaged in businesses that operate in sectors similar to 
nadec’s activities. Mr. Alaa Bin Abdullah Al-Hashem previously served as the Chief Executive Officer and 
Board Member of Sulaiman Abdulaziz Al Rajhi Holding Co. is a parent of a company that involved in agri-
business, which closely aligns with nadec’s business line. Mr. Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi holds the 
position of Vice Chairman at Minerva Foods, a company that directly competes in the protein and food pro-
duction industry. It was approved by the board of directors of the company & it is recorded in the minutes 
of board meetings, the assembly is required to vote on it within the items listed on the assembly’s agenda.
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Governance, Risks, and 
Compliance

Governance 
Department 

Nadec is committed to fol-
low the highest standards 
of governance to maximize 
long-term shareholder value 
and ensure operational ex-
cellence. This commitment is 
reflected in our robust gover-
nance framework, risk mitiga-
tion strategies, transparency 
initiatives, and a steadfast 
commitment to social and en-
vironmental responsibility. By 
adhering to corporate regula-
tory directives and fostering 
enduring partnerships with 
stakeholders, nadec strength-
en its operational resilience 
and enhances its market posi-
tion. In 2024, the Governance 
Department focused on ele-
vating its governance frame-
work, streamlining processes, 
and embedding a culture of 
accountability and transpar-
ency across the organization.

Key Achievements of Governance 
Department in 2024

The Governance Department achieved significant milestones in 2024, 
laying a strong foundation for ethical and transparent operations. 
Through strategic initiatives and continuous improvement, the depart-
ment enhanced governance frameworks, simplified processes, and sup-
ported regulatory compliance. Below are the key accomplishments:

1.	 Policy Development 
and Updates

�� Conducted a comprehensive 
review and update of gover-
nance and operational poli-
cies to ensure alignment with 
strategic goals and evolving 
regulatory requirements.

�� Developed a Policy Outline 
Tracker to monitor policy de-
velopment and updates, en-
suring adherence to timelines 
and maintaining compliance.

�� Published updated public ver-
sions of key policies on the com-
pany website, enhancing stake-
holder trust and transparency.

2.	 Streamlined 
Decision-Making 
Processes

�� Strengthened and simplified 
the Authority Matrices to ensure 
flexibility, efficiency, and ac-
countability in decision-making.

�� Designed and implement-
ed Delegation of Authorities 
(DOAs) for subsidiaries, im-
proving decision-making trans-
parency and accountability.

�� Updated and aligned DOA doc-
uments with the company’s 
current organizational structure 
and best practices.

3.	 Employee and 
Vendor Compliance

�� Developed and implemented 
an Employee Disclosure Form 
to ensure timely and accurate 
conflict-of-interest disclo-
sures, boosting transparency.

�� Introduced a Code of Conduct 
(COC) for employees and ven-
dors, achieving majority sub-
mission compliance through 
an automated declaration pro-
cess.

�� Conducted awareness ses-
sions to educate employees 
on governance policies and 
procedures, fostering a culture 
of compliance.

4.	 Innovative Tools and 
Automation

�� Launched an AI-based Policy 
Chatbot to provide employees 
with 24/7 access to governance 
policies, reducing response 
times by 50%.

�� Automated regulatory declara-
tions and forms, including Code 
of Conduct, Employee Disclo-
sures, and Gift Declarations, en-
hancing efficiency and accuracy.

�� Established a GRC Ticketing 
System to address Governance, 
Risk, and Compliance-related 
queries efficiently, significantly 
reducing turnaround times.

�� Automate mechanism of issuing 
the receiving gifts from/to third 
party.

5.	 Enhanced 
Governance 
Infrastructure

�� Developed Subsidiary Gover-
nance Framework.

�� Developed a BOD and Com-
mittee Action Tracker to 
streamline follow-ups and 
enhance the efficiency of 
board and committee deci-
sion-making processes.
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Risk Management

In 2024, nadec’s Risk Management department concentrated on strengthening the company’s risk manage-
ment framework through strategic initiatives aimed at enhancing resilience, fostering a robust risk culture, 
and aligning with best practices in enterprise risk management. The department focused on identifying, 
assessing, mitigating, and monitoring risks across all sectors and departments, ensuring that nadec is 
well-prepared to navigate the complex and dynamic business environment.

Key Achievements in Risk Management in 2024

1.	 Enhanced Risk Registers
�� Periodically reviewed and updated risk regis-

ters to ensure they remained comprehensive 
and reflective of emerging risks and their po-
tential impacts on the business.

�� Integrated qualitative and quantitative risk 
assessment methodologies to provide a more 
nuanced understanding of risks and their po-
tential consequences.

2.	 Strengthened Controls and 
Procedures

�� Maintained continuous oversight over the 
development and implementation of control 
measures and procedures across all sectors 
and departments, ensuring risk mitigation 
strategies were effectively integrated into 
daily operations.

�� Conducted regular audits and assessments to 
identify gaps in existing controls and recom-
mend enhancements.

3.	 Periodic Reporting Framework
�� Initiated the issuance of quarterly risk reports 

starting from Q2 2024, providing stakeholders 
with transparent and timely insights into the 
company’s risk profile and mitigation efforts.

�� Enhanced the reporting framework to include 
predictive analytics and scenario modeling, en-
abling proactive risk management.

4.	 Business Continuity Management (BCM)
�� Developed comprehensive business continuity 

plans for all sectors and departments, with a fo-
cus on critical operations. 

�� Identified Single Points of Failure (SPOF) and im-
plemented treatment plans and recovery strate-
gies.

�� Conducted employee awareness sessions on 
BCM objectives and recovery strategy implemen-
tation mechanisms, ensuring readiness for po-
tential disruptions.

�� Performed tabletop exercises and simulations to 
test the effectiveness of BCM plans and refine 
them based on feedback.

5.	 Promoting a Strong Risk Culture
�� Conducted targeted awareness workshops for 

employees across various departments, empha-
sizing risk identification, assessment, and miti-
gation techniques.

�� Fostered a culture of risk ownership and account-
ability, encouraging employees to actively par-
ticipate in risk management activities.

6.	 Fraud Management Function
�� Established a dedicated Fraud Management 

function under the Risk Management umbrella. 

�� Prepared potential fraud scenarios, implemented 
preventive and detective controls, and enhanced 
investigation methodologies for swift detection 
and resolution of fraudulent activities.

�� Collaborated with internal audit and legal teams 
to ensure a coordinated approach to fraud pre-
vention and response.

7.	 Cybersecurity Risk Management
�� Enhanced cybersecurity protocols and imple-

mented advanced threat detection systems to 
protect sensitive data and critical infrastruc-
ture.

�� Developed incident response plans to ensure 
a rapid and effective response to any cyberse-
curity breaches.

8.	 Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) Risks

�� Integrated ESG considerations into the risk 
management framework, recognizing the 
growing importance of sustainability and cor-
porate responsibility.

�� Conducted climate risk assessments to iden-
tify vulnerabilities and develop adaptation 
strategies.

�� Engaged with stakeholders to understand 
their expectations regarding ESG issues and 
incorporated their feedback into risk manage-
ment practices.
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Compliance Department

1- Enhancing Compliance Maturity:

As part of its commitment to com-
pliance excellence, nadec obtained 
ISO 37301 certification, an interna-
tional standard that provides an in-
tegrated framework for establishing 
a Compliance Management System 
(CMS) within the company. This sys-
tem enhances the company's ability 
to: Identify regulatory obligations, 
Manage non-compliance risks, An-
alyze the effectiveness of existing 
controls, and Develop opportunities 
for improvement to ensure sustain-
able compliance and elevate compli-
ance maturity. Additionally, the de-
partment developed and delivered 
compliance training programs and 
awareness workshops, conducting 
multiple training sessions to rein-
force employees' awareness of the 
importance and necessity of adher-
ing to internal and external regula-
tions.

Nadec is committed to applying the highest compliance standards to ensure its operations align with 
legal and regulatory requirements while fostering a corporate culture of compliance. The Compliance De-
partment develops a comprehensive framework that promotes sustainable compliance, mitigates legal 
and operational risks, and ensures transparency and accountability across all corporate activities.

During 2024, the department focused on strengthening the compliance environment by achieving 
several key objectives, supporting various departments to ensure effective compliance, and improv-
ing compliance monitoring mechanisms and the evaluation of existing control measures. Proactive 
steps were taken to identify and manage non-compliance risks, with strategies developed to enhance 
regulatory controls in line with best practices.

2- Primary Work and Proactive Compliance Plans:

The Compliance Department continuously updates 
its Compliance Universe by incorporating newly 
identified laws and regulations to ensure the com-
pany remains aligned with the latest regulatory re-
quirements. Additionally, the department developed 
compliance checklists, which will be used to pro-
actively embed compliance across all nadec depart-
ments for 2025. A self-assessment was successfully 
conducted across departments and divisions, estab-
lishing a solid foundation for a company-wide com-
pliance assessment in 2025.

3- Technology-Driven Compliance:

The Compliance Department successfully enhanced 
operational efficiency and response times through 
the "Etimad" platform, launched in November 2023. 
Since its inception, the department has processed 
over 700 requests from various departments via the 
platform, significantly improving compliance pro-
cedures and providing a centralized mechanism for 
submission and tracking.

4- Self-Assessment Culture:

A self-assessment was successfully conducted 
across departments and divisions, forming a strong 
basis for a company-wide compliance assessment 
planned for 2025.

5- On-Site Audits and Operational Sustainability:

The Compliance Department continued on-site ver-
ification of compliance, conducting field visits to 
centers and major projects such as the "Haradh" 
and "Al-Jouf" projects to ensure full compliance and 
the implementation of necessary action plans. This 
initiative enhances transparency and provides clear 
insights into adherence to legal and regulatory re-
quirements.

6- Enhanced Transparency:

In 2024, the department developed advanced compliance 
dashboards, improving transparency and providing re-
al-time insights to support data-driven decision-making. 
These dashboards included: the Compliance Monitoring 
Dashboard, Project Compliance Tracking Dashboard, and 
Self-Assessment Results Dashboard. The Compliance De-
partment will continue enhancing these dashboards in 
2025 to ensure broader integration and achieve the high-
est levels of corporate transparency and accountability.

7- Commitment to Cybersecurity:

In the face of rapidly evolving digital threats and advance-
ments in data management, nadec recognizes the critical 
importance of a robust cybersecurity framework to safe-
guard our digital assets and uphold the trust of our partners. 

This year, our dedication to cybersecurity has been 
demonstrated through the development of comprehen-
sive policies and procedures. These policies are designed 
not only to meet regulatory requirements but also to ad-
dress the specific risks and challenges unique to nadec.

We are actively collaborating with the National Cybersecu-
rity Authority (NCA) to implement a proactive approach to 
cybersecurity across our technical and manufacturing envi-
ronments, as well as within our cloud solutions and digital 
communication platforms. This collaboration equips nadec 
to effectively prepare for potential future crises. 

Additionally, we have prioritized the creation of cyber-
security awareness programs and training initiatives. We 
place great importance on fostering a culture of securi-
ty, and enhancing our staff's ability to identify potential 
threats and respond appropriately.

Nadec is also committed to safeguarding personal data, as 
evidenced by our inclusion in the National Register for the 
Protection of Personal Data. This initiative underscores our 
dedication to protecting the personal data of our partners 
and promoting transparency in all our interactions.
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Governance Structure
Corporate governance at nadec extends beyond mere compliance obligations. A meticulously crafted comprehensive 
framework delineates roles, responsibilities, decision-making processes, and oversight mechanisms. The governance 
structure contains three specialized committees dedicated to assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its gover-
nance responsibilities within the company. These committees include the Audit Committee, the Executive Commit-
tee, and the Remuneration and Nominations Committee. Regular reviews are conducted to assess the performance of 
the Board and its committees, thereby enhancing their effectiveness in achieving the company’s objectives.

Governance  Structure

Executive CommitteeAudit Committee Nominatins and 
Remuneration Committee

Corporate Governance Policies
The company’s governance policies are binding for all executives, employees, and stakeholders, with any mod-
ifications subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. These policies encompass shareholder rights and 
describe mechanisms to facilitate their exercise in accordance with regulatory standards and global best prac-
tices. Measures are taken to improve shareholder communication through effective shareholder management 
and the provision of tools aimed at enhancing the effectiveness of communication.

In pursuit of effective corporate governance, the executive management, represented by the Governance, Risk, 
and Compliance Department, diligently update and develop the governance regulations and policies. These 
updates are in line with regulations issued by the Ministry of Commerce and the Capital Market Authority, as 
well as prevailing best practices. 

Commitment to Implementing Governance Policies and Rules
With an unwavering commitment to upholding the rights of its shareholders and stakeholders, the Board of Directors 
prioritizes the implementation of the provisions outlined in the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Cap-
ital Market Authority. The company strictly complies with all mandatory provisions, with the following exceptions:

Article/Paragraph Article/Paragraph Provision Reasons for non-implementation

Article (37) Training

Establishing necessary mechanisms 
for members of the Board of Direc-
tors and executive management to 

continuously participate in programs 
and courses aimed at  developing 

their skills and knowledge in  areas 
relevant to the company’s activities.

Guiding Article

Article (67) Formation of the
 Risk Committee

The Company's Board shall, by 
resolution therefrom, form a 
committee to be named the

Risk Management Committee
Chairman and majority of its 

members shall be Non-Executive
Directors. The members of that 

committee shall possess an 
adequate level of knowledge in risk

management and finance

Guiding Article
Board Audit Committee

currently carries out the roles and 
responsibilities of Risk

Committee as provided for in its 
charter approved by the

General Assembly.

Article (90), Paragraph (B)
of Clause Four, Disclosure of

 Remuneration

Providing the necessary details 
regarding the remuneration and 
compensation paid to each indi-

vidual separately: B) Five senior ex-
ecutives who received the  highest 
remuneration from the company,  

including the CEO and CFO.

Partially implemented

Article (92) Formation of 
a Corporate Governance

 Committee

If the Board forms a corporate gov-
ernance committee, it shall assign 
to it the competencies stipulated 

in Article (91) of these Regulations. 
Such committee shall oversee any 
matters relating to the implemen-

tation of governance, and shall pro-
vide the Board with its reports and 
recommendations at least annually.

Guiding Article

Some paragraphs of the regulations remain advisory and may be implemented in the future or upon mandate 
by the Capital Market Authority, the Ministry of Commerce, or other regulatory and supervisory bodies.
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Information Disclosed by the Company
1-	 When the company is confidentially provided 

with such information, and disclosure thereof 
may result in filing a lawsuit for breach of confi-
dentiality.

2-	 The conditions in which disclosure leads or may 
lead to harm the commercial interests of the 
company, its commercial partners or other third 
parties, and in the conditions in which public in-
terest of disclosure has priority over the public 
interest of non-disclosure.

3-	 The disclosure of such information results in 
breach of the principles of personal information 
protection.

4-	 Personal information of company employees and 
members of the Board and its committees.

5-	 When such information have legal immunity.

6-	 If disclosure will lead or probably leads to harm a 
crime investigation procedures or prevent occur-
rence or detection thereof or realizing justice.

Transparency and Disclosure
Nadec is committed to providing accurate and timely information to all relevant stakeholders on a regular ba-
sis by accurately and promptly disclosing all material matters. This includes the company’s financial position, 
performance, and governance practices, as well as compliance with rules regarding the disclosure of informa-
tion, methods of classifying information, and timing of disclosure. These endeavors are consistent with the 
provisions outlined in the Companies Law, the Sixth Regulation of Listed Companies Governance issued by 
the Capital Market Authority, and other relevant regulations and laws, as well as sound corporate governance 
principles and practices.

Board of
Directors'

Report

Board
Members

Annual
Reports

and Financial
Statements

Transactions
with Related

Parties Membership
of Board

Committees

Main
Activities

Auditors'
Report
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Company Investments
The National Agricultural Development Company invests in a total of six (6) subsidiary and affiliated compa-
nies, namely:

Company 
Name

Main 
Activity

Company 
Headquarters

Year 
Founded

Issued/Paid-
up Share 
Capital 
(SAR)

NADEC 
ownership 
percentage

Company’s total revenues 
during the year 2024

Subsidiaries 

National Seeds 
Production �Com-
pany (NSPC)

Its main 
activity Is 

agricultural 
production

Riyadh, 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

1445H 5,000,000 100%

The financial 
statements have 

not been issued at the 
time this 

report was issued

NADEC 
Management 
Company

Manage-
ment and 

consultation 
services

Riyadh, 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

1446H 500,000 100%

The financial state-
ments have not been 

issued at the time this 
report was issued.

Joint Venture

National 
Livestock
Company 
(AlRaie)

Livestock 
and meat 

production

Riyadh, 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

1445H 5,000,000 51%

The financial state-
ments have not been 

issued at the time this 
report was issued.

Affiliate companies

National 
Company for 
Seed Production 
& Agriculture 
Services Company 
(BUTHOR)

Seeds

Riyadh,
Kingdom of
Saudi Ara-

bia

1406H 29,515,200 13.99 % SAR 17.6 M

Al-Mutahida 
United Dairy
Farms 
Company

Veterinary 
medicine 

warehouse

Riyadh, 
Kingdom 
of Saudi 
Arabia

1408H 7,250,000 8.26%

The financial state-
ments have not been 

issued at the time this 
report was issued.

Arabian Mills 
for Food 
Products 
Company 
(formerly: 
Second Milling 
Company)

Packing and 
grinding 
(wheat, 

groats, sem-
olina, bulgur, 

fodder)

Riyadh, 
Kingdom 
of Saudi 
Arabia

1442H 513,150,060 10.41%

The financial state-
ments have not 

been issued at the 
time this report was 

issued.

Audit Committee’s 
Recommendations that Conflict with 
Decisions of the Board of Directors
There are no recommendations from the Audit Commit-
tee that conflict with the decisions of the Board of Di-
rectors or that have been rejected by the Board with re-
spect to the appointment or removal of the company’s 
auditors, determination of their fees, the evaluation of 
their performance, or the appointment of the internal 
auditor.

Future Plans
Nadec is committed to implementing its strategic plan, 
which seeks to fortify its position as a leading compa-
ny in the local and regional food and consumer goods 
markets. This endeavor will enable the company to ex-
pand its current business and broaden the scope of its 
products by engaging in new activities. The company 
is striving to become an integrated food company with 
a sales target of SAR6 billion by 2027. To realize this 
objective, a financial restructuring plan will be formu-
lated to enhance the company’s financial resilience to 
facilitate the implementation of its strategic and oper-
ational plans and support its future endeavors.

Cases of Bankruptcy and Insolvency 
of the Board of Directors and 
Executive Management
As of the date of this publication, there have been no 
cases of bankruptcy of members of the Board of Direc-
tors, the executive management, or the Board Secretary. 
Additionally, there have been no cases of insolvency in 
the past five years in which any of the members of the 
Board of Directors, the executive management, or the 
Board Secretary was appointed by the insolvent com-
pany to a management or supervisory position.

Details of shares and debt 
instruments issued by each 
affiliate company
Details related to issued shares have been reflected in 
the previous table. No affiliated entity issued any debt 
instruments during the year 2024.

Declarations of the BOD
�� All accounting records are prepared appropriately.

�� The Internal Audit system is designed on accurately 
and it is effective.

�� There is no doubt on the company’s ability to con-
tinue its activity in the foreseeable future.

Opinion of the Committee 
on the adequacy of internal 
control systems
The Committee acknowledges that absolute assurance re-
garding the adequacy and effectiveness of any internal con-
trol system is inherently unattainable. However, based on the 
periodic reports submitted by the Company’s Management, 
the Committee’s supervisory role in monitoring the activities 
and reports of the Internal Audit Department, and the evalu-
ation conducted by the External Auditor, the Committee has 
not identified any material weaknesses in the internal con-
trol systems that require disclosure .The Committee remains 
committed to working with Executive Management to contin-
uously improve the internal control framework and address 
areas that may require enhancement.

Penalties and Fines
No penalties or fines were imposed on the company 
by the Capital Market Authority or other regulatory and 
supervisory bodies during the year 2024.
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Internal Audit

 The Internal Audit Department at nadec was established to enhance 
governance, improve operational efficiency, and add sustainable val-
ue to the company's activities. The department aims to achieve these 
objectives by implementing a comprehensive and organized method-
ology to assess and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
internal controls, and governance.

The department enjoys institutional independence, as it reports func-
tionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the CEO, ensur-
ing the performance of its duties with impartiality and effectiveness. 
Its work is based on an annual risk-based audit plan, which is prepared 
in an organized manner and approved by the Audit Committee, ensur-
ing focus on the most impactful areas within the company.

Throughout the year, the department carried out numerous audit activ-
ities covering various company operations, aiming to assess the effi-
ciency and effectiveness of internal control systems, risk management, 
and governance. Emphasis was placed on high-risk operations and 
activities to ensure compliance and improve performance. The 
department also ensures the submission of periodic reports to 
the executive management and the Audit Committee, ensur-
ing that recommendations are followed up on and necessary 
actions are taken to enhance operational efficiency and 
support the achievement of the company's strategic 
objectives.
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financial 
statements6
The Consolidated Financial Statements and 
Independent Auditor's Report for the Year 
Ended 31 December 2024
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The Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Independent Auditor's Report for the 
Year Ended 31 December 2024

Note
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant and equipment 14 1,774,945,824 1,754,801,597

Right-of-use assets 15 45,911,025 57,707,476

Biological assets 16 695,858,509 727,632,518

Intangible assets 17 26,657,322 29,597,933

Investment in joint venture 18.1 2,550,000 116,222,014

Equity investments at FVOCI 18.2 273,026,552 8,949,000

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,818,949,232 2,694,910,538

CURRENT ASSETS 

Biological assets 19 85,273,609 56,574,175

Inventories 20 662,169,811 559,749,415

Trade receivables, prepayments, and other receivables 21 472,173,058 406,537,138

Term deposits 22 300,000,000 500,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,365,364,080 834,686,320

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,884,980,558 2,357,547,048

TOTAL ASSETS 	 5,703,929,790 5,052,457,586

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital 24 3,016,400,000 3,016,400,000

Share premium 78,719 78,719

Statutory reserve 25 193,787,812 193,787,812

Other reserves 26 (29,760,699) 38,985,456

Retained earnings 1,116,424,086 343,592,118

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 4,296,929,918 3,592,844,105

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2024 

Note
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Murabaha loans and borrowings 27 1,667,414 97,739,216

Lease liabilities 15 25,636,302 34,777,841

Deferred income 3,475,813 4,017,287

Employee’ defined benefits obligation 28 131,422,371 147,947,099

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 162,201,900 284,481,443

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables 29 822,821,340 717,312,003

Murabaha loans and borrowings – short term 27 205,285,107 227,618,113

Murabaha loans and borrowings - current portion 27 833,707 51,035,972

Lease liabilities – current portion 15 13,776,418 17,894,034

Undistributed rights issue compensation 30 82,980,982 83,238,203

Dividend payables 31 31,946,723 32,340,192

Provision for Zakat 32 87,153,695 45,693,521

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,244,797,972 1,175,132,038

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,406,999,872 1,459,613,481

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,703,929,790 5,052,457,586

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements appearing on pages (6) to (42) were approved by the Board of Direc-
tors and were signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq Solaiman Al-Twaijri Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 

  Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2024 
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  Note
31 December 

2024
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

Revenue 7 3,220,400,393 3,196,966,537

Cost of revenue 8 (2,028,078,279) (2,013,222,848)

GROSS PROFIT 1,192,322,114 1,183,743,689

Selling and marketing expenses 9 (531,774,710) (559,555,571)

General and administrative expenses 10 (234,790,471) (213,094,619)

Impairment losses for trade receivables, prepayments and 
other receivables

21 2,866,041 (48,870,839)

Write off/ impairment losses on property, plant and equipment 14 (7,230,569) (24,026,362)

Other (expenses) income, net 11 (31,987,545) 2,440,013

OPERATING PROFIT 389,404,860 340,636,311

Treasury income 91,415,685 3,912,778

Financing cost 12 (34,241,422) (76,020,175)

Gain from the reclassification of a joint venture to an 
investment at FVOCI

18.2 356,513,453 -

Share of results of joint venture 18.1 24,039,392 21,735,857

PROFIT BEFORE ZAKAT 827,131,968 290,264,771

Zakat for current year 32 (52,500,000) (14,200,000)

Zakat reversal related to previous years 32 - 26,000,000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 774,631,968 302,064,771

EARNINGS PER SHARE, BASED ON THE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF  THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted 13 2.57 1.77*

* Restated for right issues.

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements appearing on pages (6) to (42) were approved by the Board of Directors 
and were signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq Solaiman Al-Twaijri Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 

  Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year 
ended 31 December 2024 

  Note
31 December 

2024
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 774,631,968 302,064,771

ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS

Actuarial gain on re-measurement of employees' defined 
benefit obligation

28 16,560,981 10,238,306

Movement in equity investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI)

(87,429,338) 603,000

TOTAL ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS (70,868,357) 10,841,306

ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS

Foreign operations – foreign currency translation differences 2,122,202 (901,603)

TOTAL ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS 2,122,202 (901,603)

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME (68,746,155) 9,939,703

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 705,885,813 312,004,474

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements appearing on pages (6) to (42) were approved by the Board of Directors 
and were signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq Solaiman Al-Twaijri Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 

  Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year 
ended 31 December 2024
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for 
the year ended 31 December 2024  

Share capital
SAR

Share premium
SAR

Statutory reserve
SAR

Other reserves
SAR

Retained earnings
SAR

Total shareholders' equity
SAR

Balance as at 1 January 2024 3,016,400,000 78,719 193,787,812 38,985,456 343,592,118 3,592,844,105

Profit for the year - - - - 774,631,968 774,631,968

Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (68,746,155) - (68,746,155)

Total comprehensive income (68,746,155) 774,631,968 705,885,813

Expenses relating to issue of new shares 
(note 24)

- - - - (1,800,000) (1,800,000)

Balance as at 31 December 2024 3,016,400,000 78,719 193,787,812 (29,760,699) 1,116,424,086 4,296,929,918

Balance as at 1 January 2023 1,016,400,000 78,719 193,787,812 29,045,753 55,833,425 1,295,145,709

Profit for the year - - - - 302,064,771 302,064,771

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 9,939,703 - 9,939,703

Total comprehensive income - - - 9,939,703 302,064,771 312,004,474

Expenses relating to issue of new shares 
(note 24)

2,000,000,000 - - - (14,306,078) 1,985,693,922

Balance as at 31 December 2023 3,016,400,000 78,719 193,787,812 38,985,456 343,592,118 3,592,844,105

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements appearing on pages (6) to (42) were approved by

the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq Solaiman Al-Twaijri Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 

  Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for 
the year ended 31 December 2024

Note
31 December 

2024
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before Zakat   827,131,968 290,264,771

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property plant and equipment, net 14 154,094,300 148,245,121

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 14,361,535 14,339,308

Change in biological assets 16 67,298,643 63,225,609

Amortization of intangible assets 17 10,776,726 8,654,485

Deferred income (541,474) (541,719)

Employee benefits obligation 28 24,927,575 30,402,117

Write off/ Impairment losses on trade receivables and other 
receivables 

21 (2,866,041) 37,320,981

Inventory provision, net 20 37,341,265 31,546,653

Treasury income on term deposit  (16,171,667) -

Financing cost  12 34,241,422 76,020,175

Share of results from joint venture 18 (24,039,392) (21,735,857)

Gain from the reclassification of joint venture to investment 
at FVOCI

(356,513,453) -

Loss on sale of property plant and equipment and biological 
assets, net

11 52,369,481 48,505,220

Write off/ Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment 14 7,230,569 24,026,362

  829,641,457 750,273,226

Changes in:  

Inventories (139,160,848) (75,246,356)

Biological assets (28,699,434) 1,708,026

Trade receivables, prepayments, and other receivables (62,820,713) (16,450,059)

Trade payable, accrued expenses and other payables 106,428,464 39,042,447

  705,388,926 699,327,284

Zakat paid 32 (11,039,826) (19,667,614)

    Employee benefits paid 28 (24,329,052) (24,987,537)

Net cash from operating activities   670,020,048 654,672,133

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for 
the year ended 31 December 2024

Note
31 December 

2024
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and biological assets 14&16 (276,499,200) (292,077,751)

Acquisition of intangible assets 17 (7,836,114) (2,017,770)

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and 
biological assets

7,134,795 77,853,556

Proceeds from sale of investment 145,267,969 -

Investment in joint venture (2,550,000) (40,294,921)

Interest proceeds from investment in term deposits 16,171,667 -

Proceeds from investment in term deposits 22 900,000,000 -

Investment in time deposits 22 (700,000,000) (500,000,000)

Net cash from (used in) investing activities   81,689,117 (756,536,886)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

Issue of new shares 24 - 2,000,000,000

Expenses relating to issue of new shares (1,800,000) (14,306,078)

Proceeds from Murabaha loans and borrowings  1,875,000,000 478,616,451

Repayment of Murabaha loans and borrowings  (2,037,726,903) (1,622,295,356)

Financing cost paid  (38,365,629) (79,515,912)

Payment of lease liabilities 15 (17,580,202) (20,797,587)

Dividend paid 31 (393,469) (240,131)

Undistributed rights issue compensation paid 30 (257,221) 83,238,203

Net cash (used in) from financing activities (221,123,424) 824,699,590

Net change in cash and cash equivalent    530,585,741 722,834,837

Cash and cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 23 834,686,320 112,761,952

Effect of exchange rates fluctuations on cash held 92,019 (910,469)

CASH AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR  23 1,365,364,080 834,686,320

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements appearing on pages (6) to (42) were approved by the Board of Directors 
and were signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq Solaiman Al-Twaijri Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 

  Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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1.	THE COMPANY, ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND ITS OPERATIONS
The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company 
formed under the Royal Decree No. M/41 dated 17 Shawwal 1401H (corresponding to 17 August 1981). NADEC 
was formerly known as Haradh Agriculture and Livestock Company which was registered in Riyadh under Com-
mercial Registration No. 1010018795 dated 26 Dhul-Hijjah 1398H (corresponding to 26 November 1978).

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in agricultural and livestock production, 
reclamation of agricultural land, food processing and marketing and distribution of its products. 

The Group’s financial year begins on January 1 and ends at the end of December of the same year.

The Company’s Head office is located at the following address:

Building No. 7049

Sub No. 2467

Prince Abdulrahman Bin Abdulaziz Road, Al Murabba District,

Riyadh 11461 – Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 

Details of subsidiary companies are as follows:

Name of the 
subsidiary

Country of 
incorporation

Business 
activity

Effective 
ownership interest

Share 
capital

SAR

Number 
of shares 

issued2024 2023

The National Seeds 
Agricultural Pro-
duction Company 
(NSPC)*

Saudi Arabia
Agricultural 
Seeds and 
production

100% 51% 5,000,000 500,000

NADEC Manage-
ment Company**

Saudi Arabia
Management 
services and 
consultation

100% - 5,000,000 500,000

* The National Seeds Agricultural Production Company (NSPC) was officially established in 2023, with NADEC 
initially proposing to hold a 51% ownership stake in the NSPC's capital. Later during 2024, NADEC decided for 
100% shareholding. However, as of balance sheet date, the NSPC didn’t commence any operational activities.

**During 2024, the Group established NADEC Management Company as a fully owned subsidiary, to provide 
management services and consultation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.	BASIS OF PREPARATION 
2.1	 Statement of Compliance 
These annual Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) and 
other standards and pronouncements that are issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional 
Accountants (“SOCPA”). Collectively referred as (International Financial Reporting Standards endorsed in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia).

2.2	 Basis of Measurement 
These annual Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with historical cost except 
for the following significant items included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position: 

�� Equity Investments at FVOCI are valued at fair value in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13 First & 
second level of valuation method where ever applicable.

�� Biological assets are measured at fair value less cost to sell except when fair value cannot be measured 
reliably. In case the fair value of biological assets cannot be measured reliably, it is measured at historical 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

2.3	 Functional and Presentation Currency 
These annual Consolidated Financial Statements have been presented in Saudi Riyal (“SAR”) unless otherwise 
stated, which is also the functional currency of the Group.
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3.	BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 
These Consolidated Financial Statements comprising the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consoli-
dated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Group include assets, liabilities and the results of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries, as set 
out in note (1). The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”. Subsidiaries are enti-
ties controlled by the Group. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control commences until the 
date on which control ceases. The Group accounts for the business combinations using the acquisition method 
when control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at 
fair value, as are the identified net assets acquired and fair value of pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group trans-
actions, are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are aligned, where necessary, to ensure consistency 
with the policies adopted by the Group. The Company and its subsidiaries have the same reporting periods.

4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The material accounting policies applied by the Group in the preparation of these consolidated financial state-
ments are set out below:

Term Deposits 
Term Deposits include placements with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments, with original 
maturities of more than three months but not more than one year from the date of placement. Time deposits 
are placed with financial institutions with investment grade rating which are considered to have low credit risk. 

Investment income in time deposits is accrued on a timely basis by reference to the principal outstanding and 
at the applicable effective interest rate.

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash on hand, Cash with banks and other short-term liquid investments/ 
deposits with original maturities of three months or less and are readily convertible to a known amount of cash 
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and Other Receivables  
Trade receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Trade receivables are written off where 
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery 
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to 
make contractual payments.

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted 
average method. Inventory cost includes costs of purchase (including taxes, transport, and handling etc.) net 
of trade discounts received, costs of conversion (including fixed and variable manufacturing overheads) and 
any other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Provision is made, 
when necessary, for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventory. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The amount of any write-down of inventories 
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories shall be recognized as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in 
net realisable value, shall be recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense 
in the period in which the reversal occurs. The cost of items of inventory used is assigned by weighted average 
cost formula. 

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized as assets if, and only if:

	 A.	 It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

	 B.	 The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recognized at cost and subsequently stated at cost, net of accumu-
lated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent and additional costs to existing 
asset are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. Finance costs on borrowings, to finance the construction of the qualifying assets, are 
capitalized during the period that is required to substantially complete and prepare the qualifying asset for its 
intended use. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria is satisfied. All other repair and mainte-
nance costs are recognized in the profit or loss when incurred.

The items of property, plant and equipment are subject to impairment test whenever there is a substantial 
evidence for impairment. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its 
use, is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets (except for land 
and capital work in progress) as follows:

Concrete Buildings 50 years Vehicles and Trucks 4 – 8 years
Pre-fabricated Building 5 – 10 years Capital spare parts 10 years
Wells and Civil works 7 – 50 years Tools 5 – 10 years
Machinery and 
Equipment 7 – 25 years Office Furniture 5 – 10 years

Tanks and Silos 7 – 30 years Bearer Plants 20 years

Agricultural Equipment 8 – 25 years
Leasehold 
Improvements

Based on the duration of 
the lease agreement

Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are ex-
pected from their use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on disposal of the asset (calculated as the differ-
ence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss 
during the period when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, where appropriate.

Capital Work in Progress is recorded according to acquisition cost plus all direct costs that are incurred on them to bring 
them to location and condition necessary to enable the Group to have these assets ready for intended use. These assets 
are transferred to relevant assets categories and are depreciated once they are available for their intended use.

Biological Assets
Biological Assets are the herd of productive and non-productive cows as well as the Biological Assets acquired 
for sale, including crops in the growth stage that have not yet reached the harvest point. Each of these items 
is presented separately in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less cost to sell except when fair value cannot be measured reli-
ably. In case the fair value of biological assets cannot be measured reliably, it is measured at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets
Internally generated Intangible Assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the 
related expenditure is recognized in the 	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss when it is incurred.

Intangible Assets are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Amortization is calculated on 
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets 5 years.

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the 
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each 
reporting year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, 
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible 
assets with finite lives is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or loss in the expense category 
consistent with the function of the intangible assets. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intan-
gible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress is recognized at acquisition cost, along with all direct costs incurred to prepare the 
assets for their intended use, including bringing them to the appropriate location and condition. Once these 
assets are ready for use, they are transferred to the relevant asset categories and begin to be amortized as 
intangible assets.

Investment joint ventures
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of 
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent 
of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the 
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted 
to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill 
relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impair-
ment separately. 

The Consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint 
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there 
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any 
changes, when applicable, in the Consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Trade and Other Payables
Trade and Other payables are recognized based on the net payable amount or the expected payment for goods 
and services received whether invoiced by supplier or not.
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions
Provision is recognized if, and only if a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a 
past event (the obligating event), payment is probable ('more likely than not'), and when the amount can be 
estimated reliably. An obligating event is an event that creates a legal or constructive obligation and, therefore, 
results in an entity having no realistic alternative but to settle the obligation. The amount recognized as a pro-
vision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be esti-
mated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a Contingent Liability, unless the probability of outflow of eco-
nomic benefits is unreliable. Contingent liabilities, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Group, are not recognized 
in the Consolidated financial statements but are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities unless the possibility of 
an outflow of economic resources is considered unreliable.

Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or con-
tains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an 
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site 
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The es-
timated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equip-
ment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the com-
mencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily de-
termined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as 
the discount rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

�� fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
�� variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at 

the commencement date;

�� amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

�� the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments 
in an optional renewal period if Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties 
for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in 
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group 
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the 
right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have 
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes the lease payments 
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a group of assets and processes that deliver products or services that are subject to 
risks and rewards that differ from those of other operating segments. Operating segments are segmented ac-
cording to their geographical scope and each sector's performance is reviewed by the chief decision makers. 
These sectors may operate within a specific economic environment that is subject to risks and rewards differ-
ent from those of sectors operating in other economic environments.  

Government Grants
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall not be recognized until there is reason-
able assurance that, the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and the grants will be re-
ceived. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where 
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized on Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as Deferred In-
come and is amortized in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. 

The Group has elected to present the grant in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as deferred in-
come, which is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on a systematic and rational basis over 
the useful life of the asset. When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are 
recorded at fair value and released to Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss over the expected useful life of 
the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset.
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Non-financial assets (other than biological assets measured at fair value, inventories) are reviewed by the 
Group at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal 
of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is 
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, when it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. Where the carrying amount of an as-
set exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a dis-
count rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of sell, recent market transactions are considered. If no such trans-
actions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

Foreign Currency Transaction
Foreign currency transactions are translated to Saudi Riyal (‘SAR') at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the respective transactions. At Consolidated Statement of Financial Position date, balances of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Saudi Riyal (‘SAR’) at the prevailing 
exchange rates on that date. Gains and losses resulting from changes in exchange rates are recognized in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold, net of returns, 
trade discounts and volume rebates. The Group recognizes revenue when a customer obtains control of the 
goods at a point in time on acknowledgement of goods. 

Products are sold principally on a sale or return basis. Allowances for expected sales returns are calculated 
based on the forecasted return of expired products. Expected sales returns are netted off against revenue with 
the corresponding impact in Trade and Other Payables for cash sales and Trade Receivables for credit sales.

The goods are often sold with retrospective volume discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 months peri-
od. Revenue from these sales is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated 
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts and revenue is 
only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liabil-
ity (included in trade and other payables) is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers 
in relation to sales made during the year. 
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share Capital 
Shares are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value. Incremental costs, if any, directly attribut-
able to the issue of new shares, are recognized in Equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Dividends
Dividends are recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements in the period in which it is approved by 
General Assembly Meeting.

Expenses
Selling and marketing expenses are those expenses arising from the Group’s efforts underlying the marketing, 
selling and distribution functions. All other expenses, excluding Cost of Sales, Finance Cost and Zakat are clas-
sified as General and Administrative Expenses. Allocations between Cost of Sales, Selling and Distribution and 
General and Administration Expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

Zakat
The Group is subject to Zakat according to the regulations of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority “ZATCA”. 
Zakat provision is estimated and charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit of Loss. Any differences in the 
estimates are recognized when the final assessment is approved by “ZATCA”, such differences are recognized in 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in the year in which the final assessment is approved by “ZATCA”.

Employee Benefits
A-	 Saudi Employees

Pension and other social benefits for the Group’s employees are covered by the applicable social insurance 
scheme of the countries in which they are employed and are considered as a defined contribution scheme. The 
employees and employer contribute monthly to the scheme on a fixed-percentage-of-salaries basis.

B-	 Foreign Employees

Foreign employees on limited-term contracts are entitled to end of service payments under the respective 
labour laws of the countries in which they are employed, based on length of service and final remuneration. 
Provision for this unfunded commitment has been made by calculating the full liability, had all employees left 
at the reporting date.

�� Defined Contribution Plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided and 
the contributions paid in advance are recognized as an asset to the extent that the cash is recovered, or future 
payments reduced. 
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
�� Defined Benefit Plan

The net liability of the Group in respect of benefit plans is identified separately for each plan and is calculated 
by estimating the value of the future benefits realized by the employees in current and prior periods and de-
termining that amount and the fair value discount on any of the plan's assets. 

The defined benefit obligations are calculated annually by a qualified actuarial expert using the Projected Unit 
Credit method. Where the calculation results in potential assets of the Group, the recognized asset is limited 
to the present value of the economic benefits available in the form of any future recoveries from the benefit 
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. The calculation of the present value of economic ben-
efits considers current financing requirements. The amounts of the net identifiable benefit obligations that 
include actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling 
(if any, excluding interest) are recognized directly in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. The Group 
determines the net interest expense (or income) on the Net Liabilities (Net Assets) determined for the period 
by applying the discount rate used to measure the obligation and benefits identified at the beginning of the 
annual period of the obligation (or the asset), considering any changes in net liabilities.

Net interest expense and other expense related to benefit plans are recognized in the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit or Loss. When the benefits of the plan change or when the plan is amortized, the change in the ben-
efits relating to the past service or the gain or loss resulting from the reduction in profit or loss is recognized 
immediately. The Group recognizes the gain or loss arising from settlement of the defined benefits plan when 
the settlement occurs.

�� Other Long-Term Employee Benefits 

The net obligation of the Group in respect of other long-term employee benefits is the amount of future bene-
fits to which the employees are entitled in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit 
is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognized in the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise. 

Financial instruments 

I.	 Non-Derivative Financial Instruments 

A-	 Non-Derivative Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

�� Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

�� Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the cash flows.
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments 

I.	 Non-Derivative Financial Instruments 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments 
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevo-
cable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

The Group initially recognizes financial assets on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets 
are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in the 
transferred financial asset that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is presented in the Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has the following 
non-derivative financial assets;

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of prin-
cipal and interest (SPPI), are measured at amortized cost. Gains or losses on debt investments are subsequently mea-
sured at amortized cost and are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecog-
nized or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest 
rate method. The Group classifies its Trade and Other receivables and Cash and Bank Balances under this category. 

Financial Assets at FVOCI

Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the 
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. 

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the ef-
fective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit or Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net 
gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss. The Group has classified its 
Equity investment in other Companies as FVOCI. 
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments 

I.	 Non-Derivative Financial Instruments 

B-	 Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or ex-
pired. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such finan-
cial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities of the Group comprise of bank borrowings, lease liabilities and trade and 
other payables.

2. Derivative Financial Instruments 

All derivatives do not qualify as hedging instruments and are therefore held and accounted for as trading deriv-
atives. These derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are 
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
or Loss. 

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of 
issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt 
these new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.  

Amendments to IAS 27 – Lack of exchangeability 

An entity is impacted by the amendments when it has a transaction or an operation in a foreign currency that 
is not exchangeable into another currency at a measurement date for a specified purpose. 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments These amendments:

�� clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of some financial assets and liabil-
ities, with a new exception for some financial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system; 
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments 

2. Derivative Financial Instruments 

�� clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely payments of prin-
cipal and interest (SPPI) criterion; 

�� add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cash flows (such as 
some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment, social and governance (ESG) 
targets); and 

�� make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehen-
sive Income (FVOCI). 

IFRS 18, ‘Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

This is the new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, with a focus on updates to the 
statement of profit or loss. The key new concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to: 

�� the structure of the statement of profit or loss; 

�� required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures that are re-
ported outside an entity’s financial statements (that is, management-defined performance measures); and 

�� enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial statements 
and notes in general.

New and amended standards and interpretations 

The Group has applied the following amendments, where applicable, for the first time  for their annual report-
ing period beginning from 1 January 2024. These amendments do not have any material impact on the Consol-
idated Financial Statements during the year.  

Amendments to IFRS 16 – Leases on sale and leaseback: 

These amendments include requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS 16 to explain how an en-
tity accounts for a sale and leaseback after the date of the transaction. Sale and leaseback transactions where 
some or all the lease payments are variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are most 
likely to be impacted

Amendments IAS 1 – Non-current liabilities with covenants and Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non 
current Amendments: 

These amendments clarify how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the 
reporting period affect the classification of a liability. The amendments also aim to improve information an 
entity provides related to liabilities subject to these conditions. 
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4.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments 

2. Derivative Financial Instruments 

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 – Supplier finance arrangements: 

These amendments require disclosures to enhance the transparency of supplier finance arrangements and 
their effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. 

5.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS 
AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of these consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of Revenues, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities, and the 
accompanying Disclosures, and the disclosure of Contingent Liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions 
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset 
or liability affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and lia-
bilities within the next financial years, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates 
on parameters available when the consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances 
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances 
arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

5.1.	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
A non-financial asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit exceeds the 
asset's recoverable amount (which represents the fair value of the asset less costs to sell or its value in use, 
whichever is greater). The fair value of the asset is estimated through sales that are on a purely commercial ba-
sis for similar assets. Market prices are observable minus the incremental costs of selling the asset. The value 
in use is calculated based on the present value of the expected cash flows of the asset over the next five years. 
These expected cash flows do not include restructuring activities for which the Group is not yet committed or 
significant future investments that enhance the asset performance of the cash-generating unit under consid-
eration. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used to calculate the cash flows as well 
as the expected future cash flows and the growth rate used to estimate the value in use. 
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5.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS 
AND ASSUMPTIONS  (CONTINUED)
5.2.	 Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments including 
derivative financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated Statement of Fi-
nancial Position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is determined 
using valuation techniques including the DCF (discounted cash flows) model that includes the use of the 
present value of expected cash flows from such assets or using other methods as provided for in IFRS 13. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations of inputs 
such as Liquidity risk, Credit risk and Volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect 
the reported fair value of financial instruments.

5.3.	 Impairment of Non-Derivative Financial Assets 
The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECLs (Expected Credit Loss) on Financial Assets measured at amor-
tized cost i.e. Trade Receivables of the Group. The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the Expected 
Credit Losses (“ECL”) associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost. For trade receivables, the 
Group applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial 
recognition of the receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, receivables have been grouped based 
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. Expected loss rates were derived from historical 
information of the Group and are adjusted to reflect the expected future outcome which also incorporates 
forward looking information for macroeconomic factors such as inflation and gross domestic product growth 
rate. Other financial assets such as employees’ receivables, bank balances have low credit risk and the impact 
of applying ECL is immaterial.

5.4.	 Provision for Slow Moving Inventory Items 
The management makes a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items. Estimates of net realizable 
value of inventories are based on the most reliable evidence at the time the estimates are made. These esti-
mates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly related to events occurring subsequent to 
the consolidated Statement of Financial Position date to the extent that such events confirm conditions exist-
ing at the end of year. (Note 20)

5.5.	 Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
The management determines the estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment for calculating de-
preciation. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets and physical wear and 
tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and change in depreciation charges are 
adjusted in current and future periods, if any. 
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5.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS 
AND ASSUMPTIONS  (CONTINUED)
5.6.	 Judgements
Mature livestock includes dairy cows that have produced their first calf and began milk production. Costs in-
curred in relation to mature livestock are recognized in consolidated statements of profit or loss immediately 
as an expense. Fair value estimates for these biological assets are computed using the discounted cash (DCF) 
technique (i.e. income approach under level 3) and require significant judgement in several areas associated 
with raw milk selling prices, herd size, birth, mortality, margins on various parts of the production cycle, dis-
count rates, lactation cycles, yield per animal per day, demand for raw milk, long-term average growth rates 
etc. While some of the above assumptions are backed by company’s own historical and / or scientific data, 
certain assumptions such as margins and yield per animal per day cannot be derived from active market or 
observable data in KSA and also exhibit high sensitivity to the fair value estimates, leading these particular 
assumptions to be potentially unreliable. Estimates for fair value are revised for new information / scientifi-
cally-backed evidence.

Equity Investments are measured at fair value and any changes in fair value are recognized through OCI. The 
cumulative change in the fair value of those investments is reported under Other Reserves under Equity in 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. (Note 16,17 and 18). 

6.	OPERATING SEGMENTS
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified based on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by 
the Group's chief operating decision makers and used to allocate resources to segments and assess their per-
formance. The operating segments described below has been prepared in accordance with IFRS 8. The Group 
operates in three main business segments: Manufacturing of Dairy and Beverages, Production of Agricultural 
Products and Protein. Most of the Group's revenues, profits and assets relate to its operations in Saudi Arabia 
and arise from these reportable business segments. The chief operating decision makers monitors the oper-
ational results of these operating segments separately for making decisions about resource allocation and 
performance evaluation. The performance of the segment is evaluated on a profit or loss basis and is measured 
in a manner consistent with the profit or loss recognized in the consolidated Financial Statements. 

The Protein segment operations commenced late in the fourth quarter of the year 2023 and has been classified 
as part of the Dairy and Beverage segment. It is important to note that this segment is relatively small in scale 
and has made a limited contribution to the overall performance of the company during 2023.
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6.	OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following is a summary of the operating segments as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024:

Dairy and  
Beverages

SAR

Agriculture
SAR

Protein
SAR

Elimination of 
Inter- Segment 

Sales
SAR

Total
SAR

Revenue        

External Revenue 2,971,080,065 69,032,993 180,287,335 - 3,220,400,393

Inter-Segment Revenue 53,342,092 67,291,229 - (120,633,321) -

Total Revenue 3,024,422,157 136,324,222 180,287,335 (120,633,321) 3,220,400,393

Expenses

Depreciation and 
Amortization

(213,654,113) (32,853,708) (23,383) - (246,531,204)

Impairment losses for 
trade receivables, and 
other receivables

(5,116,041)  2,250,000 - - 2,866,041

Write off/ impairment 
losses on property, plant 
and equipment

(496,108) (6,734,461) - - (7,230,569)

Operating Profit (Loss) 439,420,769 (23,510,557) (26,505,352) - 389,404,860

Treasury income 91,415,685 - - - 91,415,685

Financing cost (29,740,705) (4,074,261) (426,456) - (34,241,422)

Gain from the 
reclassification of joint 
venture to investment at 
FVOCI

- 356,513,453 - - 356,513,453

Share of Results of Joint 
Venture

- 24,039,392 - - 24,039,392
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6.	OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Dairy and  
Beverages

SAR

Agriculture
SAR

Protein
SAR

Elimination of 
Inter- Segment 

Sales
SAR

Total
SAR

Profit (loss) before Zakat 501,095,749 352,968,027 (26,931,808) - 827,131,968

Zakat for current year (52,500,000) - - - (52,500,000)

Profit (loss) for the year 448,595,749 352,968,027 (26,931,808) - 774,631,968

Total Assets

As at 31 December 2024 4,742,670,747 892,719,617 68,539,426 - 5,703,929,790

As at 31 December 2023 4,591,362,752 461,094,834 - - 5,052,457,586

The following is a summary of the operating segments as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023:

 
Dairy and 
Beverages

SAR

Agriculture
SAR

Elimination of 
Inter- Segment 

Sales
SAR

Total
SAR

Revenue

External Revenue 3,080,102,397 116,864,140 - 3,196,966,537

Inter-Segment Revenue - 50,957,401 (50,957,401) -

Total Revenue 3,080,102,397 167,821,541 (50,957,401) 3,196,966,537

Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization (208,059,807) (26,404,692) - (234,464,499)
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6.	OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

 
Dairy and 
Beverages

SAR

Agriculture
SAR

Elimination of 
Inter- Segment 

Sales
SAR

Total
SAR

Impairment losses for trade 
receivables, and other 
receivables

(48,870,839) - - (48,870,839)

Write off/ impairment losses on 
property, plant and equipment

(24,026,362) - - (24,026,362)

Operating Profit 328,385,950 16,163,139 - 344,549,089

Treasury income 3,912,778 - - 3,912,778

Financing Cost (72,449,237) (3,570,938) - (76,020,175)

Share of Results of Joint Venture - 21,735,857 - 21,735,857

Profit before Zakat 255,936,713 34,328,058 - 290,264,771

Zakat for current year (14,200,000) - - (14,200,000)

Zakat reversal related to 
previous years

26,000,000 - - 26,000,000

Profit for the year 267,736,713 34,328,058 - 302,064,771

Total Assets

As at 31 December 2023 4,591,362,752 461,094,834 - 5,052,457,586

As at 31 December 2022 3,311,908,292 509,598,586 - 3,821,506,878

The following is the summary of revenue allocated to geographical segments:

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Saudi Arabia 2,915,985,644 2,829,356,972

Other Countries 304,414,749 367,609,565

  3,220,400,393 3,196,966,537

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Annual Report  | 2024

222 223222 223
At a Glance Strategic 

Review
Sustainability and 

CSR Review
Human 

Resources
Governance financial 

statements



7.	REVENUE

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Dairy and beverages revenue 2,969,508,266 2,995,241,048

Protein revenue 180,287,335 14,395,137

Agricultural products revenue 69,032,993 116,864,140

Heifers and bulls revenue 1,571,799 70,466,212

  3,220,400,393 3,196,966,537

The main sources of the Group's revenues from contracts with customers include dairy and beverages sales as 
well as agricultural products, Protein sales of heifers and others. The control of the products is transferred to 
the customer at actual time of delivery and upon acknowledgment.

8.	COST OF REVENUE

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Material consumed* 1,492,535,691 1,563,180,889

Government subsidies ** (17,326,398) (18,917,583)

1,475,209,293 1,544,263,306

Employee benefits 156,389,135 151,497,410

Maintenance and repairs expenses 147,843,734 87,216,491

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 
(note 14) 

134,815,062 126,555,860

Change in biological assets (note 16) 67,298,643 63,225,609

Fees and government expenses 14,577,093 12,942,355

Insurance expenses on property, plant and 
equipment

6,115,233 5,780,421
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8.	COST OF REVENUE (CONTINUED)

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Rent and lease expenses 4,198,941 3,581,873

Utility expenses 2,886,524 3,032,734

Depreciation – right-of-use assets (note 15) 860,142 868,538

Amortization of intangible assets (note 17) 452,673 462,335

Other expenses 17,431,806 13,795,916

2,028,078,279 2,013,222,848

* During 2024, inventories write off amounting to SR 25.9 million (2023: SR 6.4 million).

** Government subsidies receivables for the acquisition of certain animal feed items which are supported by 
the Government of Saudi Arabia have been recognized against the cost of materials based on consumption.

9.	SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Employee benefits 220,351,262 226,656,284

Marketing and distribution expenses 189,629,548 182,625,275

Fees and government expenses 35,057,886 34,959,957

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 
(note 14)

17,488,951 19,782,234

Utility expenses 16,023,953 16,481,502

Maintenance and repairs expense 15,885,686 42,615,091

Depreciation – right-of-use assets (note 15) 13,498,046 13,470,744

Rent and lease expenses 10,189,167 6,531,424

Insurance expenses 4,496,584 4,185,532

Amortization of intangible assets (note 17) 241,248 274,478

Other expenses 8,912,379 11,973,050

531,774,710 559,555,571
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10.	 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Employee benefits 145,936,896 124,090,031

Information technology expenses 40,887,216 35,197,745

Professional and consultancy expenses 20,072,778 29,547,062

Amortization of intangible assets (note 17) 9,420,649 7,917,672

Fees and government expenses 5,042,599 3,279,098

Depreciation of property plant and equipment (note 
14)

1,840,666 1,365,308

Utility expenses 1,789,959 2,595,581

Insurance expenses on property, plant and equipment 602,566 288,146

Other expenses 9,197,142 8,813,976

234,790,471 213,094,619

11.	 OTHER (EXPENSES) INCOME, NET

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Sales of ancillary products/ service income 23,908,468 30,163,918

Scrap sales and other miscellaneous income 1,351,873 4,923,187

Dividend income from equity investments at FVOCI 300,000 300,000

Government grant subsidy * - 19,459,478

Net foreign exchange loss (5,178,405) (3,901,350)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and 
biological assets, net 

(52,369,481) (48,505,220)

(31,987,545) 2,440,013

*During the previous year, the Group received a subsidy grant of SAR 19.5 million from General Food Security 
Authority (GFSA). This grant is received for the animal feeds (Soya and corn) consumed in previous years and 
there are no conditions attached to it.  
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12.	 FINANCING COST

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Interest expense on Murabaha loans 23,194,837 66,352,128

Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 15) 1,755,963 1,919,800

Other finance charges 9,290,622 7,748,247

34,241,422 76,020,175

13.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE
31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders 
of the company (SAR)

774,631,968 302,064,771

Number of Shares 301,640,000 171,049,994*

Earnings per share (SAR/Share) 2.57 1.77*

* Restated for right issues.

Earnings per share has been calculated by dividing profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

14.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Description
Land
SAR

Concrete 
Buildings

Land
SAR

Prefabricated 
Buildings

SAR

Wells and Civil 
works
SAR

Machinery and 
Equipment

SAR

Tanks and Silos
SAR

Agricultural 
Equipment

SAR

Vehicles and 
Trucks
SAR

Tools
SAR

Office 
Furniture

SAR

Bearer Plants
SAR

Leasehold 
Improvements

SAR

Capital Parts
SAR

Capital Work in 
Progress

SAR

Total
SAR

Cost 

As at 1 January 
2023

294,800,790 734,937,002 291,336,780 425,293,916 1,984,793,108 75,170,169 174,560,538 231,597,771 317,338,563 166,913,895 173,978,321 4,991,407 1,670,352 110,185,308 4,987,567,920 

Addition - - 1,687,220 3,657,785 42,406,152 834,028 11,794,803 461,026 25,358,645 17,564,308 - - - 3,102,445 106,866,412

Transfers - 10,716,548 2,583,805 - 34,638,355 - - - 16,608,001 - 15,325,208 - - (79,871,917) -

Foreign currency 
translation 
differences

- (870,778) (230,448) (130,127) (16,263,745) (1,940,244) (9,206,849) (23,526,412) (5,887,508) (10,125,709) - - - - (68,181,820)

Disposals - (3,283,418) (1,479,799) (16,235,826) (14,185,794) (684,339) (7,231,774) (2,664,596) (248,046) (290,221) (3,338,235) - - - (49,642,048)

As at 31 
December 2023

294,800,790 741,499,354 293,897,558 412,585,748 2,031,388,076 73,379,614 169,916,718 205,867,789 353,169,655 174,062,273 185,965,294 4,991,407 1,670,352 33,415,836 4,976,610,464

Additions - 1,083,849 10,198,815 4,121,046 71,036,840 176,950 12,366,745 111,950 6,259,294 2,063,967 - 1,710,000 - 73,709,383 182,838,839

Transfers - - 329,965 - 1,954,539 - - - - 1,232,500 - - - (3,517,004) -

Disposals/ 
write off**

- (10,014,584) (4,443,013) (83,198,725) (64,864,502) (2,376,214) (22,474,288) (15,945,771) (3,648,320) (16,396,664) (10,122,716) - - (1,364,888) (234,849,685)

Foreign curren-
cy translation 
differences

- 5,591,994 2,519,918 27,651,465 24,155,076 1,165,489 12,316,536 4,466,706 390,674 483,958 5,685,396 - - 84,427,212

As at 31 
December 2024

294,800,790 738,160,613 302,503,243 361,159,534 2,063,670,029 72,345,839 172,125,711 194,500,674 356,171,303 161,446,034 181,527,974 6,701,407 1,670,352 102,243,327 5,009,026,830

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

As at 1 January 
2023

2,522,830 272,195,696 232,899,622 330,716,989 1,364,662,298 70,611,949 161,478,281 224,061,975 295,313,751 147,070,382 57,039,796 4,783,706 823,611 650,000 3,164,830,886 
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

14.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Description
Land
SAR

Concrete 
Buildings

Land
SAR

Prefabricated 
Buildings

SAR

Wells and Civil 
works
SAR

Machinery and 
Equipment

SAR

Tanks and Silos
SAR

Agricultural 
Equipment

SAR

Vehicles and 
Trucks
SAR

Tools
SAR

Office 
Furniture

SAR

Bearer Plants
SAR

Leasehold 
Improvements

SAR

Capital Parts
SAR

Capital Work in 
Progress

SAR

Total
SAR

Depreciation 
during the year

- 13,251,754 11,067,828 7,245,220 76,338,860 1,424,527 4,793,371 3,223,004 14,356,536 10,020,676 7,356,021 145,512 212,212 - 149,435,521 

Disposals - (536,805) (230,448) (130,127) (16,154,527) (1,940,244) (9,060,172) (22,781,869) (5,886,205) (10,122,742) - - - - (66,843,139)

Write off * - 3,690,486 6,495,290 77,192 10,700,000 - - 232,739 - 4,293 - - - 2,826,362 24,026,362 

Foreign currency 
translation 
differences

- (3,283,373) (1,479,798) (16,235,827) (14,186,016) (684,340) (7,231,773) (2,664,562) (246,787) (290,051) (3,338,236) - - - (49,640,763)

As at 31 
December 
2023

2,522,830 285,317,758 248,752,494 321,673,447 1,421,360,615 69,411,892 149,979,707 202,071,287 303,537,295 146,682,558 61,057,581 4,929,218 1,035,823 3,476,362 3,221,808,867 

Depreciation 
during the year 

- 13,342,780 11,928,631 7,507,064 82,846,769 702,375 5,643,665 1,594,003 13,235,920 8,905,731 8,094,923  80,227 212,212  - 154,094,300

Disposals/ 
write off

- (9,807,177) (4,443,013) (77,289,431) (64,021,442) (2,376,214) (22,474,288) (15,945,052) (3,647,981) (16,134,391) (10,111,579) - - - (226,250,568)

Foreign currency 
translation 
differences

- 5,592,080 2,519,898 27,651,465 24,155,095 1,165,484 12,316,536 4,466,652 391,964 483,837 5,685,396  -  -  - 84,428,406

As at 31 
December 
2024

2,522,830 294,445,441 258,758,010 279,542,545 1,464,341,037 68,903,537 145,465,620 192,186,890 313,517,198 139,937,735 64,726,321 5,009,445 1,248,035 3,476,362 3,234,081,006

Net Book Value 

As at 31 
December 2024

292,277,960 443,715,172 43,745,233 81,616,989 599,328,992 3,442,302 26,660,091 2,313,784 42,654,105 21,508,299 116,801,653 1,691,962 422,317 98,766,965 1,774,945,824

As at 31 
December 2023

292,277,960 456,181,596 45,145,064 90,912,301 610,027,461 3,967,722 19,937,011 3,796,502 49,632,360 27,379,715 124,907,713 62,189 634,529 29,939,474 1,754,801,597 

* During 2023, the Group recognized a write off amounting to SAR 24 million for Juice line, dairy farm assets and residential villa. 

**During 2024, the Group has written off property, plant, and equipment with a net book value of SR 7.2 million, primarily related to the Sudan and Qatar branches and non-functional wells with net book values of SR 207 thousand and SR 5.9 mil-
lion, respectively. 
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14.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
2-14  Land  
The following matters related to Lands held by the Group at the reporting date:

Land Used by Saudi Arabian Oil (Saudi Aramco):

As per the Royal Order No. (151) dated Ramadan 5, 1401H, NADEC was granted the Haradh project, which was 
invested by NADEC for Agricultural and Livestock Production, including agricultural land, facilities, fixed and 
movable assets, and energy sources, and it is considered among its properties starting from the date of issu-
ance of Royal Decree No. (M/ 41) on Shawwal 17, 1401H approving its establishment.

The title deed was issued by Notary Public at Haradh with No. (87) on Jumada Al-Awwal 15, 1403H, with a 
length of seventy-five kilometers from north to south and five kilometers from east to west, with an area of 
375 square kilometers. 

NADEC entered into a legal dispute with Saudi Arabian Oil (Saudi Aramco) in respect of some portion of the 
land and the Supreme Court issued its final judgment on Muharram 13, 1442H (corresponding to September 1, 
2020) to cancel the title deed No. (87) issued to NADEC on Jumada Al-Awwal 15, 1403H, and this decision did 
not oblige the Group to leave or vacate the revived areas which its operational business is located, no essential 
operations of the Group are located on the disputed land, and NADEC has raised its objections to the decision 
of the supreme court to the concerned authorities and clarified its position towards the decision. 

Based on NADEC's assessment of its legal status and based on discussions with the concerned authorities, the 
management largely believes that the ownership of the revived lands that are subject to the use and control of 
the Group is valid, and it is expected that a new title will be issued to the Group for the revived lands which are 
under the Group control and use. It is also expected that this will lead to a reduction in the land area, which is 
currently used by Saudi Arabian Oil (Saudi Aramco) and a small piece of land in the southern region that is not 
suitable for agricultural production and is not currently used by the Group. Accordingly, the Group recorded a 
provision of SR 2.5 million during year 2022.

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
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15.	 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
A-	 Right-of-Use Assets

Land & Build-
ings
SAR

Vehicles and 
Trucks
SAR

Machineries
SAR

Total
SAR

Carrying value as at 1 January 
2023

13,852,535 34,228,167 7,787,701 55,868,403

Additions during 2023 7,141,259 10,094,314 - 17,235,573

Lease cancellations (1,057,192) - - (1,057,192)

Depreciation for 2023 (3,292,802) (10,198,052) (848,454) (14,339,308)

Carrying value as at 31 December 2023 16,643,800 34,124,429 6,939,247 57,707,476
Additions during 2024 3,365,866 - - 3,365,866

Depreciation for 2024 (3,546,300) (9,966,807) (848,428) (14,361,535)

Lease cancellations (800,782) - - (800,782)

Carrying value as at 31 December 2024 15,662,584 24,157,622 6,090,819 45,911,025

B-	 Lease liabilities

Total
SAR

Carrying value as at 1 January 2023 55,371,282

Additions of new leases in 2023 17,235,573

Interest expense for 2023 (note 12) 1,919,800

Lease cancellations (1,057,218)

Payment of lease liability during 2023 (20,797,562)

Carrying value as at 31 December 2023 52,671,875
Additions of new leases in 2024 3,365,866

Interest expense for 2024 (note 12) 1,755,963

Lease cancellations (800,782)

Payment of lease liability during 2024 (17,580,202)

Carrying value as at 31 December 2024 39,412,720

Lease liability – Current portion 13,776,418

Lease liability – Non-current portion 25,636,302
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16.	 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)
The Group’s Biological Assets consist of the dairy herd, which are classified as milk producing cows (Cows) 
or non-milk producing cows (Heifers). The non-productive cows include milk cows, which are raised up to the 
production stage.

Their value increases as they age, based on milk production or production of offspring. The cattle breeding is 
exposed to disease risk. Therefore, the Group separates all the other farms and activities from cattle farms to 
prevent the transmission of diseases to the herd, and the herd is subject to very strict medical standards and 
precautionary measures are in place to prevent such diseases from transmission or infection.

The Group’s Biological Assets as at 31 December 2024 and their changes during the year, and the comparative 
amounts are as follows:

Cows
SAR

Heifers
SAR

Total
SAR

As at 1 January 2024 503,195,893 320,332,761 823,528,654

Change during the year  (115,922,356)  (11,747,789) (127,670,145)

As at 31 December 2024 387,273,537 308,584,972 695,858,509

 

Cost as at 1 January 2023 431,276,765 377,664,241 808,941,006

Change during the year  (23,977,008)  (57,331,480)  (81,308,488)

As at 31 December 2023 407,299,757 320,332,761 727,632,518

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
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17.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost 
Software and 

licenses
SAR

Capital work in 
progress

SAR

Total
SAR

Cost as at 1 January 2023 72,521,803 84,572 70,504,034

Additions during the year - 2023 508,027 7,256,013 7,764,040

Transfers during the year - 2023 1,594,314 (1,594,314) -

Cost as at 31 December 2023 72,521,803 5,746,271 78,268,074

Additions during the year - 2024 3,409,517 1,427,187 4,836,704

Reclassification during the year - 2024 2,999,411 - 2,999,411

Transfers during the year - 2024 5,746,271 (5,746,271) -

Cost as at 31 December 2024 84,677,002 1,427,187 86,104,189

Accumulated Amortization 

Accumulated Amortization at January 1, 2023 40,015,656 - 40,015,656

Amortization for the year - 2023 8,654,485 - 8,654,485

Accumulated Amortization as at 31 
December 2023

48,670,141 - 48,670,141

Amortization for the year - 2024 10,184,876 - 10,184,876

Reclassification during the year - 2024 591,850 - 591,850

Accumulated Amortization as at 31 
December 2024

59,446,867 - 59,446,867

Net Book Value:

As at 31 December 2024 25,230,135 1,427,187 26,657,322

As at 31 December 2023 23,851,662 5,746,271 29,597,933
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18.	 INVESTMENTS
18.1 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

31 December 
2023
SAR

Additions 
***
SAR

Share of 
Results

SAR

Disposal
**

SAR

Reclassification to 
FVOCI
SAR

31 December 
2024
SAR

Arabian Mills for 
Food Products 
Company

116,222,014 - 24,039,392 (42,078,422) (98,182,984) -

AlRai National 
Livestock 
Company

 - 2,550,000 - - - 2,550,000

Total 116,222,014 2,550,000 24,039,392 (42,078,422) (98,182,984) 2,550,000

31 December 
2022
SAR

Additions *
SAR

Share of 
Results

SAR

Disposal
SAR

Reclassification to 
FVOCI
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

Arabian Mills for 
Food Products 
Company

54,191,236 40,294,921 21,735,857 - - 116,222,014

Total 54,191,236 40,294,921 21,735,857 - - 116,222,014

*During 2023, the Group has increased its ownership in the Arabian Mills for Food Products Company and 
signed an agreement to purchase 2,500,000 shares, representing 4.87% amounting to SR 36,990,691 wherein 
the Group paid SR 40,294,921, resulting in goodwill of SR 3,304,230. 

**During 2024, Capital Market Authority “CMA” approved Arabian Mills for Food Products Company (“Arabian 
Mills”) application of offering and listing of its 30% of the shares on the main financial market of Saudi Arabia. 
As part of offering process NADEC has agreed to sell 30% of shares held by NADEC in Arabian Mills. Accord-
ingly, 30% of investment held in Arabian Mills has been disposed.  Due to this the Group has lost joint control 
over Arabian bills and accordingly equity method of accounting to be discontinued from the date loss of con-
trol and recognized gain of SAR 356,513,453 (SAR 103,189,547 on sale of 30% shares and SAR 253,323,906) as 
day one fair value gain on remaining number shares on discontinuation of equity method of accounting.

*** During 2024, The Group signed a partnership agreement with the United Feed Company (a limited liability 
company) (One of Al Muhaidib Group's companies) to establish a AlRai National Livestock Company (a limited 
liability company) for an intensive animal livestock project specializing in (sheep and goats) and meat produc-
tion, where NADEC's ownership stake will be equivalent to 51% of the company's capital and paid capital of 
SR 2,550,000.
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18.	 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
18.2 EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI

Ownership 
(%)

Historical 
Cost
SAR

31 December 
2024
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

Change in 
Fair Value 

2024
SAR

Change in 
Fair Value 

2023
SAR

Arabian Mills 
for Food 
Products 
Company*

%10.41 98,182,984 262,027,552 - (89,479,338) -

National 
Company for 
Seed 

Production 
(Seeds) 

%13.99 4,128,000 5,215,000 5,683,000 (468,000) 556,000

United 
Dairy Farms 
Company

%8.26 600,000 5,784,000 3,266,000 2,518,000 47,000

Net Equity Investments 
at FVOCI

273,026,552 8,949,000 (87,429,338) 603,000

*Arabian Mills for Food Products Company Investment’s movement after reclassification:

31 December 2024
SAR

Fair value at day of listing 8th October 351,506,890

Change in fair value (89,479,338)

Balance as at 31 December 262,027,552

Equity Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) are measured in accordance 
with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. 
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19.	 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
19.1 Crops

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Balance as at 1 January 27,644,670 28,050,004

Harvested during the year (27,644,670) (28,050,004)

Additions during the year 29,793,740 27,644,670

Balance as at 31 December 29,793,740 27,644,670

Current biological assets are representing crops including wheat, onion, potato and olive.

19.2 Biological assets – Bulls
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Biological Assets - Bulls 55,479,869 28,929,505

55,479,869 28,929,505

As of 31 December 2023, The Company's biological assets available for sale represents the bulls being sold 
within a period of one year from its birth and classified as available for sale, since the Company requires only 
heifers for producing milk in its normal course of business. 

As of 31 December 2024, the Company’s biological assets-bulls represents the bulls that being consumed in 
the new business segment; Protein, which will be slaughtered and sold as Fresh Meat – as part of its normal 
course of business.

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

20.	 INVENTORIES
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Raw materials 271,186,766 311,176,096

Finished goods* 165,367,291 114,822,082

Agricultural products inventory** 150,789,310 50,328,779

Spare parts 96,741,447 97,066,515

Packaging materials 55,952,224 49,496,967

Fuel and oil 8,467,731 7,083,604

Animal products (Manure) 7,627,610 7,627,610

756,132,379 637,601,653

Provision for slow moving inventory (93,962,568) (77,852,238)

662,169,811 559,749,415

Movement in provision for slow moving inventory

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Balance as at 1 January 77,852,238 68,746,967

Provision made during the year 37,341,265 31,546,653

Provision utilized for write offs (20,365,263) (21,124,650)

Foreign Currency Translation difference (865,672) (1,316,732(

Balance as at 31 December 93,962,568 77,852,238

*The cost of finished goods includes direct costs and indirect costs, indirect costs are allocated based on the 
quantities produce.

**Agricultural products inventory is mainly including wheat and potato.
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21.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 
RECEIVABLES

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Trade receivables, net 411,332,299 353,611,375

Government subsidies due* 96,433,442 105,380,470

Advances to suppliers 58,757,058 53,503,971

Prepaid expenses 35,190,015 33,243,705

Staff receivables 8,927,045 11,654,653

Receivable from a related party (note 36) 6,172,209 -

Other receivables 15,036,072 11,684,768

631,848,140 569,078,942

Impairment allowance for government subsidies due (85,719,292) (94,719,292)

Impairment allowance for trade receivables (56,127,466) (49,994,188)

Impairment allowance for prepayments (17,828,324) (17,828,324)

472,173,058 406,537,138

* Government subsidies due represents amounts claimed from the Government and are considered recoverable 
from Government as these meet the criteria provided by Government Agencies and the Group it is reasonably 
certain that the subsidies will be received.

Movement in impairment allowance for government subsidies due

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Balance as at 1 January 94,719,292 54,219,292

Charge for the year - 40,500,000

Reversed during the year (9,000,000) -

Balance as at 31 December 85,719,292 94,719,292

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
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21.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Movement in impairment allowance for trade receivables

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Balance as at 1 January 49,994,188 53,180,647

Charge during the year 6,133,959 8,370,839

Written off during the year - (11,549,858)

Balance as at 31 December (681) (7,440)

الرصيد في 31 ديسمبر 56,127,466 49,994,188

Ageing of Trade Receivables

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Up to 3 months 348,243,159 308,002,732

3-6 months  8,343,561 8,721,643

More than 6 months 54,745,579 36,887,000

411,332,299 353,611,375

22.	 TERM DEPOSITS

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Term Deposits * 300,000,000 500,000,000

300,000,000 500,000,000

* The average rate on time deposit (Murabaha) for the period was 6.30% per annum with a maturity of more 
than three months and less than one year.
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23.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Cash at banks – Time Deposits * 1,050,000,000 500,000,000

Cash at banks - Current accounts 306,487,567 326,818,148

Cash in hand 8,876,513 7,868,172

1,365,364,080 834,686,320

*Time deposit represents short-term deposits with local banks with average original maturities of less than 
three months. The average rate on outstanding bank deposits as 31 December 2024 was between 5.50% and 
6.35% per annum for a period of three months or less. Bank deposits are placed in Islamic Murabha accounts.

24.	 SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has 301,640,000 shares as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: 301,640,000) issued and fully 
paid with a value of SAR 10 per share.

On 4 April 2023 (corresponding to 13 Ramadan 1444H), the Company announced the Board’s recommendation 
to the shareholders to increase the share capital by SAR 2 billion through a rights issue. On 5 October 2023 
(corresponding to 20 Rabi Al-Awwal 1445H), the Capital Market Authority (“CMA”) has approved the Company’s 
application for capital increase. The purpose of the capital increase is to fund the Company’s 2023–2027 strat-
egy, which aims to grow business operations, develop new markets, and expand the product range. The right 
issue is approved of the shareholders of the company in an extraordinary general assembly meeting dated 5 
November 2023 (corresponding to 21 Rabi’ Al-Thani 1444H). 

25.	 STATUTORY RESERVE
In accordance with the new Company’s regulation and amended Company’s article of association, during the 
year, no transfer made to statutory reserve from retained earning of the company.

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
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26.	 OTHER RESERVES
SAR 

Balance as at 1 January 2023 29,045,753

Changes  

Change in Fair value of Equity Investment at FVOCI 603,000

Actuarial Valuation adjustments to Other Reserves 10,238,306

Foreign currency translation differences (901,603)

Total adjustments to Other Components of Equity 9,939,703

Balance as at 31 December 2023 38,985,456

 

Changes 

Change in Fair value of Equity Investment at FVOCI (87,429,338)

Actuarial Valuation adjustments to Other Reserves 16,560,981

Foreign currency translation differences 2,122,202

Total adjustments to Other Components of Equity (68,746,155)

Balance as at 31 December 2024 (29,760,699)
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27.	 MURABAHA LOANS AND BORROWINGS

 
 
 

Currency
Interest 

Rate
Due Date

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Nominal 
Value

Book 
Value

Nominal 
Value

Book 
Value

SAR'000 SAR'000 SAR'000 SAR'000

Islamic Banking 
Facilities 
(Murabaha) (27.1)

SAR
SIBOR 
+ bank 
margin

2024-
2025

205,000 205,285 366,737 372,903

Agricultural 
Development Fund 
Loan (27.2)

SAR Fixed
2024-
2027

2,501 2,501 3,490 3,490

Total Loans       207,501 207,786 370,227 376,393

The weighted average interest rate on bank loans during the year 2024 was 6.20% (2023: 6.46%) on per annum 
basis, however, the rates varied between medium and short-term loans. Loans from local banks were granted 
against promissory note given by the Group.

Loans are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as follows:

 
31 December

2024
SAR'000

31 December
2023

SAR'000

Non-current liabilities

Agricultural Development Fund 1,667 2,501

Islamic Banking Facilities (Murabaha) - 95,238

1,667 97,739

Current liabilities

Agricultural Development Fund 834 989

Islamic Banking Facilities (Murabaha) 205,285 277,665

206,119 278,654

27.1 Islamic Banking Facilities (Murabaha) from Local Banks
The borrowing under Islamic banking facilities (Murabaha) have been granted against a promissory note is-
sued by the Group. The maturity dates of these facilities are ranging between 2024 to 2025 as agreed with the 
respective banks and are mostly of a resolving nature. The amount of unused facilities as at 31 December 2024 
amounted to SAR  2,091 million (31 December 2023: SAR 828 million).
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27.	 MURABAHA LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
27.2 Agricultural Development Fund Loan
The Group was granted a loan from the Agricultural Development Fund under number 803405009 dated 24 
Jumada II 1433H (corresponding to 5 May 2012) with a total value of SAR 8.35 million. This loan is secured by 
a mortgage of specific land owned by the Group along with building on it and any new additions and expan-
sions. Annual installments started from 4 Muharram 1440H (corresponding to 14 September 2018) and ending 
on 4 Muharram 1449H (corresponding to 8 September 2027), the loan amount was used to finance the irriga-
tion netting pivots of olive seedlings. The Group paid SAR 5.84 million out of the total loan as at 31 December 
2024 (31 December 2023: SAR 5 million).

The Group was granted another loan on 1 Dhul Al-Qa'da 1433H (corresponding to 17 September 2012 with a to-
tal value of SAR 1.6 million under Loan number 803805048. This loan is secured by mortgage on cars, machines 
and equipment owned by the Group. This loan is payable on annual installments basis starting from 1 Dhul al-
Qa'da 1436H (corresponding to 15 August 2015) and ending on 1 Dhul Al-Qa'da 1445H (corresponding to 8 May 
2024). This loan was fully utilized in Olive project.  The Group paid SAR 1.60 million out of the total loan as at 
31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: SAR 1.40 million).

During the current year, the Group was granted an additional short term loan from the Agricultural Develop-
ment Fund with a total value of SAR 100 million and this loan was fully repaid during the current year. 

The balance of these loans from Agricultural Development Fund on 31 December 2024 amounted to SAR 2.5 
million (31 December 2023: SAR 3.5 million).

28.	  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION
The entity operates a defined benefit plan (as defined in IAS 19) to provide a lump-sum compensation when the 
employee leaves the service, in line with the current labor law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The plan and its 
obligations are therefore more sensitive to changes in future salary increases, future withdrawal rates and the 
discount rate used to assess commitments, and the Group is not required to finance the plan, the plan's liabil-
ities have been assessed using the projected credit unit method in accordance with IAS 19. Since the amount 
and timing of future maturities are not known currently, assumptions have been made to value the obligations 
relating to the past service. These assumptions have been derived using methodologies consistent with the 
requirements of IAS 19. Any changes in assumptions in financial, economic and demographic conditions over 
time, where future experience does not match established assumptions, that change is included in Other Com-
prehensive Income in the future financial year.
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28.	  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (CONTINUED)
The movement in the present value of the liability for the benefits of the end of service plan of the enterprise 
is as follows:

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Opening balance 147,947,099 152,770,825

Interest Cost 6,449,927 6,031,913

Current Service Cost 18,477,649 15,312,753

Past service cost - 9,057,451

Benefits Paid (24,329,052) (24,987,537)

FCTR Adjustment (562,270) -

Actuarial gain in Other Comprehensive Income (16,560,981) (10,238,306)

Closing Balance 131,422,371 147,947,099

The value of the amounts that have been adjusted for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 
are as follows, according to the Actuarial study conducted

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Current Service cost 18,477,649 15,312,753

Interest cost 6,449,927 6,031,913

Past service cost - 9,057,451

Expense charged to consolidated Statement of Profit 
or Loss for the year 

24,927,575 30,402,117

Other comprehensive income related to the Employee Benefits Plan for the years 2024 and 2023 consists of 
the following items:

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Actuarial gain resulting from changes in financial 
assumptions

(16,566,255) (5,479,953)

Actuarial gain resulting from experience adjustment 5,274 (4,758,353)

Actuarial gain in Other Comprehensive Income (16,560,981) (10,238,306)
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28.	  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (CONTINUED)
The significant assumptions used to determine the defined benefit obligations of the employees' end of ser-
vice plan are as follows:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Discount rate %5.25 4.75%

Expected salary increase rate %4.00 5.00%

Withdrawal from work Age: Ratio Age: Ratio

(Average Ratio) 18-25:18.75% 18-25:18.75%

26-30:15.00% 26-30:15.00%

31-50:7.50% 31-50:7.50%

+51:3.75% +51:3.75%

Sensitivity in Employee Retirement Benefits 
Liability:

31 December 
2024

31 December 
2023

Discount Rate 1% Increase 122,105,302 136,954,320

Base 131,422,371 147,947,099

1% Decrease 142,093,982 160,631,923

Salary Inflation 1% Increase 142,121,205 160,471,227

Base 131,422,371 147,947,099

1% Decrease 121,915,201 136,880,482

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
When calculating the sensitivity of the employee retirement benefits to significant actuarial assumptions, 
the same method (present value of the employee retirement benefits calculated with the projected unit credit 
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the employee retirement 
benefits recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
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28.	  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (CONTINUED)

Demographic Assumptions
31 December 

2024
31 December 

2023

Number of employees 4,852 4,994

Weighted Average Duration of Liabilities (Years) 7.5 8.0

The following are the expected payments or contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 17,530,411 22,304,578

Between 2 and 5 years 42,514,881 41,555,794

Beyond 6 years 149,975,205 166,356,390

29.	 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Accrued expenses  376,803,959 255,342,487

Trade creditors 343,996,547 353,678,781

Employee benefits 66,374,408 67,289,776

Advances from customers 16,112,633 16,492,125

Payable to related parties (note 36) 273,721 1,578,865

Other payables 19,260,072 22,929,969

822,821,340 717,312,003

30.	 UNDISTRIBUTED RIGHTS ISSUE COMPENSATION
This represents the undistributed rights issue compensation to eligible investors who have not exercised their 
right to subscribe to new shares. The Group were unable to transfer these amount of compensation to the ben-
eficiaries as a result of the lack of sufficient information about the beneficiaries' account numbers.

SAR

Balance as at 31 December 2023 83,238,203

Paid during the year 2024 (257,221)

Balance as at 31 December 2024 82,980,982
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31.	 DIVIDEND PAYABLES
Below table represents the movement in the Dividend Payables.

SAR

Balance as at 1 January 2023 32,580,323

Paid during the year 2023 (240,131)

Balance as at 31 December 2023 32,340,192

Paid during the year 2024 (393,469)

Balance as at 31 December 2024 31,946,723

32.	 PROVISION FOR ZAKAT

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Opening balance 45,693,521 77,161,135

Zakat provision for current year 52,500,000 14,200,000

Zakat reversal for previous years - (26,000,000)

Total charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 52,500,000 (11,800,000)

Zakat paid during the Year (11,039,826) (19,667,614)

Closing Balance 87,153,695 45,693,521

The Company filed its Zakat return for all years up to 2023 and obtained Zakat certificates for the years up to 
2023 from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“ZATCA” or “the Authority”).

The Authority issued Zakat assessments for the years 2019-2020, the Company objected to some of its items 
with the Authority and presently these objections are pending for discussion. The Company has filed its Zakat 
return for years 2021 and 2022 and still under process with the Authority.  During 2023, the Company received 
final assessments for the years from 2014 to 2018 and based on these final assessments the Company has re-
versed provision of SAR 26 million.
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33.	 CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
33.1	 Non-cash Investing and Finance Activities
Acquisition of Right-of-Use-Assets (Refer note 15).

33.2	Net Debt Reconciliation
Liabilities 

from financing 
activities

Asset

Loans and 
Borrowings

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

Term Deposit Net total

Opening balance as at 1 
January 2024

376,393,301 834,686,320 500,000,000 (958,293,019)

Net cash flows (162,726,903) 530,585,741 -  693,312,644)

Redemption - - (216,171,667) 216,171,667 

Finance Cost/Income 23,194,837 - - 23,194,837 

Finance Cost/Income Paid/
Received

(29,075,007) - 16,171,667  (45,246,674)

Currency Translation 
Adjustment

- 92,019 -  (92,019)

Closing balance as at 31 
December 2024

207,786,228 1,365,364,080 300,000,000 (1,457,577,852)

Opening balance as at 1 
January 2023

1,525,487,745 112,761,952 - 1,412,725,793

Net cash flows (1,143,678,905) 722,834,837 - 420,844,068

Redemption - - 500,000,000 500,000,000

Finance Cost/Income 66,352,128 - - (66,352,128)

Finance Cost/Income Paid/
Received

(67,928,063) - - (69,847,865)

Currency Translation 
Adjustment

- (910,469) - (910,469)

Closing balance as at 31 
December 2023

376,393,301 834,686,320 500,000,000 (1,089,077,473)
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34.	 COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES
Capital commitments
Capital commitments amounted to SAR 140.6 million against contracts for the supply of property, plant and 
equipment as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: SAR 55.6 million)

Letters of credit
The contingent liabilities against letters of credit are SAR 120.5 million as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 
2023: SAR 196.4 million).

Letters of guarantee
The contingent liabilities against letters of guarantee are SAR 46.5 million as at 31 December 2024 (31 Decem-
ber 2023: SAR 47.2 million). 

35.	 FAIR VALUE
Financial Assets and Liabilities are measured at amortized cost except for Equity Investments at Fair value 
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) which are measured at fair value. The fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market par-
ticipants at the measurement date under market conditions. In the absence of an active market, the asset or 
liability is measured in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability and relies on the perceptions of 
market participants to maximize the benefits of using the asset. The Group relied on valuation methods for Eq-
uity Investments at FVOCI based on the performance of similar financial assets in an active market considering 
the performance of the asset itself to maximize benefits from the asset.
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35.	 FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
The book value and the fair value of all the disclosed financial assets and financial liabilities does not vary 
significantly.

31 December 2024

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Amortized 
cost

SAR'000

Fair Value
SAR'000

Total 
SAR'000

Level 1
SAR'000

Level 2
SAR'000

Level 3
SAR'000

Total 
SAR'000

Financial Assets

Equity 
Investment at 
FVOCI

- 270,555 270,555 262,028  8,527 - 270,555

Trade and Other 
Receivables

432,419 - 432,419 - - - -

Term deposit 300,000 - 300,000 - - - -

Cash and cash 
equivalent 

1,365,365 - 1,365,365 - - - -

2,097,784 270,555 2,368,339 262,028  8,527 - 270,555

Financial 
Liabilities

Trade and Other 
Payables

781,824 - 781,824 - - - -

Loans 207,786 - 207,786 - - - -

Lease Liabilities 39,413 - 39,413 - - - -

1,029,023 - 1,029,023 - - - -

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

35.	 FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
31 December 2023

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Amortized 
cost

SAR'000

Fair Value
SAR'000

Total 
SAR'000

Level 1
SAR'000

Level 2
SAR'000

Level 3
SAR'000

Total 
SAR'000

Financial Assets

Equity 
Investment at 
FVOCI

- 8,949 8,949 - 8,949 - 8,949

Trade and Other 
Receivables

374,259 - 374,259 - - - -

Term deposit 500,000 - 500,000 - - - -

Cash and cash 
equivalent 

834,686 - 834,686 - - - -

1,308,945 8,949 1,317,894 - 8,949 - 8,949

Financial 
Liabilities

Trade and Other 
Payables

675,400 - 675,400 - - - -

Loans 376,259 - 376,259 - - - -

Lease Liabilities 52,672 - 52,672 - - - -

1,104,331 - 1,104,331 - - - -
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36.	 Financial Risk Management 
The Group is exposed to the following risks through its use of financial instruments:

A-	 Credit Risk.

B-	 Liquidity Risk.

C-	 Market Risk

This note provides information on the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, pol-
icies and procedures for measuring and managing risks, and the Group's capital management. Further quanti-
tative disclosures are included in these consolidated financial statements. The overall risk management pro-
gram focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential negative impact 
on the financial performance of the Group. Financial instruments included in the Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Position include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, short- and long-
term loans, due to related parties and accrued expenses, as well as other current liabilities.

36.1 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or a 
business contract resulting in a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 
(mainly trade receivables) and from financing activities.

The financial assets subject to credit risk are set out in table below:

31 December 2024
SAR'000

31 December 2023
SAR'000

Term deposit 300,000 500,000

Cash and bank balances 1,050,000 834,686

Trade and other receivables 430,763 374,259

1,780,763 1,708,945

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business segment in accordance with the Group's business policy, 
procedures and control related to business risk management. The credit quality of the customer is assessed on 
the basis of an evaluation card for each customer based on the date of the customer's dealings with the Group 
and the extent of his obligation to pay by setting a grace period and credit limit for each customer. The Group 
calculates impairment losses on the basis of its estimate of losses incurred in respect of trade receivables. The 
main components of this provision are the expected loss element of specific customers as well as the aggre-
gate loss element that is estimated for a group of similar customers in respect of losses that may be incurred, 
and which have not yet been determined. The consolidated loss provision is determined based on historical 
data of collection statistics for similar customers. Management believes that there is no additional allowance 
for credit risk required in excess of the normal decrease in receivables.
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36.	 Financial Risk Management (CONTINUED)
Trade Receivables consist of 95% of the balances in Saudi Arabia and 5% of the outstanding balances in the 
GCC as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: 87% and 13% respectively).

Bank balances are kept with banks of BBB rating or higher rating banks.  

36.2	  Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with finan-
cial liabilities settled through the delivery of cash or other financial assets. The Group's approach to liquidity 
management is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always has sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations when 
due in normal and difficult circumstances without incurring unacceptable losses or risking the Group's repu-
tation. Liquidity risk may result from the inability to sell the financial asset quickly near its fair value. A signif-
icant portion of the Group's funds are in Cash and Bank balances and are readily available to cover expected 
operating expenses, including servicing of financial obligations. In order to improve the liquidity of the Group, 
the Group will develop a plan to develop working capital performance and restructure its capital components.

Payable as of 31 December 2024

On Demand
SAR

Less than 3 
months

SAR

3 Months to 
1 year
SAR

1 year to 5 
years
SAR

Greater than 
5 years

SAR

Total
SAR

Murabaha & 
Government Loans

- 205,285,107 833,707 1,413,049 - 207,531,863

Trade Payables - 313,990,368 - - - 313,990,368

Lease Liability 
repayment

- 3,873,303 8,976,358 25,189,690 2,633,234 40,672,585

Total - 523,148,778 9,810,065 26,857,104 2,633,234 562,194,816

Payable as of 31 December 2023

On Demand
SAR

Less than 3 
months

SAR

3 Months to 
1 year
SAR

1 year to 5 
years
SAR

Greater than 
5 years

SAR

Total
SAR

Murabaha & 
Government Loans

- 239,522,875 51,035,972 85,834,454 - 376,393,301

Trade Payables - 353,855,815 - - - 353,855,815

Lease Liability 
repayment

- 4,466,420 9,352,760 36,219,461 2,633,234 52,671,875

Total - 597,845,110 60,388,732 122,053,915 2,633,234 782,920,991
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36.	 Financial Risk Management (CONTINUED)
Capital Management

Equity includes the equity of the Group's shareholders. The main objective of the Group's Capital Management 
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and decent capital ratios to support the Group's business 
and increase the value of the Group. The Group manages and adjusts the capital structure in light of changes in 
economic conditions and the requirements of financial commitments. To maintain or adjust the capital struc-
ture, the Group may amend dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new 
shares. The Group monitors leverage ratio which is total debt / Shareholders’ Equity. The Group's policy is to 
maintain a leverage ratio below 2.5.

 
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Islamic and Government Murabaha Loans 207,786,228 376,393,301

Trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables 822,821,340 717,312,003

Employee Benefit Obligations 131,422,371 147,947,099

Provision for Zakat 87,153,695 45,693,521

Dividend Payable 31,946,723 32,340,192

Lease Liabilities 39,412,720 52,671,875

Total Debt 1,320,543,077 1,372,357,991

Shareholders’ Equity 3,952,108,915 3,630,515,777

Leverage Ratio 0.33 0.38

To achieve this objective, the Group's capital management aims, among other things, to ensure that the finan-
cial commitments associated with interest bearing loans and advances that meet the requirements of the cap-
ital structure are met. In the event of a breach of compliance with these financial commitments, banks may be 
allowed to claim loans and bank facilities granted to the Group. There have been no violations of the financial 
commitments contracted with banks that lend to those loans, and in the event of such irregularities, the Group 
gets exemptions from banks for periods to be determined by those banks.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes for capital management during the year end-
ed 31 December 2024 and the year ended 31 December 2023.
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36.	 Financial Risk Management (CONTINUED)
36.3	  Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, profit rates and equity pric-
es. These risks affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable limits, while 
improving returns.

The Group's exposure to market risk arises from:

�� Currency risk

�� Interest rate risk

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign ex-
change rates

Currency Movement vs. Saudi Riyal (SAR)

Foreign Currency % Change

Fx Rate
(Foreign Currency/ 

SAR)
Upward Downward Upward Downward

2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2023

Price for $1 1.00% 3.75 3.75 (535,397) 535,397  (867,624)  867,624

Price for € 1 1.00% 3.89 4.09 (27,056) 27,056  (41,635)  41,635

(562,453) 562,453 (909,259) 909,259

The Group mainly trades in Saudi Riyal and US Dollars. The exchange rate fluctuations are closely monitored by 
management. Based on its experience, management does not believe it is necessary to hedge against the im-
pact of foreign currency risk as most transactions are in Saudi Riyal and US Dollars. The Saudi Riyal is pegged 
to the US Dollar and there are no other significant foreign currency instruments other than the US Dollar and 
thus foreign currency risk is mitigated.
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36.	 Financial Risk Management (CONTINUED)
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to market risk of changes in interest rates 
mainly relates to the Group's borrowed loans to finance working capital requirements and capital expendi-
tures. These loans are repriced periodically, and the Group is exposed to interest rate risk related to cash flows. 
The Group's practice is to manage bank interest costs by improving available cash flow and reducing borrow-
ing. When borrowing is necessary, the loan term is matched with the expected repayments. There is a regular 
review of bank interest rates to ensure that these risks are mitigated.

The following table shows the impact on finance cost of the Group based on interest rate movement:

Change
%

Interest Rate Upward 
Movement 

SAR

Interest Rate Downward 
Movement 

SAR

31 December 2024 %1 2,077,862 (2,077,862)

31 December 2023 %1 3,763,933 (3,763,933)

37.	 KEY RELATED PARTIES, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related parties in the Group include details of key transactions as follows:

Company
Relation-
ship with 

NADEC

Nature of 
Transac-

tion

Receivables/ 
(Payables)

Balance

Sales/ 
(purchases)

Payments/ 
(collections)

Receivables/
(Payables)

Balance

SAR

31 December 
2023

Movement during 2024
31 December 

2024

AlRai National 
Livestock 
Company

Joint 
Venture

Expenses 
paid on 
behalf 

- - 6,172,209 6,172,209

Arabian Mills for 
Food Products 

Company 
(formerly: The 
Second 

  Milling Company)

Investment 
FVOCI*

Purchases 
of Raw 
Material

(1,578,865) (24,191,050) 25,496,193 (273,722)
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37.	 KEY RELATED PARTIES, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Company
Relationship 
with NADEC

Nature of 
Transaction

Receivables/ 
(Payables)

Balance

Sales/ 
(purchases)

Payments/ 
(collections)

Receivables/
(Payables)

Balance

31 December 
2022
SAR

Movement during 2023
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

Arabian Mills for 
Food Products 

  Company 
(formerly: The 
Second 

Milling Company)

Joint 
Venture

Compen-
sation for 
Cancelation 
of contract 1,635,760

10,000,00 (10,000,000)

(1,578,865)
Purchases 
of Raw 
Material

(27,511,137) 24,296,512

* Starting from 8th October 2024, Arabian Mills no longer joint venture.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel:
31 December 2024

SAR
31 December 2023

SAR

Short term benefits 27,897,078 19,373,223

Long-term benefits 1,931,419 3,413,371

 Total Benefits of Senior Management Personnel 29,828,497 22,786,594

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and other 
committees of the Board
On 2nd Rajab 1446H (corresponding to 2 January 2025), amount of Saudi Riyal Three Million and Nine Hundred and 
Eighty Four Thousand were paid as remuneration to the members of the Board of Directors and other committees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommended the additional remuneration of Saudi Riyal Three 
Million and Two Hundred Thousand to the members of the Board of Directors and other committee of Board. 
This amount is subject to the approval of shareholders during the Annual General Assembly meeting.

38.	 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In the opinion of the management, there have been no significant subsequent events since the year-end and 
up to the approval of these Consolidated Financial Statements that require disclosure or adjustment in these 
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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39.	 RECLASSIFICATION IN COMPARATIVES 
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group reclassified some balances as shown below which man-
agement considers a more accurate presentation to reflect their related nature:

Balances of financial position statement have been reclassified:

31 December 
2023

(before 
reclassification)

SAR

Reclassified 
balances

SAR

31 December 
2023
(after 

reclassification)
SAR

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 1,760,547,868 (5,746,271) 1,754,801,597

Intangible assets 23,851,662 5,746,271 29,597,933

Biological assets - available for sale 28,929,505 (28,929,505) -

Biological assets – current 27,644,670 28,929,505 56,574,175

Trade receivables, prepayments, and other 
receivables

463,839,474 (57,302,336) 406,537,138

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 774,614,339 57,302,336 717,312,003
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39.	 RECLASSIFICATION IN COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)
Amounts of statement of profit and loss been reclassified:

31 December 
2023

(before 
reclassification)

SAR

Reclassified 
amounts

SAR

31 December 
2023
(after 

reclassification)
SAR

Other income (expenses), net 6,352,791 (3,912,778) 2,440,013

Treasury income - 3,912,778 3,912,778

40.	 APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
These Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 
2024 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2025 corresponding to 26 Shaba’an 1446H.
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